
Meeting Packet

REGULAR SESSION

3/15/2021

07:00 PM

Packet page 1 of 228



REGULAR SESSIONREGULAR SESSION
PHILOMATH SCHOOL DISTRICT 17J

District Office
1620 Applegate Street, Philomath

3/15/2021 07:00 PM

AA. . EXECUTIVE SESSION ~6:00 p.m.EXECUTIVE SESSION ~6:00 p.m.

ORS 192.660 (2) (d) to discuss labor negotiations

 

BB. . REGULAR SESSION ~ 7:00 p.m.REGULAR SESSION ~ 7:00 p.m.
11. . Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance: Shelly Niemann, ChairCall to Order & Pledge of Allegiance: Shelly Niemann, Chair

CC. . REPORTS & CORRESPONDENCE ~REPORTS & CORRESPONDENCE ~
11. . Public CommentsPublic Comments

22. . Student Government ReportStudent Government Report

33. . Association ReportsAssociation Reports

PEA
OSEA

44. . Superintendent ReportSuperintendent Report
Personnel Updates (p. 4)

55. . Director of Finance ReportDirector of Finance Report
Finance Director Board Report (p. 5)

Financials (p. 6)

Enrollment (p. 9)

Fund 284 PES (p. 11)

Fund 285 PMS (p. 13)

Fund 286 PHS (p. 15)

DD. . STRATEGY AND DISCUSSION ~STRATEGY AND DISCUSSION ~
11. . Classified Employee Appreciation WeekClassified Employee Appreciation Week

Classified Appreciation Proclamation (p. 19)

22. . KVCS Annual Report - Jamon Ellingson, DirectorKVCS Annual Report - Jamon Ellingson, Director
KVCS Annual Report (p. 20)

Packet page 2 of 228

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786943
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786937
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786939
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786952
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786935
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786933
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786934
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/787253
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786709


33. . 2020/2021 Technology Update2020/2021 Technology Update

44. . District Calendar OptionsDistrict Calendar Options
Calendar Options 2021-2022 (p. 122)

55. . Open School Board Positions - Elections InformationOpen School Board Positions - Elections Information

66. . Policy KG-AR - Revision for Board ReviewPolicy KG-AR - Revision for Board Review
Policy KG-AR Revised (p. 128)

EE. . ACTION ITEMS ~ACTION ITEMS ~
11. . COVID Plans for PHS, PA, & PMS - Action neededCOVID Plans for PHS, PA, & PMS - Action needed

PHS Blueprints (p. 133)

PA Blueprint (p. 158)

PMS Blueprint (p. 161)

PHS Exposure Risk Assessment (p. 186)

PMS Exposure Risk Assessment (p. 191)

Communicable Disease Management Plan (p. 196)

22. . PEA NegotiationsPEA Negotiations

1. MOU Approval - Action required
2. Contract Status Update

PEA MOU (p. 216)

33. . Consent AgendaConsent Agenda
Consent Agenda - 3/15/21 (p. 220)

Check listing - February 2021 (p. 221)

Minutes - Regular Session 2/16/2021 (p. 225)

FF. . MEETING CLOSURE ~MEETING CLOSURE ~
11. . Board Reports & ThanksBoard Reports & Thanks

22. . Next Meeting Agenda ItemsNext Meeting Agenda Items

33. . Board Requests & AdjournmentBoard Requests & Adjournment

GG. . IMPORTANT DATESIMPORTANT DATES

March 22-26, 2021                                              Spring Break
April 19, 2021                7:00-9:00 pm                 Regular Board Meeting

Packet page 3 of 228

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786936
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786940
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786926
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786928
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786927
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786930
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786932
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786929
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786953
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786947
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786938
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/786941


March 15, 2021 
 
 
 
Personnel ~ Information Only 
 

A. New Hire/Transfers/Change of FTE:   
1. PMS Instructional Assistant   Alison Spani 
2. PHS Instructional Assistant    Tanya Koller 
3. PES Custodian    Derek Thompson 
4. Moved to Technology Specialist  Steven Voong 
5. PES Moved to 0.5 FTE 5th Grade  Emily Helpenstell 
6. PES Moved to 0.5 FTE 5th Grade  Rachel Olson 
7. PES Long Term 5th Grade Substitute  Renee Mason 
8. CPS Long Term PE Substitute  Nicholas Burnett 
9. Temporary Custodian    Cooper Latz 
10. Temporary Custodian    Kaylee Knapp 
11. Moved to CPS Custodian    Joe DiGiovannangelo 
12. Moved to BES Playground/Lunch Asst Kierstin Rowley 
 

B. Resignation/Retirement:  
1. PMS/CPS/BES Music Teacher  Yvonne McMillan – Effective 6/30/21 
2. BES Instructional Assistant    Cheri Stouder – Effective 6/30/21 
3. CPS SLP    Hailey Haldeman – Effective 6/30/21 
 

 

A. Leave of Absence:  
1. None at this time 
    

B. New Coaches 2020-21: 
1. Assistant Boys Soccer Coach   Evan Munn 

     

Packet page 4 of 228



 
 

 
March 10, 2021 
 
Board Members: 
 
Enclosed you shall find the financial reports for the period ending February 28, 2021. 
 
Our current report of enrollment for the 2020-2021 school year compared with the previous year is broken down as 
follows: 
 

School March 2021 March 2020 Change 
CPS 141 172 -31 
PES 327 392 -65 
BL 14 23 -9 

PMS 286 370 -84 
PHS 352 479 -127 
PA 171 - 171 

KVCS 199 203 -4 
Subtotal 1490 1639 -149 

Part-Time 61 12 49 
Total 1551 1651 -100 

 
Our current report of enrollment for the 2020-2021 school year compared with the previous month is broken down 
as follows: 
 

School March 2021 February 2021 Change 
CPS 141 138 3 
PES 327 314 13 
BL 14 15 -1 

PMS 286 285 1 
PHS 352 358 -6 
PA 171 185 -14 

KVCS 199 201 -2 
Subtotal 1490 1496 -6 

Part-Time 61 60 1 
Total 1551 1556 -5 

 
February 2021 General Fund Expenditures totaled $1,554,389. Expenditures that exceed $10,000 are as follows: 
  

• CDW Government, Inc.   $   13,138 (Monitors) 
• Strengthening Rural Families  $   10,285 (Next Step Program) 
• Mid Columbia Bus Company  $   40,477 (Monthly Service) 
• Pacific Power    $   15,672 (Monthly Service) 
• Kings Valley Charter School  $ 205,573 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Wdm 
Bill Mancuso 
Director of Finance & Operations 

 

Philomath School District 
Benton County School District No. 17J, 1620 Applegate Street Philomath OR 97370 (541) 929-3169 

Packet page 5 of 228



Actual YTD Revenues

Projected YTD Revenues Projected YTD Local Sources
75.64% 88.74%

State School Funding $9,642,210
Property Taxes $3,716,941
Resources - Beginning Fund Balance $2,743,643
Local Option Taxes $948,891
Kings Valley Charter School Fees $95,917
Severe Disabilities Reimbursement $53,846
Interest on Investments $48,593
Restricted Grants-in-Aid $26,794
Miscellaneous $21,508
County School Funds $15,806

Percent of Total Revenues Year-to-Date 99.86%

Revenue Analysis

Top 10 Sources of Revenue (Year-to-Date)

General Fund | Revenue Dashboard Summary
For the Period Ending February 28, 2021

Projected Year End Balance
as % of Budgeted Revenues Actual YTD State Sources

Projected YTD State Sources
70.48%

Actual YTD Local Source

$0.0

$5.0

$10.0

$15.0

$20.0

$25.0

GENERAL FUND

M
ill

io
ns

Revenues by Fund | Budget / Actual YTD / Projected YTD

Budget Actual Projected

87.80% 84.48%

69.75%

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

LOCAL SOURCES INTERMEDIATE SOURCES STATE SOURCES FEDERAL SOURCES OTHER SOURCES

M
ill

io
ns

Revenues by Source | Prior YTD vs. Current YTD
Prior YTD Current YTD

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

LOCAL SOURCES INTERMEDIATE SOURCES STATE SOURCES FEDERAL SOURCES OTHER SOURCES

M
ill

io
ns

Revenues by Source | Projected YTD vs. Current YTD
Projected YTD Current YTD

13.00%

Packet page 6 of 228



Actual YTD Expenditures

Projected YTD Expenditures Projected YTD Salaries/Benefits
46.15% 46.05%

Licensed Salaries $2,741,361
Charter School Payments, ADM $1,352,366
Classified Salaries $953,593
Public Employees Retirement System $880,030
Medical Insurance $834,861
Administrators $637,713
Unrepresented $441,836
PERS Bond 1 $406,157
Social Security Administration $364,323
Charter School, Remote Elementary $359,371

Percent of Total Expenditures Year-to-Date 81.37%

Top 10 Expenditures by Object (Year-to-Date)

For the Period Ending February 28, 2021

Expenditure Analysis

Actual YTD Salaries/Benefits Actual YTD All Other Objects

Projected YTD All Other Objects
63.97%

Projected Year End Balance
as % of Budgeted Expenditures

General Fund | Expenditure Dashboard Summary

59.80%49.07% 51.84%

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

SALARIES ASSOCIATED 
PAYROLL COSTS

PURCHASED 
SERVICES

SUPPLIES AND 
MATERIALS

CAPITAL 
OUTLAY

OTHER OBJECTS TRANSFERS OTHER USES OF 
FUNDS

M
ill

io
ns

Expenditures by Object | Prior YTD vs. Current YTD
Prior YTD Current YTD

$0.0

$1.0

$2.0

$3.0

$4.0

$5.0

$6.0

SALARIES ASSOCIATED 
PAYROLL COSTS

PURCHASED 
SERVICES

SUPPLIES AND 
MATERIALS

CAPITAL 
OUTLAY

OTHER OBJECTS TRANSFERS OTHER USES OF 
FUNDS

M
ill

io
ns

Expenditures by Object | Projected YTD vs. Current YTD

Projected YTD Current YTD

$0.0

$5.0

$10.0

$15.0

$20.0

$25.0

GENERAL FUND

M
ill

io
ns

Expenditures by Fund | Budget / Actual YTD / Projected YTD

Budget Actual Projected

12.00%

Packet page 7 of 228



Prior YTD FY2020 Actual YTD FY2020 FYTD Current Budget 2021

 
Prior YTD Current YTD Add: Projections Annual Forecast Annual Budget

Variance 
Fav / (Unfav)

Beginning Fund Balance $2,710,083 $2,743,643 $2,743,643 $2,723,329
REVENUES

Local Sources $4,644,808 $4,847,545 $427,633 $5,275,178 $5,737,975 ($462,797)
Intermediate Sources 69,361 71,352 68,039 139,392 118,000 21,392

State Sources 9,369,994 9,669,005 4,057,897 13,726,901 13,861,570 (134,669)
Federal Sources 7,948 6,698 23,302 30,000 30,000 0

Other Sources 2,717,283 2,743,643 0 2,743,643 0 2,743,643
TOTAL REVENUE $16,809,394 $17,338,243 $4,576,871 $21,915,114 $19,747,545 $2,167,569

EXPENDITURES
Instruction $6,837,122 $7,016,075 $5,546,063 $12,562,138 $13,097,266 $535,128

Support Services $4,202,713 $3,733,635 2,649,424 $6,383,059 $7,050,946 667,887
Enterprise and Community Services $3,314 $264 5,398 $5,662 $5,662 0

Facilities Acquisition and Construction $0 $0 0 $0 $0 0
Other Uses $791,000 $276,000 25,000 $301,000 $301,000 0

Contingencies $0 $0 0 $0 $300,000 300,000
Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance $0 $0 0 $0 $1,716,000 1,716,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $11,834,148 $11,025,974 $8,225,885 $19,251,859 $22,470,874 $3,219,015

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) $4,975,246 $6,312,269 ($3,649,013) $2,663,255 ($2,723,329) $5,386,584
Projected Year End Fund Balance $2,663,255 $0

Projected Available Year End Fund Balance $647,255

General Fund | Financial Projection
For the Period Ending February 28, 2021

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

$14.0

$16.0

LOCAL SOURCES INTERMEDIATE 
SOURCES

STATE SOURCES FEDERAL SOURCES OTHER SOURCES

M
ill

io
ns

Revenues by Source | Forecast vs. Budget

Forecast Budget

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

$14.0

M
ill

io
ns

Expenditures by Function | Forecast vs. Budget

Forecast Budget

Packet page 8 of 228



                
District CPS PES BL PMS PHS Academy Part Time KVCS Part Time

Kindergarten 100 75 4   3 18

1st 83 66 2   4 11

2nd 115  76 6   13 20

3rd 104  77 2  10 15

4th 113  88 7 18

5th 110  86 4 20

6th 114  87 11 16

7th 133 108 8 17

8th 127 91 20 16

9th 125 95 16 3 11

10th 133 95 17 7 14

11th 117 77 23 5 12 *

12th 177 85 35 46 11
Totals 141 327 14 286 352 171 61 199 0

TOTAL FULL-TIME ENROLLMENT - All Schools 1,490

Philomath School District 17J - 2020-2021 School Year -- Summary of Enrollment

School 09/21 10/19 11/16 12/14 01/25 02/16 03/15 04/19 05/17 06/21

 CPS 131 136 135 134 135 138 141 0 0 0

PES 299 299 306 308 307 314 327 0 0 0

BL 22 20 17 17 17 15 14 0 0 0

PMS 290 288 289 289 285 285 286 0 0 0

PHS 411 382 373 373 364 358 352 0 0 0

Academy 202 202 190 200 198 185 171 0 0 0
KVCS 206 204 204 202 199 201 199 0 0 0

SubTotal 1,561 1,531 1,514 1,523 1,505 1,496 1,490 0 0 0

Part-time students 53 55 54 61 60 61 0 0 0

Total Enrollment 1,561 1,584 1,569 1,577 1,566 1,556 1,551 0 0 0

Philomath School District 17J - 2019-2020 School Year -- Summary of Enrollment

School 09/16 10/21 11/18 12/16 01/27 02/24 03/16 04/20 05/18 06/15

 CPS 166 169 171 173 173 171 172 171 171 171

PES 388 385 386 389 390 391 392 394 393 393

BL 22 22 22 22 23 23 23 23 23 23

PMS 364 370 369 370 370 371 370 367 367 368

PHS 490 490 488 489 486 483 479 476 447 442
KVCS 206 204 204 204 203 206 203 201 200 200

SubTotal 1,636 1,640 1,640 1,647 1,645 1,645 1,639 1,632 1,601 1,597

Part-time students 13 11 10 7 6 8 12 7 39 40

Total Enrollment 1,649 1,651 1,650 1,654 1,651 1,653 1,651 1,639 1,640 1,637

Enrollment: 2020-21/enrollment/0920

2020 / 2021 SCHOOL YEAR

ENROLLMENT FIGURES as of: March 15, 2021

Packet page 9 of 228



Packet page 10 of 228



284.0000.9701.097.797.810  PES Food Pantry 14,503.09 (8,279.80)9,350.00 15,573.29 .00 15,573.29
284.0000.9701.097.797.811  PES BE KIND 47.11 .00.00 47.11 .00 47.11
284.0000.9701.097.797.812  PES Blodgett 5,829.37 (135.00).00 5,694.37 .00 5,694.37
284.0000.9701.097.797.813  PES Blodgett Parent Club 3,483.30 (416.51)54.00 3,120.79 .00 3,120.79
284.0000.9701.097.797.815  CPS Donations 4,210.71 (1,226.36)205.45 3,189.80 .00 3,189.80
284.0000.9701.097.797.816  PES Grants 4,946.45 (955.55)1,256.55 5,247.45 .00 5,247.45
284.0000.9701.097.797.817  CPS Field Trips - KG 298.10 277.47112.13 687.70 .00 687.70
284.0000.9701.097.797.819  PES Field Trips - 1st Grade 38.10 (112.12)112.12 38.10 .00 38.10
284.0000.9701.097.797.820  PES Field Trips - 2nd
Grade

(400.05) (101.40)101.40 (400.05) .00 (400.05)

284.0000.9701.097.797.821  PES Field Trips - 3rd Grade 260.67 .00.00 260.67 .00 260.67
284.0000.9701.097.797.822  PES Field Trips - 4th Grade (1,140.79) .00.00 (1,140.79) .00 (1,140.79)
284.0000.9701.097.797.823  PES Field Trips - 5th Grade 291.61 .00.00 291.61 .00 291.61
284.0000.9701.097.797.826  PES Field Trip Donation 4,738.84 .00.00 4,738.84 .00 4,738.84
284.0000.9701.097.797.827  PES Library 2,330.46 (30.00).00 2,300.46 .00 2,300.46
284.0000.9701.097.797.828  PES Donations-Unrestricted 5,697.35 (602.84)80.78 5,175.29 .00 5,175.29
284.0000.9701.097.797.830  PES Music 243.92 (374.75).00 (130.83) .00 (130.83)
284.0000.9701.097.797.833  PES Parent Club (2,007.77) (1,344.57)2,892.91 (459.43) .00 (459.43)
284.0000.9701.097.797.836  PES PC Special Projects .00 .00.00 .00 .00 .00
284.0000.9701.097.797.838  PES Reading Enhancement (31.77) .00.00 (31.77) .00 (31.77)
284.0000.9701.097.797.840  PES School Enhancement .00 .008.25 8.25 .00 8.25
284.0000.9701.097.797.841  PES Science 75.03 .00.00 75.03 .00 75.03
284.0000.9701.097.797.842  PES Social Committee 530.87 (616.02).00 (85.15) .00 (85.15)

Fiscal Year:   2020-2021
From: 7/1/2020 2/28/2021To:

Benton County School District 17J
Student Activities Summary Report

Print Detail Page Break by Activity

Range Beg.
Balance

Range
Expenditures

Range
Revenue

Balance Encumbrances Available Balance
Reverse Signs Subtotal By JournalExclude Encumbrances

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:47:06 PM rptStudentActivitiesSummaryReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 1

Packet page 11 of 228



284.0000.9701.097.797.845  PES Textbook Damage
Fees

65.70 .00.00 65.70 .00 65.70

284.0000.9701.097.797.847  PES Students in Need 292.02 (35.49).00 256.53 .00 256.53
284.0000.9701.097.797.849  CPS Students in Need 150.00 (95.70).00 54.30 .00 54.30
284.0000.9701.097.797.850  PES School Supplies 1,315.82 .00.00 1,315.82 .00 1,315.82

14,173.59GRAND TOTALS 45,768.14 (14,048.64) 45,893.09

End of Report

.00 45,893.09

Fiscal Year:   2020-2021
From: 7/1/2020 2/28/2021To:

Benton County School District 17J
Student Activities Summary Report

Print Detail Page Break by Activity

Range Beg.
Balance

Range
Expenditures

Range
Revenue

Balance Encumbrances Available Balance
Reverse Signs Subtotal By JournalExclude Encumbrances

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:47:06 PM rptStudentActivitiesSummaryReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 2

Packet page 12 of 228



285.0000.9701.098.798.500  PMS Apparel 573.00 .00.00 573.00 .00 573.00
285.0000.9701.098.798.501  PMS Art 983.10 (1,031.06)184.95 136.99 .00 136.99
285.0000.9701.098.798.502  PMS Athletics 3,805.96 .00.00 3,805.96 .00 3,805.96
285.0000.9701.098.798.503  PMS Band 5,882.45 (29.00).00 5,853.45 (571.00) 5,282.45
285.0000.9701.098.798.504  PMS Band Repair/Replace 1,572.76 .00.00 1,572.76 .00 1,572.76
285.0000.9701.098.798.506  PMS Choir Beginning
Balance

979.70 .00.00 979.70 .00 979.70

285.0000.9701.098.798.508  PMS Drama 9,715.60 .00.00 9,715.60 .00 9,715.60
285.0000.9701.098.798.510  PMS Library 682.45 (127.09).00 555.36 .00 555.36
285.0000.9701.098.798.511  PMS Life Skills 968.01 .00.00 968.01 (200.00) 768.01
285.0000.9701.098.798.512  PMS Lock Replacement 1,710.17 .00.00 1,710.17 .00 1,710.17
285.0000.9701.098.798.515  PMS Outdoor School 23,694.59 (29.99).00 23,664.60 (20.01) 23,644.59
285.0000.9701.098.798.516  PMS Sports/Pay-to-Play (145.00) 10.00.00 (135.00) .00 (135.00)
285.0000.9701.098.798.518  PMS Reeds (161.85) .00.00 (161.85) .00 (161.85)
285.0000.9701.098.798.519  PMS School Enhancement 2,462.26 (664.95)46.18 1,843.49 .00 1,843.49
285.0000.9701.098.798.520  PMS Science 12.14 .00.00 12.14 .00 12.14
285.0000.9701.098.798.521  PMS Shop 1,623.35 (475.55)311.25 1,459.05 (400.00) 1,059.05
285.0000.9701.098.798.522  PMS Struxness - Helping
Families

2,417.75 (420.00).00 1,997.75 .00 1,997.75

285.0000.9701.098.798.523  PMS Student Body Fees 23,471.88 (5,577.56)30.00 17,924.32 .00 17,924.32
285.0000.9701.098.798.524  PMS Suspension Account 1.50 300.00.00 301.50 .00 301.50
285.0000.9701.098.798.525  PMS Technology 877.35 .00.00 877.35 .00 877.35
285.0000.9701.098.798.527  PMS Textbook
Damage/Replacement

171.77 .00.00 171.77 .00 171.77

285.0000.9701.098.798.529  PMS Student Wellness 8,935.90 (5,000.00).00 3,935.90 .00 3,935.90

Fiscal Year:   2020-2021
From: 7/1/2020 2/28/2021To:

Benton County School District 17J
Student Activities Summary Report

Print Detail Page Break by Activity

Range Beg.
Balance

Range
Expenditures

Range
Revenue

Balance Encumbrances Available Balance
Reverse Signs Subtotal By JournalExclude Encumbrances

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:48:11 PM rptStudentActivitiesSummaryReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 1

Packet page 13 of 228



285.0000.9701.098.798.530  PMS Oregon Research
Institute

4,946.25 .00.00 4,946.25 .00 4,946.25

285.0000.9701.098.798.531  PMS Trip Club 225.08 .00.00 225.08 .00 225.08
285.0000.9701.098.798.532  PMS Health/PE 1,404.05 .00.00 1,404.05 .00 1,404.05
285.0000.9701.098.798.533  PMS Elective Rotation fee 45.00 .00(45.00) .00 .00 .00
285.0000.9701.098.798.534  PMS Battle of the Books (65.00) .00.00 (65.00) .00 (65.00)
285.0000.9701.098.798.535  PMS School Supplies 6,098.64 (3,942.55)680.00 2,836.09 (540.93) 2,295.16
285.0000.9701.098.798.536  PMS Turkey Bingo 3,343.68 (3,672.50).00 (328.82) .00 (328.82)
285.0000.9701.098.798.537  PMS Fitness 786.62 .0011.25 797.87 .00 797.87
285.0000.9701.098.798.538  PMS Engineering 600.00 .0011.25 611.25 .00 611.25

1,229.88GRAND TOTALS 107,619.16 (20,660.25) 88,188.79

End of Report

(1,731.94) 86,456.85

Fiscal Year:   2020-2021
From: 7/1/2020 2/28/2021To:

Benton County School District 17J
Student Activities Summary Report

Print Detail Page Break by Activity

Range Beg.
Balance

Range
Expenditures

Range
Revenue

Balance Encumbrances Available Balance
Reverse Signs Subtotal By JournalExclude Encumbrances

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:48:11 PM rptStudentActivitiesSummaryReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 2

Packet page 14 of 228



286.0000.9701.099.799.000  Begining Fund Balance
Student Activities

(302.41) .00.00 (302.41) .00 (302.41)

286.0000.9701.099.799.600  PHS Over/Short 185.05 .00.00 185.05 .00 185.05
286.0000.9701.099.799.601  PHS Adopt A Family 1,108.55 .00.00 1,108.55 .00 1,108.55
286.0000.9701.099.799.603  PHS AP Testing 1,448.84 40.00.00 1,488.84 .00 1,488.84
286.0000.9701.099.799.604  PHS Art 4,115.40 (1,112.34)731.59 3,734.65 (2,231.20) 1,503.45
286.0000.9701.099.799.606  PHS ASB 9,872.52 (1,731.93)409.81 8,550.40 .00 8,550.40
286.0000.9701.099.799.607  PHS Athletic Officials (2,800.46) 2,800.46.00 .00 .00 .00
286.0000.9701.099.799.610  PHS Athletic Supplies .00 .00.00 .00 .00 .00
286.0000.9701.099.799.611  PHS Athletics 10,651.45 (4,545.46).00 6,105.99 .00 6,105.99
286.0000.9701.099.799.612  PHS AV Technology 106.37 (1,384.88)1,000.00 (278.51) .00 (278.51)
286.0000.9701.099.799.613  PHS Baseball 10,986.67 (2,577.11)300.00 8,709.56 (778.00) 7,931.56
286.0000.9701.099.799.616  PHS Botany 1,437.36 .00.00 1,437.36 .00 1,437.36
286.0000.9701.099.799.617  PHS Boys Basketball 20,189.16 .00300.00 20,489.16 .00 20,489.16
286.0000.9701.099.799.618  PHS Cheerleading 1,240.95 (3,896.62)5,063.12 2,407.45 (228.08) 2,179.37
286.0000.9701.099.799.619  PHS Cinematic Art Club 443.86 .00.00 443.86 .00 443.86
286.0000.9701.099.799.620  PHS Community Service
Club-G. Lake

455.11 .00.00 455.11 .00 455.11

286.0000.9701.099.799.621  PHS Cross Country 4,503.03 .00.00 4,503.03 .00 4,503.03
286.0000.9701.099.799.622  PHS Dance Team 7,720.19 (4,093.00)2,910.00 6,537.19 .00 6,537.19
286.0000.9701.099.799.624  PHS Special District Swim 1,295.21 (1,295.21).00 .00 .00 .00
286.0000.9701.099.799.625  PHS Donation 593.01 .00100.00 693.01 .00 693.01
286.0000.9701.099.799.627  PHS Driver Education 3,125.00 .00.00 3,125.00 .00 3,125.00
286.0000.9701.099.799.632  PHS FFA .00 .00.00 .00 .00 .00

Fiscal Year:   2020-2021
From: 7/1/2020 2/28/2021To:

Benton County School District 17J
Student Activities Summary Report

Print Detail Page Break by Activity

Range Beg.
Balance

Range
Expenditures

Range
Revenue

Balance Encumbrances Available Balance
Reverse Signs Subtotal By JournalExclude Encumbrances

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:48:51 PM rptStudentActivitiesSummaryReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 1

Packet page 15 of 228



286.0000.9701.099.799.633  PHS First Team 6,222.95 (1,248.23)4,122.60 9,097.32 (1,328.27) 7,769.05
286.0000.9701.099.799.635  PHS Foods 2,391.99 (970.00)970.00 2,391.99 .00 2,391.99
286.0000.9701.099.799.636  PHS Football 4,623.27 .00110.00 4,733.27 .00 4,733.27
286.0000.9701.099.799.637  PHS Forestry 10,045.30 (103.20)775.00 10,717.10 (2,000.00) 8,717.10
286.0000.9701.099.799.638  PHS GED 8.17 .00.00 8.17 .00 8.17
286.0000.9701.099.799.639  PHS German Class 599.13 .00.00 599.13 .00 599.13
286.0000.9701.099.799.640  PHS Girls Basketball 6,216.04 (257.72)1,300.00 7,258.32 (500.00) 6,758.32
286.0000.9701.099.799.641  PHS Health Occ/Anatomy 373.48 (289.87).00 83.61 .00 83.61
286.0000.9701.099.799.642  PHS Green Team 160.04 .00.00 160.04 .00 160.04
286.0000.9701.099.799.644  PHS Life Skills 1,144.45 (275.56).00 868.89 .00 868.89
286.0000.9701.099.799.645  PHS Library 569.33 .00.00 569.33 .00 569.33
286.0000.9701.099.799.646  PHS Lifeguard 378.92 .00.00 378.92 .00 378.92
286.0000.9701.099.799.647  PHS Link Crew 1,187.99 .00.00 1,187.99 .00 1,187.99
286.0000.9701.099.799.648  PHS Lock Replacement .00 .00.00 .00 .00 .00
286.0000.9701.099.799.649  PHS Manufacturing
Technology

8,589.71 (1,750.27)1,225.00 8,064.44 (3,500.00) 4,564.44

286.0000.9701.099.799.652  PHS Misc Books 289.25 .0090.00 379.25 .00 379.25
286.0000.9701.099.799.653  PHS Music Band 1,809.38 (102.89).00 1,706.49 .00 1,706.49
286.0000.9701.099.799.654  PHS Music Choir (414.48) .00.00 (414.48) .00 (414.48)
286.0000.9701.099.799.655  PHS Music Tour (4,124.91) 15,500.00.00 11,375.09 .00 11,375.09
286.0000.9701.099.799.656  PHS National Honor
Society

1,847.54 (300.00)946.41 2,493.95 (500.00) 1,993.95

286.0000.9701.099.799.659  PHS Parking/Student
Safety

697.43 .00.00 697.43 .00 697.43

286.0000.9701.099.799.660  PHS PE Fees 279.56 .00.00 279.56 .00 279.56

Fiscal Year:   2020-2021
From: 7/1/2020 2/28/2021To:

Benton County School District 17J
Student Activities Summary Report

Print Detail Page Break by Activity

Range Beg.
Balance

Range
Expenditures

Range
Revenue

Balance Encumbrances Available Balance
Reverse Signs Subtotal By JournalExclude Encumbrances

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:48:51 PM rptStudentActivitiesSummaryReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 2

Packet page 16 of 228



286.0000.9701.099.799.661  PHS Peer Counseling 648.87 (150.00).00 498.87 (400.00) 98.87
286.0000.9701.099.799.664  PHS PHS Pay to Play .00 .00.00 .00 .00 .00
286.0000.9701.099.799.665  PHS Preschool 2,995.62 (300.00)50.00 2,745.62 .00 2,745.62
286.0000.9701.099.799.666  PHS Prom 3,448.93 .00.00 3,448.93 .00 3,448.93
286.0000.9701.099.799.667  PHS PSAT Fee Collections 1,017.81 .00.00 1,017.81 .00 1,017.81
286.0000.9701.099.799.668  PHS Robotics .00 .00.00 .00 .00 .00
286.0000.9701.099.799.670  PHS Scholarship 700.00 (500.00).00 200.00 .00 200.00
286.0000.9701.099.799.672  PHS Scholarship - Steve
Moos

.00 .00.00 .00 .00 .00

286.0000.9701.099.799.673  PHS Scholarship - Xerxes
Das

262.65 .00.63 263.28 .00 263.28

286.0000.9701.099.799.674  PHS School Enhancement 9,123.08 (5,094.70)892.94 4,921.32 .00 4,921.32
286.0000.9701.099.799.675  PHS School of Business 5,063.19 (509.74).00 4,553.45 (455.05) 4,098.40
286.0000.9701.099.799.676  PHS Science 19.40 .00.00 19.40 .00 19.40
286.0000.9701.099.799.678  PHS Soccer Boys 3,482.86 .00.00 3,482.86 (2,360.95) 1,121.91
286.0000.9701.099.799.679  PHS Soccer Girls 2,050.87 .00200.00 2,250.87 (1,393.15) 857.72
286.0000.9701.099.799.680  PHS Softball 9,991.23 .00636.00 10,627.23 .00 10,627.23
286.0000.9701.099.799.681  PHS Spanish Class 1,656.40 .00.00 1,656.40 .00 1,656.40
286.0000.9701.099.799.682  PHS Youth Transition
Program

1,504.48 .00.00 1,504.48 .00 1,504.48

286.0000.9701.099.799.683  PHS Standard PE (5.00) .00.00 (5.00) .00 (5.00)
286.0000.9701.099.799.684  PHS Student Body Fee 210.00 .00.00 210.00 .00 210.00
286.0000.9701.099.799.686  PHS Swim Team 1,609.84 .00.00 1,609.84 .00 1,609.84
286.0000.9701.099.799.687  PHS Tennis 12,151.01 (1,369.56).00 10,781.45 (667.00) 10,114.45
286.0000.9701.099.799.688  PHS Tennis Court Fund .00 .00.00 .00 .00 .00

Fiscal Year:   2020-2021
From: 7/1/2020 2/28/2021To:

Benton County School District 17J
Student Activities Summary Report

Print Detail Page Break by Activity

Range Beg.
Balance

Range
Expenditures

Range
Revenue

Balance Encumbrances Available Balance
Reverse Signs Subtotal By JournalExclude Encumbrances

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:48:51 PM rptStudentActivitiesSummaryReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 3

Packet page 17 of 228



286.0000.9701.099.799.689  PHS Theatre 2,328.13 (129.00).00 2,199.13 .00 2,199.13
286.0000.9701.099.799.690  PHS Track 2,870.53 (65.00).00 2,805.53 .00 2,805.53
286.0000.9701.099.799.691  PHS ASB Leadership Camp .00 .00.00 .00 .00 .00
286.0000.9701.099.799.693  PHS Volleyball 2,433.74 (220.50).00 2,213.24 .00 2,213.24
286.0000.9701.099.799.695  PHS Warrior Wellness 2,087.34 (348.67).00 1,738.67 (300.00) 1,438.67
286.0000.9701.099.799.696  PHS Wrestling 2,016.89 .00.00 2,016.89 .00 2,016.89
286.0000.9701.099.799.697  PHS Yearbook 36,907.53 (13,010.00)7,625.00 31,522.53 (500.00) 31,022.53
286.0000.9701.099.799.698  PHS Lagestee PTP Waiver
Scholarship

3,548.85 .00.00 3,548.85 .00 3,548.85

286.0000.9701.099.799.700  PHS  Mr. PHS .00 .00.00 .00 .00 .00
286.0000.9701.099.799.704  PHS Booster Club Donation 451.89 .00.00 451.89 .00 451.89
286.0000.9701.099.799.705  HS Student Transcript Fees 445.81 .00172.00 617.81 .00 617.81

29,930.10GRAND TOTALS 228,291.35 (29,291.00) 228,930.45

End of Report

(17,141.70) 211,788.75

Fiscal Year:   2020-2021
From: 7/1/2020 2/28/2021To:

Benton County School District 17J
Student Activities Summary Report

Print Detail Page Break by Activity

Range Beg.
Balance

Range
Expenditures

Range
Revenue

Balance Encumbrances Available Balance
Reverse Signs Subtotal By JournalExclude Encumbrances

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:48:51 PM rptStudentActivitiesSummaryReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 4

Packet page 18 of 228



Packet page 19 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 1 of 25 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Title: Annual Report 2019-20 

 

Control Information 
 

Control Item Details 
Owner/Curator Jamon Ellingson 
Policy #  
Supersedes None 
File Location www.kvschool.org 
Board approval 
date 

 

 
 

Revision History 
 

Revision Date Revision Description Originator 
A 2/12/2020 Original J.Ellingson/ 

M.Castle 
    

    

Packet page 20 of 228

http://www.kvschool.org/


Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 2 of 25 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Table of Contents: 
1.1. Summary: .....................................................................................................................3 
1.2. District Charter Annual Report Requirements: ..............................................................3 

1.2.1. Summary data on the progress toward meeting its academic goals and objectives  
including State assessment information.  ..........................................................................3 
1.2.2. The audited financial statements of KVCS, including proofs of insurance.  ........... 10 
1.2.3. Any statements from the public charter school that show the results of all 
operations and transactions affecting the financial status of the public charter school 
during the preceding  annual audit period for the school.  .............................................. 10 
1.2.4. An electronic copy of any balance sheet containing a summary of the assets and 
liabilities of the public charter school and related operating budget documents as of the 
closing date of   the preceding annual audit period for the school.  ................................ 10 
1.2.5. Policy development issues.  .................................................................................. 11 
1.2.6. Student attendance and student discipline information.  ........................................ 12 
1.2.7. Volunteer involvement information ........................................................................ 12 
1.2.8. Parental survey results  ......................................................................................... 12 
1.2.9. Evidence of required insurance coverage  ............................................................. 13 
1.2.10. New and revised policies and procedures adopted by the KVCS Board and have 
not previously been provided to the District  ................................................................... 13 
1.2.11. All information necessary to make a determination of whether KVCS is in 
compliance  with the Charter School Act  ....................................................................... 13 
1.2.12. All non-routine maintenance, repairs and improvements made during the previous 
year and the cost thereof, including the value of in-kind labor and materials.  ................ 18 
1.2.13. The annual report shall also include the results of grade level performance testing 
and a summary of all corrective action plans and their effectiveness.  ............................ 18 

1.3. Appendix A: Parent Survey Report  .......................................................................... 19 
1.4. Appendix B:  Financial Audit Report  .......................................................................... 23 
1.5. Appendix C: New or Updated Policies  ...................................................................... 42 
Appendix D: Proof of Insurance  ....................................................................................... 87 

Packet page 21 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 3 of 25 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1.1. Summary: 
 
 

The Kings Valley Charter School completed the 19th year of operation in the 2019-2020 school 
year. The school has been successful by many measures. The current report year is no 
exception. The school has identified areas of weakness and is regularly working to 
address these areas.  This report discusses the efforts to improve school 
performance. The school is producing favorable test scores in many areas and is financially 
stable. Enrollment is currently at 202 students (February 10, 2021). 

 
This is an important document for compliance with the various regulations, and hopefully a 
useful tool for all staff and boards to have a summary of compliance and progress. 

 
KVCS w i l l  provide other supporting documents as needed or requested to support findings. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 22 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 4 of 25 

 

 

1.2. District Charter Annual Report Requirements: 
 

1.2.1. Summary data on the progress toward meeting its academic goals and objectives 
including state assessment information. 

 

School-based Assessments (Easy CBM, DRA, iReady) No state assessments for 2019-20 due to COVID 
19.  Reporting on prior years can be found in the 2018-19 Annual report. 

 
Elementary school is using Easy CBM for Language Arts; iReady and Easy CBM for Math 
 
Language Arts Assessments, Elementary 
Easy CBM data for Elementary, Fall & Winter 
Winter Assessment window was through Feb 22, 2019. 

 
 
Key: High Risk (red) 0-10th; Some Risk (yellow) 11th-40th; Low Risk (white) 41-99 

Packet page 23 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 5 of 25 

 

 

Easy CBM “Risk” for Elementary (Fall 2019) 
 

In comparison to the Spring of 2019, here were the 
Easy CBM levels of “risk” in June 2019 for K-5.   
DRA Assessment for Elementary, Fall 2019 

 
A pivot-table is available to look closely at grade level and teacher-specific data if desired.  Easy CBM is 
being used as the main assessment tool in Elementary and Middle School now. 
 
 
  

Packet page 24 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 6 of 25 

 

 

 

Language Arts Assessment, Middle School 
 
In 2019-2020, KVCS is using the Easy CBM Assessment for students in grade 6-8 
 

 
Key: High Risk (red) 0-10th; Some Risk (yellow) 11th-40th; Low Risk (white) 41-99 
Combined “Risk” totals for Middle School: 
 

Plan 
for 

improvement Elementary:  The addition of our new language arts curriculum, NG Reach is showing 
promise in its first year of use.  We are excited that teachers are accessing online professional 
development tools to improve our utilization of this curriculum.  While the data is showing drops in 
students’ achievement, this is to be expected as new curriculum is learned.  Due to Covid 19, the data is 
not complete.  Our interventions are in place and working with a solid core team providing individual and 
small group supports.   
  
Plan for Improvement Middle School 
Our interventions are in place and working with a solid core team providing individual and small group 
supports.   Students that struggle are receiving specialized instruction and support. Within each classroom 
teachers are providing individualized support to address needs.  We now have a dedicated teacher for 
middle school language arts program starting in the 2019-20 school year.    

Packet page 25 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 7 of 25 

 

 

 
Mathematics Assessments, All Grades 
 
KVCS is using Easy CBM (Elementary) and iReady for diagnostic assessment (Elem/Middle), and iReady for 
progress monitoring (Elem/Middle).  

Easy CBM for Elementary 
 

Packet page 26 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 8 of 25 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Packet page 27 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 9 of 25 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
I-Ready for Elementary 

Packet page 28 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 10 of 25 

 

 

 

Packet page 29 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 11 of 25 

 

 

  

Packet page 30 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 12 of 25 

 

 

iReady for Middle School 

 

Packet page 31 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 13 of 25 

 

 

 
Plan for improvement (Elementary/Middle Math): 
 
We are seeing great improvement in math with the implementation of our new I-ready program.  
Teachers continue to access professional development to successfully deliver and assess efficacy.   The 
online tools are useful; our ability to monitor progress and adjust student levels has improved greatly. 
The 2020-21 school year is showing many students making great gains.  We are excited to see how this 
program increases student success and improves readiness for our rigorous math courses in high school.  
 
High School Math progress:  High school students’ math “risk” is evaluated on 2 criteria: 

1. Are they enrolled in the math course considered “On track” for the grade level; “Above” or 
“Below” is relative to that course. 

a. Algebra 1 = Grade 9 “on track” 
b. Geometry = Grade 10 “on track” 
c. Algebra 2 = Grade 11 “on track” 
d. Pre-Calculus or AP Calculus = Grade 12 (these are considered “Above” since they are 

optional) 

Packet page 32 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 14 of 25 

 

 

 
2. Are they passing the course at the first quarter or semester? If not, they will have a “Below” 

rating. 

 
Based on first Quarter Grades (October 31) and S1 courses, the following were the percentages for the 
current high school population (includes middle school students taking high school courses; does not 
include students who have completed math credits or who are not enrolled in math courses).   
Quarter 1      Semester 1                             
% Below HS  64.44%   48.98% -15.46% 
% On HS  18.37%   26.53% 8.16% 
% Above HS  18.37%   24.49% 6.12% 
5 students showed improvement in math from  Q1-S1 grades.  
 
There was no state testing for high school math in 2019-2020 
 
Plan for improvement (High School Math):  Due to the number of students who are not working “on” 
grade level, we have added an additional ½ pace algebra course utilizing an online program called 
Odysseyware.  We are evaluating the use of a program called iXL to do diagnostics for new/struggling 
students to determine levels and where “holes” of understanding may be.  This program is directly 
aligned with our Big Ideas Curriculum.  Students are also being given the option to complete homework 
problems through iXL, which allows us to see how they are doing on the concepts being taught. All 
Algebra 1 class students are set up in iXL, and some Geometry and Algebra 2 students. A “slower paced” 
Algebra 1 course has been established for S2, and many students working on prealgebra or struggling in 
Algebra 1 have been shifted to this course.   We are hopeful that the iXL program will provide targeted 
progress monitoring for High School, which we have not had before.  
 
Plan for Improvement High School English Language Arts 
 
No Essential Skills or State Assessment data for 2019-20.  We continue to challenge students by 
providing access to Advanced Placement courses.  We are also providing a writing support course for 
students who need individualized and targeted instruction.  Funding provided through High School 
Success Grant allows us to plan during our weekly meetings to ensure each student is getting the specific 
help they need for a successful path to graduation.   
 
  

Packet page 33 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 15 of 25 

 

 

 
 

1.2.2. The audited financial statements of KVCS, including proofs of insurance. 
 

The audited financial statements are in Appendix B.  The proofs of insurance 
documents are in Appendix D. 

 
1.2.3. Any statements from the public charter school that show the results of all operations 

and transactions affecting the financial status of the public charter school during 
the preceding annual audit period for the school. 

 

The audited financial statements are in Appendix B. 
 

1.2.4. An electronic copy of any balance sheet containing a summary of the assets and 
liabilities of the public charter school and related operating budget documents as 
of the closing date of the preceding annual audit period for the school. 

 

An email with our audited financial statements was sent in February to Bill Mancuso and is 
attached to this document. 

 
1.2.5. Policy development issues. 

All Policy Adjustments for 2019-20 School year aligned with district updates.  No KVCS 
policy adjustments were made. 

 
 
 
  

Packet page 34 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 16 of 25 

 

 

 

1.2.6. Student attendance and student discipline information. 
 

Elementary Behavior Incidents Through February 2020 

This graph reflects 377 incidents in Elementary school. 

 

 

 

  

Packet page 35 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 17 of 25 

 

 

Middle/High Behavior Incidents 

This graph reflects 120 incidents in Middle or High School  

 

Plan for improvement (behavior):   

Our PBIS team is working diligently to take steps to reduce challenging behaviors.  Teachers are 
trained in Collaborative Problem Solving and classroom management techniques as well as 
students are taught school wide expectations.  KVCS has added a part-time Dean of Students 
through funding from the Student Success Act to support and address student needs.   

All staff have been trained in the behavior referral process to improve data collection that helps 
guide decision making school wide. 

 

  

Packet page 36 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 18 of 25 

 

 

Injury Incidents 
In November, the office established a new form for reporting injuries sent to the office.  
December-February data is below. We have graphs for each month if needed.  Injuries are 
evaluated and any unsafe conditions are corrected as needed. 

From Dec-Feb there were 103 incidents documented 

 

 

 

 

The Great Kindness Challenge 
We participated in “The Great Kindness 
Challenge” for the first time.  The goal 
was to improve the social climate of the 
school, and help build connections 

between Elementary, Middle, and High School students.    

 
 
 
 
 

1.2.7. Volunteer involvement information 
 

KVCS staff have worked to establish a more efficient way of documenting volunteer 
numbers and hours.  The new “HelpCounter” website is helping with volunteer 
paperwork, areas of interest, and collection of data. A web app is also available for 
volunteering that happens off-site or after hours, such as sports.  Volunteer hours for 
2019-20 are significantly lower due to cancellation of our school auction as a result 
of Covid-19 restrictions. 

Packet page 37 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 19 of 25 

 

 

 
. 
 

 
 

1.2.8. Parental survey results 
 

No Parent surveys for 2019-20 due to Covid 19.  Survey results from previous years 
are provided.  KVCS surveys for 2020-21 have focused mainly on family needs and 
planning for distance and in person learning. 

 
1.2.9. Evidence of required insurance coverage 

 

See appendix D. 
 

1.2.10. New and revised policies and procedures adopted by the KVCS Board and have not 
previously been provided to the District 

 

No policy changes fo 2019-20 school year, other than acknowledgement of key district 
policies. 

 
1.2.11. All information necessary to make a determination of whether KVCS is in 

compliance with the Charter School Act. 
 

(a) 338.015 Legislative intent; goals. 
 

The KVCS has the following evidence towards meeting the intent and goals of charter schools: 
 

(1) Increase student learning and achievement; 
 

Packet page 38 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 20 of 25 

 

 

Results for Student Achievement are found in See 1.2.1 (b)  
 

(2) Increase choices of learning opportunities for students; 
 

The small enrollment, K-12 environment, and curricular approach are unique in the area. 
In the KVCS attendance range, there is one private religious school in Corvallis, Alsea 
Public Schools, and the Perrydale Public School outside of Dallas that offer a K-12 
configuration. To the best of our knowledge, the academic program is unique in the area 
also. The KVCS is utilizing multi-age classrooms. The local rural environment provides 
opportunities for hands-on work in nature as we partner with different organizations to 
make the most of our setting through gardening, stream restoration, and building projects. 
Field trips are an important part of providing learning opportunities at all grade levels, 
including Outdoor School for grade 6 and overnight field trips for high school students.  In 
High School, “College Now” opportunities have been recently added to provide students 
with college credit.  Extended Opportunity in partnership with LBCC and Advanced 
Placement high school curriculum at early grades to enable gains at all student abilities (see 
Section 1.2.1 b. Nationally Normed Tests) and prepare them for success at the college 
level.  Students are also given opportunity to take a CLEP exam (College Level 
Examination Program by the College Board) for American Literature, which could be 
accepted at colleges.  
The KVCS has recently added CTE programs to improve student outcomes and give more 
options.  Our Culinary program has seen great success and a fantastic addition to our 
school We hope to add more programs in the near future including a Natural Resource 
Program focusing on agriculture in the 20/21 school year 

  
(3) Better meet individual student academic needs and interests; 

 
The KVCS is using the National Geographic Literacy Program NG Reach and an 
individualized approach to math to ensure students have access to academic curriculum that 
fits their abilities and needs. Hands- on projects and integrated academics with art projects are 
an important method for the KVCS to keep students engaged.  New math curriculum, 
including iReady Math and Big Ideas Mathematics, is showing great promise for student 
success and providing insight into student progress that we have not had previously. 

 
(4) Build stronger working relationships among educators, parents and other community 

members. 
 
 

We provide solid evidence of a strong volunteer community in our monthly reports to the 
the board. Volunteers are present in our classrooms, in reading remediation work, “project 
days,” field trips, building upkeep, after school activities, and fundraising. 

 
The KVCS students are involved in restoration projects and have established great 
partnerships with Benton County, Luckiamute Watershed Council, OSU Extension, ODFW, 

Packet page 39 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 21 of 25 

 

 

and local landowners.  KVCS hosted the 4-H Wildlife Stewards in May 2019.  Over 250 
students visited our school for this amazing event. 

 
The best collaboration with educators is the Special Education collaboration with the 
Philomath District.  This is likely a model arrangement and is producing very good results. 
The KVCS has benefited by having experienced SPED teachers and consultants in the 
building.  Collaboration with local programs continues to grow as we have developed 
partnerships with Luckiamute Valley Charter School, Jackson Street Youth Shelter, 
Strengthening Rural Families, Benton County Health Department and Corvallis 
Environmental Center.  
 
Teachers have worked to develop relationships with LBCC to improve opportunities for 
students. These include CLEP testing, Extended Opportunity and College Now credits, as 
well as our CTE program. 

 
(5) Encourage the use of different and innovative learning methods; 

 
The KVCS has repackaged tried and true methods in innovative ways.  For example, multiage 
classrooms have been in place since the beginning of public education. So has self-paced 
learning, hands-on learning, and art integration. The way the KVCS applies these techniques 
could be considered innovative. 

 
(6) Provide opportunities in small learning environments for flexibility and innovation, which 

may be applied, if proven effective, to other public schools; 
 

The Philomath School District has given the KVCS plenty of space and opportunity to 
innovate and experiment.  The KVCS has consistently produced good results on tests and 
surveys.    

 
(7) Create new professional opportunities for teachers; 

 
The teachers at the KVCS have access to funds for college tuition. The KVCS is aggressive in 
ensuring students are achieving at optimum levels which is a unique experience for teachers. 
Staff at KVCS have access to meaningful professional development opportunities. 

 
(8) Establish additional forms of accountability for schools; and 

 
Staff and board have developed additional accountability rubrics. These have included ethics 
of excellence, service learning, citizenship, listening, and behaviors.  Staff are reviewing new 
methods of measuring student readiness and school accountability.  Specifically, methods to 
evaluate middle and high school readiness.  

 
(9) Create innovative measurement tools. [1999 c.200 §1] 

 
The KVCS has an accountability plan that is similar in thoroughness to private industry.   The 

Packet page 40 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 22 of 25 

 

 

10 years of data of direct surveys of parents and students are of high value now. There are no 
public schools to benchmark with.  The KVCS implements traditional measurements and uses 
data with staff very well. 

 

 
(b) 338.125 Student admissions; fund-raising activities; online courses. 
The KVCS conducts a lottery every time an opening occurs. The KVCS is careful not to 
gather information that would prejudice the lotteries.  The lotteries always have a minimum of 
two people and the public is welcome (only a few times have parents been present). 

 
The KVCS charges no fees, and all fundraising is voluntary.  Our Parent Teacher Organization 
performs high-quality fund-raising efforts throughout the year. 

 
There has been an an increasing need to bring more online curriculum to provide diverse 
opportunities for students.  Often students will take an online course for credit recovery or 
because the KVCS does not offer a necessary credit during the time the student will be 
enrolled at the KVCS.  Occasionally a student might select an online course based on an 
interest in a specific area not offered at KVCS.  We are continuing our evaluation and 
implementation of this type of program. 

 
(c) 338.135 Employees; licensure and registration requirements; collective bargaining; 

prohibition on waiver of right to sponsor charter school. (1) Employee assignment to 
a public charter school shall be voluntary. 

The KVCS met all the licensing and FTE requirements in the 2019-20 school year. The 
Philomath District personnel verify this every year. 

 
No Philomath teachers are on leave of absence to work at the KVCS. 

 
 

(d) 338.145 Responsibility for student transportation services; costs. 
The District has enabled the KVCS to provide transportation at the reimbursed rate. 

 
 

(e) Federal law 
 

The KVCS had no issues in relation to Federal Law. Our Federal Lunch program had no 
issues in reporting and compliance.  No Title I funds were allocated to the KVCS. No 
restricted revenue from the Federal Government was distributed to KVCS in this school year. 

 
(f) ORS 192.410 (Definitions for ORS 192.410 to 192.505) to 192.505 (Exempt and 

nonexempt public record to be separated) (public records law); 
 

The KVCS makes an attempt to publish any public records on the KVCS website.  All student 
records and accounting are kept in fire proof cabinets within a locked room. 

 
 

(g) ORS 192.610 (Definitions for ORS 192.610 to 192.690) to 192.690 (Exceptions to ORS 
192.610 to 192.690) (public meetings law); 

Packet page 41 of 228

http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/192.410
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/192.505
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/192.505
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/192.610
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/192.690
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/192.690


Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 23 of 25 

 

 

Public board meetings are announced electronically on a list that includes media. Minutes and 
board packets are published on the KVCS website. 

 
The Kings Valley Charter School had the following closed executive board meetings: 

There were no closed executive board meetings in the 2019-20 School year. 

ORS 297.405 (Definitions for ORS 297.020, 297.230, 297.405 to 297.740 and 297.990) to 
297.555 (Short title) and 297.990 (Penalties) (Municipal Audit Law); 

 
The audit was acceptable and is included in appendix B. The KVCS used the same auditor as 
the District. 

 
(h) ORS 181.534 (Criminal records check), 326.603 (Authority of school districts and 

schools to obtain fingerprints and criminal records check of employees and 
contractors), 326.607 (Authority of school districts and schools to obtain criminal 
records check of volunteers and applicants for employment), 342.223 (Criminal 
records check) and 342.232 (Employment pending result of check) (criminal records 
checks); 

 
All employees completed background checks through the district or TSPC. All volunteers 
were background checked through approved methods. 

 
(i) ORS 337.150 (School board and charter school duty to provide textbooks) 

(textbooks); 
 

All textbooks were provided.  Students are not charged any fees at the KVCS. 
 

(j) ORS 339.141 (Tuition prohibited for regular school program), 339.147 (When tuition 
authorized) and 339.155 (Prohibitions of certain fees as condition of admission) 
(tuition and fees); 

 
The KVCS did not charge tuition or any other fees. The school made a significant investment 
in new textbooks/curriculum for the 2018-19 and 2019-20 school year. 

 
(k) ORS 659.850 (Discrimination in education prohibited), 659.855 (Sanctions for 

noncompliance with discrimination prohibitions) and 659.860 (Enforcement of ORS 
659.850) (discrimination); 

 
The KVCS conducted random lotteries and does not gather prejudicial information from 
lottery participants.  The KVCS posts nondiscriminatory statements and Civil Rights 
complaint process as required by the Federal Meal program. 

 
(l)  ORS 30.260 (Definitions for ORS 30.260 to 30.300) to 30.300 (ORS 30.260 to 30.300 

exclusive) (tort claims); 
 

The KVCS does not have any active tort claims currently.  

Packet page 42 of 228

http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/297.405
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/297.555
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/297.990
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/181.534
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/326.603
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/326.603
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/326.603
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/326.607
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/326.607
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/342.223
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/342.223
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/342.232
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/337.150
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.141
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.147
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.147
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.155
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/659.850
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/659.855
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/659.855
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/659.860
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/659.860
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/30.260
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/30.300
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/30.300


Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 24 of 25 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

(m) Health and safety statutes and rules; 
 

The Benton County Health inspector inspected the kitchen and water system twice in the 
school year.  All areas were in good order. A new water system has been installed.  All 
improvements and changes are at the guidance of county and state agencies. 

 
(n) Any statute or rule that is listed in the charter; 

 
No other statute or rule is listed in the charter beyond this list. 

 
(o) The statewide assessment system developed by the Department of Education for 

mathematics, science and English under ORS 329.485 (Statewide assessment system) 
(2); 

 
KVCS participated and had many areas of success with this system of testing. 

 
(p) ORS 329.045 (Revision of Common Curriculum Goals, performance indicators, 

diploma requirements, Essential Learning Skills and academic content standards) 
(academic content standards and instruction); 

 
The best evidence of compliance is continued strong scores on assessments tests. The KVCS 
is using LBL ESD provided software to track the graduation requirements and Essential 
Learning Skills.  The master schedule including teachers’ assignments and NCES course codes 
are all part of this system and reviewed in detail by the Philomath District staff. 

 
(q) ORS 329.496 (Physical education participation) (physical education); 

 
We are meeting this requirement and we are evaluating the various challenges related to the 
increased minutes.   

 
(r) Any statute or rule that establishes requirements for instructional time provided by a 

school during each day or during a year; 
 

The KVCS met the required days of instruction for each grade level. 
 

(s) ORS 339.250 (Duty of student to comply with rules) (12) (prohibition on infliction of 
corporal punishment); 

 
The KVCS consulted with the district on suspensions and disciplinary actions with staff in 
regard to this section. 

 
(t) ORS 339.370 (Definitions for ORS 339.370 to 339.400), 339.372 (Policies of school 

boards on reporting of child abuse and sexual conduct), 339.388 (Report of child 
abuse or sexual conduct) and 339.400 (Training on prevention and identification) 
(reporting of child abuse and training on prevention and identification of child 
abuse); 

 

Packet page 43 of 228

http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/329.485
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/329.045
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/329.045
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/329.496
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.250
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.370
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.372
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.372
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.388
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.388
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.400


Kings Valley Charter School 

Kings Valley Charter School 
Page 25 of 25 

 

 

All staff working at KVCS took the mandatory training.  Compliance was tracked by using the 
training system provided by the PACE (OSBA insurance company) 

 
 
 

(u) ORS 329.451 (High school diploma) (high school diploma, modified diploma, 
extended diploma and alternative certificate); 

 
The KVCS is offering these diplomas.  Compliance is monitored by District staff.  Special 
education students are receiving District services that include graduation planning. 

 
(v) ORS chapter 657 (Employment Department Law); 

 
No issues came up under this requirement. 

 
(w) ORS 339.326 (Actions after receipt of notice under ORS 419A.305); 

 
We received no notices. 

 
1.2.12. All non-routine maintenance, repairs and improvements made during the previous 

year and the cost thereof, including the value of in-kind labor and materials. 
 

This is no longer a requirement with the property sale, although upgrades to facilities are made 
as needed. Information about maintenance, repairs and improvements can be provided upon 
request. 

 
1.2.13. The annual report shall also include the results of grade level performance testing 

and a summary of all corrective action plans and their effectiveness. 
 

All test results were posted in section 1.2 (a). 

Packet page 44 of 228

http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/329.451
http://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/339.326


Kings Valley Charter School  

 Kings Valley Charter School  
 Page 26 of 34  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.3. Appendix A: Parent Survey Report 
 
 

Title:  Parent Survey Report June 2018 
Control Information 

Control Item Details 
Owner/Curator Jamon Ellingson 
Policy # KVK draft 
Supersedes None 
File Location www.kvschool.org 
Board approval 
date 

 

 

Revision History 
Revision Date Revision Description Originator 
A  2019 – No Report due to Covid 19  
B    
C    

 
 

Packet page 45 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School  

 Kings Valley Charter School  
 Page 27 of 34  

 Parent Survey Report June 2018 

Summary:  
 
Our Parent Survey was re-structured in June 2018 to separate comments related to 
students in Elementary, Middle and High school.  This allowed parents to reflect on 
different experiences of multiple children at those age groupings.  It allows us to consider 
what areas to address at those levels as well 
 

Comments on parent comments --  
The parent comments and concerns should be discussed. Areas of concern will be shared with 
appropriate staff to identify areas that need improvement.  

Comparison to previous years:  
The data from these tables is from June of each year unless otherwise noted. There were 42 
responses.  Comparable to 41 in 2017. 
 
General Satisfaction 
 

Parent 
Survey 
Data 

2003-
2004 

2005-
2006 
(Mar) 

2006-
2007 

2007-
2008 

2008-
2009 

2009-
2010 

June  June June June Nov June June  June 
 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
Highly 
Satisfied 

    55% 51% 29% 53% 46% 53% 44% 51% 46% 53% 49% 26% 

Very 
Satisfied 
and highly 
satisfied 

85% 95% 83% 89% 86% 85% 84% 83% 77% 72% 84% 76% 78% 60% 

Satisfied 
and higher 

100% 100% 100% 100% 95% 100% 100% 100% 98% 94% 98% 98% 95% 93% 

 
Jamon’s comments:  
This is similar to previous years.  There was 1 unsatisfied parent out of 42 responses.    

 

Packet page 46 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School  

 Kings Valley Charter School  
 Page 28 of 34  

My Child is Receiving Individualized Education:  
  2007-

2008 
2008-
2009 

 2009-
2010 

Jun-
11 

Jun-
12 

Jun-
13 

Jun-
14 

Nov 
2015 

June 
2016 

June 
2017 

Noticeably 29% 38% 63% 42% 35% 37% 43% 31% 37% 41% 
regularly and noticeably 34% 79% 94% 88% 84% 86% 91% 78% 82% 91% 

 
June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Noticeably 27% 15% 29% 50% 
Noticeably 
and Regularly 

73% 54% 65% 83% 

Total 
Surveyed 

26 13 17 6 

 
Jamon’s comments:   
Our number is down from previous years.  The information worth noting is our ability to separate the schools. We have made 
adjustments in our middle school as a response to this data.  Dedicated teaching staff have been added to our middle school.  
  
Child is Completing Work that Demonstrates Learning 
  2007-

2008 
2008-
2009 

 2009-
2010 

Jun-
11 

Jun-
12 

Jun-
13 

Jun-
14 

Nov 
2015 

June 
2016 

June 
2017 

Noticeably 29% 48% 53% 42% 35% 33% 42% 38% 43% 39% 
regularly and noticeably 88% 91% 91% 96% 86% 80% 88% 84% 84% 97% 

 
June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Noticeably 35% 15% 24% 33% 
Noticeably 
and Regularly 

88% 69% 65% 83% 

Total 
Surveyed 

26 13 17 6 

 
Jamon’s comments:   

Elementary is performing the same as previous years.  Sharing student work with home could be a 
strategy that we work with.  More discussion should happen here 

 
Child’s Work is Valued by Staff: 
  2007-

2008 
2008-
2009 

 2009-
2010 

Jun-
11 

Jun-
12 

Jun-
13 

Jun-
14 

Nov 
2015 

June 
2016 

June 
2017 

Noticeably 43% 49% 71% 50% 44% 37% 39% 47% 47% 48% 
regularly and noticeably 95% 88% 93% 88% 88% 86% 88% 93% 96% 95% 

 
June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Noticeably 54% 15% 35% 67% 
Noticeably 
and Regularly 

100% 77% 71% 100% 

Total 
Surveyed 

26 13 17 6 

Jamon’s comments:  

Packet page 47 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School  

 Kings Valley Charter School  
 Page 29 of 34  

Our elementary school and preschool have shown great success with recognizing student work.  Having 
bulletin boards to regularly display great work is a great way to do this.  Middle and high school staff 
will brainstorm ideas to improve in this area.  Our museums and science fair are two examples of 
recognizing students for their great work. 
  

Opportunities to Show or Exhibit Work: 
  2007-

2008 
2008-
2009 

 2009-
2010 

Jun-
11 

Jun-
12 

Jun-
13 

Jun-
14 

Nov 
2015 

June 
2016 

June 
2017 

Noticeably 62% 52% 70% 58% 51% 49% 34% 43% 48% 45% 
regularly and noticeably 100% 100% 98% 96% 91% 89% 95% 87% 88% 85% 

 
June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Noticeably 50% 8% 41% 33% 
Noticeably 
and Regularly 

88% 77% 53% 83% 

Total 
Surveyed 

26 13 17 6 

 
Jamon’s comments:  Similar to previous  
    
Positive Relationships with Peers 

  2007-
2008 

2008-
2009 

 2009-
2010 

Jun-
11 

Jun-
12 

Jun-
13 

Jun-
14 

 
Nov 
2015 

June 
2016 

June 
2017 

Noticeably 49% 32% 50% 21% 40% 26% 37% 44% 45% 32% 
regularly and noticeably 90% 88% 84% 88% 91% 89% 86% 89% 86% 89% 

 
June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Noticeably 42% 8% 41% 33% 
Noticeably 
and Regularly 

92% 62% 82% 100% 

Total 
Surveyed 

26 13 17 6 
 

 
Jamon’s comments: 
Good to see the positive relationships in elementary and high school.  We have added programming to 
improve middle school relationships.  Including the social emotional learning curriculum and Girl’s 
circle and Boy’s Council 
 
Positive Relationships with Adults 
  2007-

2008 
2008-
2009 

 2009-
2010 

Jun-
11 

Jun-
12 

Jun-
13 

Jun-
14 

Nov 
2015 

June 
2016 

June 
2017 

Noticeably 55% 36% 59% 42% 49% 33% 43% 56% 61% 46% 
regularly and noticeably 95% 91% 96% 100% 93% 93% 88% 90% 92% 96% 

 
June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Noticeably 62% 8% 35% 83% 

Packet page 48 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School  

 Kings Valley Charter School  
 Page 30 of 34  

Noticeably 
and Regularly 

96% 69% 76% 100% 

Total 
Surveyed 

26 13 17 6 

 
Jamon’s comments: 
 Elementary relationships amongst elementary students and adults have good results.  Middle and high 
school students has opportunity for growth.  As stated above we have added programming to improve in 
the areas and will continue to brainstorm other means for building positive relationships with adults.  
Our LEAD program has been a valuable and exciting program that encourages relationships and service 
to our community. 
 

 Comparison to previous years:  
  The new structure of the survey also allowed for feedback on the following areas: 
 
Social Climate: 
 

June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Highly Satisfied 12% 0% 18% 33% 
Satisfied, Very Satisfied, 
Highly Satisfied 

81% 62% 88% 100% 

Total Surveyed 26 13 17 6 
 
Academic Program: 
 

June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Highly Satisfied 19% 0% 18% 33% 
Satisfied, Very Satisfied, 
Highly Satisfied 

96% 85% 88% 83% 

Total Surveyed 26 13 17 6 
 
Communication from school to home: 
 

June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Highly Satisfied 19% 0% 12% 33% 
Satisfied, Very Satisfied, 
Highly Satisfied 

81% 69% 76% 100% 

Total Surveyed 26 13 17 6 
 
Child’s Social Experience at KVCS: 
 

June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Highly Satisfied 15% 0% 29% 33% 
Satisfied, Very Satisfied, 
Highly Satisfied 

92% 77% 88% 100% 

Total Surveyed 26 13 17 6 
 

Packet page 49 of 228



Kings Valley Charter School  

 Kings Valley Charter School  
 Page 31 of 34  

Child’s Academic Experience at KVCS: 
 

June 2018 Elementary Middle High Preschool 
Highly Satisfied 23% 0% 35% 33% 
Satisfied, Very Satisfied, 
Highly Satisfied 

96% 85% 76% 83% 

Total Surveyed 26 13 17 6 
 
 
 

Packet page 50 of 228



 

 

Kings Valley Charter School 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.5. Appendix C: New or Updated Policies 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 51 of 228



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

1.4. Appendix B: Financial Audit Report

Packet page 52 of 228



 

 
 

 
 

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
(A Component Unit of Philomath School District 17J) 

Philomath, Oregon 
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

June 30, 2020  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

436 1st Avenue W • PO Box 1072 
Albany, Oregon 97321 • (541) 223-5555 

Packet page 53 of 228



 

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon  

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 
 
 

OFFICERS 
 

Sally Lammers, Chair 
31615 Luckiamute Road 

Philomath, Oregon 97370 
 

Diana Barnhart, Secretary/Treasurer 
14185 Wildwood Road 

Philomath, Oregon 97370 
 
 
 

MEMBERS 
 

Beth Hoinacki 
38001 Alexander Road 

Philomath, Oregon 97370 
 

Bill Mahr 
39142 Kings Valley Highway 

Monmouth, Oregon 97361 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

Jamon Ellingson 
38840 Kings Valley Highway 

Philomath, Oregon 97370

Packet page 54 of 228



 

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL  
Philomath, Oregon 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

  Page 
  Number 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 

Title Page 
Board of Directors 
Table of Contents 

 
FINANCIAL SECTION 

Independent Auditor's Report ...........................................................................................................  1-3 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis ..........................................................................................  4-8 
Basic Financial Statements 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 Statement of Net Position ......................................................................................................  9 
 Statement of Activities ...........................................................................................................  10 

  Fund Financial Statements 
   Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ..................................................................................  11 
   Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to Net Position of 
    Governmental Activities ..................................................................................................  12 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – 
    Governmental Funds .......................................................................................................  13 
   Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
    Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities ....................  14 
  Notes to Basic Financial Statements ............................................................................................  15-34
 Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of the School’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ..........................  35 
Schedule of School Contributions ...............................................................................................  35 

 Other Information 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – 
   Budget and Actual – General Fund ......................................................................................  36 
    
AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS 

Independent Auditor’s Report Required by Oregon State Regulations ......................................  37-38

 
 

  

Packet page 55 of 228



 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

Packet page 56 of 228



 

436 1st Avenue W • PO Box 1072 • Albany, Oregon 97321 
(541) 223-5555 • www.accuitycpas.com • Fax (541) 730-4420 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Kings Valley Charter School 
Philomath, Oregon 97370 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the major 
fund of Kings Valley Charter School, Philomath, Oregon, a component unit of Philomath School 
District 17J, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the School’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinions. 
  

Packet page 57 of 228



 

2 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities and the major fund of Kings Valley Charter 
School, Philomath, Oregon as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position thereof, 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and schedules of the School’s proportionate share of the net 
pension liability and School contributions on pages 4 through 8 and 35, respectively, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Kings Valley Charter School’s basic financial statements. The budgetary 
comparison information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. 

The budgetary comparison information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  

In our opinion, the budgetary comparison information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 

Packet page 58 of 228



 

3 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued 
our report dated December 15, 2020, on our consideration of compliance with certain provisions of 
laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon 
Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance 
and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance 
 
Accuity, LLC 
 

By:   
 Glen O. Kearns, CPA  
 
Albany, Oregon 
December 15, 2020 

Packet page 59 of 228



 

 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 

Packet page 60 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 4   

INTRODUCTION 

As management of Kings Valley Charter School, Philomath, Oregon, we offer readers this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the School for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. It 
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements, which follow this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• At June 30, 2020, total net position of Kings Valley Charter School amounted to $497,416. Of this 
amount, $275,844 was invested in capital assets, net of related debt. The remaining balance 
included $11,981 restricted for various activities, and $209,591 of unrestricted net position. 

• The School’s total net position increased by $41,539 during the current fiscal year. 

• Overall revenues of $2,263,118 exceeded total expenses of $2,221,579 by $41,539.  

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Kings Valley Charter School’s 
basic financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components:  
(1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
the School’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all the School’s assets, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows and outflows of resources with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over 
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the School is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the School’s net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., grants receivable). 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9 through 10 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements are designed to demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements overseeing the use of fund accounting.  

Packet page 61 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 5   

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities and objectives. The only fund of the School is a governmental fund. 

□□  Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements; however, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of available resources, as well as on balances of available resources at 
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the School’s near-term 
financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds 
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
School’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities.  

The School maintains one governmental fund. Information is presented in the governmental 
funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balance for the General Fund, which is considered to be a major fund. 

Kings Valley Charter School adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund. 
Budgetary comparison data has been provided to demonstrate compliance with its budget but 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 11 through 14 of this 
report. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes 
to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 15 through 34 of this report. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information (RSI) and other supplementary information (OSI).  

RSI includes the schedules of the School’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and School 
contributions, and OSI includes the budgetary comparison information for the General Fund. This 
information can be found on pages 35 through 36 of this report, respectively.  

Packet page 62 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 6   

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the School’s financial 
position. At June 30, 2020, the School’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $497,416. A large portion of the 
School’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, and equipment) less 
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The School uses these capital 
assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  

Although the School’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted 
that the resources needed to repay the debt must be provided from other sources since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  

School’s Net Position 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the School was able to report positive balances in all categories of 
net position. The School’s net position increased by $41,539 during the current fiscal year. This increase 
was mainly due to an increase in state school fund revenue.  

Condensed statement of net position information is shown below. 

2020 2019
ASSETS

Current assets 330,077$             340,392$                
Restricted assets 11,981                  11,355                    
Capital assets, net 288,131                227,810                  

Total assets 630,189                579,557                  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 76,652                  80,680                    

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 35,197                  34,391                    
Noncurrent liabilities 133,682                115,100                  

Total liabilities 168,879                149,491                  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 40,546                  54,869                    

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 275,844                211,622                  
Restricted 11,981                  11,355                    
Unrestricted 209,591                232,900                  

Total net position 497,416$             455,877$                

Governmental Activities

Condensed Statement of Net Position

 
 

Packet page 63 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 7   

School’s Changes in Net Position 

The condensed statement of activities information shown below explains changes in net position. 

2020 2019
Program revenues

Charges for services 12,790$                  19,071$                  
Operating grants and contributions 126,497                  143,673                  

Total program revenues 139,287                  162,744                  

General revenues
State school fund – general support 2,105,081               2,062,816               
Investment earnings -                                33                            
Miscellaneous 18,750                    33,013                    

Total general revenues 2,123,831               2,095,862               

Total revenues 2,263,118               2,258,606               

Program expenses
Instruction 1,322,560               1,267,352               
Support services 685,796                  843,047                  
Community services 65,418                    29,688                    

Facilities acquisition and construction 114,307                  110,578                  

Unallocated depreciation 32,463                    29,367                    

Interest on long-term debt 1,035                       933                          

Total program expenses 2,221,579   2,280,965   

Change in net position 41,539                    (22,359)                   

Net position - beginning 455,877                  478,236                  

Net position - ending 497,416$                455,877$                

Governmental Activities

Changes in Net Position

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL’S FUND 

As noted earlier, the School uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.  

Packet page 64 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 8   

Governmental Fund 

The focus of the School’s governmental fund is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, 
and balances of expendable resources.  

Such information is useful in assessing the School’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned 
fund balance may serve as a useful measurement of the School’s net resources available for spending at 
the end of the fiscal year. At the end of the current fiscal year, the School’s governmental funds 
reported a fund balance of $311,052, a decrease of $10,025 from the prior year. Of this $274,173 
constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the School’s discretion. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The School’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2020 amounted to 
$288,131, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment is comprised of leasehold improvements 
and vehicles. Total depreciation expense related to the School’s investment in capital assets during the 
current fiscal year was $32,463. Additional information on the School’s capital assets can be found 
pages 22 of this report.  

Long-Term Liabilities 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the School had total long-term liabilities outstanding of $12,287. 
This amount relates to one capital lease. The School’s total long-term liabilities decreased by $3,901 
during the current fiscal year. Additional information on the School’s long-term liabilities can be found 
pages 23 through 24 of this report. 

KEY ECONOMIC FACTORS AND BUDGET INFORMATION FOR THE FUTURE 

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the School was aware of the 
following circumstances that could significantly affect its future financial health. 

• The COVID-19 pandemic is expected to affect costs due to the need for continued 
comprehensive distance learning.  

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $274,173 and 
will be available for program resources in the 2020-2021 fiscal year. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the School’s finances for all those 
with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in the report or requests for 
additional information should be addressed to Kings Valley Charter School, 33840 Kings Valley 
Highway, Philomath, Oregon 97370. 

Packet page 65 of 228



 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
 
 

Packet page 66 of 228



 

 9  

Governmental
Activities

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 296,127$                         
Accounts receivable 33,950                              

Total current assets 330,077                           

Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,981                              

Capital assets not being depreciated 15,240                              
Capital assets being depreciated, net 272,891                           

Total assets 630,189                           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 76,652                              

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accrued liabilities 28,796                              
Accrued payroll liabilities 2,210                                
Capital lease, current portion 4,191                                

Total current liabilities 35,197                              

Noncurrent liabilties
Capital lease, less current portion 8,096                                
Net pension liability 125,586                           

Total noncurrent liabilities 133,682                           

Total liabilities 168,879                           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 40,546                              

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 275,844                           
Restricted for various activities 11,981                              
Unrestricted 209,591                           

Total net position 497,416$                         

June 30, 2020

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Philomath, Oregon
KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL

 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Packet page 67 of 228



 

10 

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Net Position

Operating
Charges for Grants and Governmental

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities
Governmental activities

Instruction 1,322,560$    12,790$         126,497$        (1,183,273)$  
Support services 685,796         -                       -                        (685,796)        
Enterprise and community services 65,418            -                       -                        (65,418)          
Facilities acquisition and construction 114,307         -                       -                        (114,307)        
Unallocated depreciation 32,463            -                       -                        (32,463)          
Interest on long term debt 1,035              -                       -                        (1,035)             

Total governmental activities 2,221,579$    12,790$         126,497$        (2,082,292)$  

General revenues
State school fund - general support 2,105,081      
Miscellaneous 18,750            

Total general revenues 2,123,831      

Change in net position 41,539            

Net position - beginning 455,877         

Net position - ending 497,416$       

Philomath, Oregon

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL

Program Revenues

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Packet page 68 of 228



 

11 

General
Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 308,108$                
Accounts receivable 33,950                    

Total assets 342,058$                

LIABILITIES
Current

Accrued liabilities 28,796$                  
Accrued payroll liabilities 2,210                       

Total liabilities 31,006                    

FUND BALANCE
Restricted for various activities 11,981                    
Committed to facilities acquisition 24,898                    
Unassigned 274,173                  

Total fund balance 311,052                  

Total liabilities and fund balance 342,058$                

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL
Philomath, Oregon

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUND

June 30, 2020

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  

Packet page 69 of 228



 

12 

Total fund balance 311,052$    

Capital assets are not financial resources and are therefore not reported in
the governmental funds. These consist of:

Cost 530,884      
Accumulated depreciation (242,753)     288,131      

Liabilities not payable in the current year are not reported as governmental
fund liabilities. These liabilities are not accrued in the governmental fund,
but are recognized as expenditures when due. This consists of:

Capital lease payable (12,287)       

Amounts relating to the School's proportionate share of the net pension
liability for the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Systems (PERS) are
not reported in governmental fund statements. In the governmental fund
statements, pension expense is recognized when due. These amounts
consist of:

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pension expense 76,652         
Deferred inflows of resources relating to the return on pension assets (40,546)       
Net pension liability (125,586)     (89,480)       

Net position of governmental activities 497,416$    

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL
Philomath, Oregon

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE

June 30, 2020

TO NET POSITION OF GOVERMENTAL ACTIVITIES

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Packet page 70 of 228



 

13 

General
Fund

REVENUES
Local revenue 105,868$                           
State revenue 2,126,212                          
Federal revenue 31,038                                

Total revenues 2,263,118                          

EXPENDITURES
Current

Instruction 1,322,123                          
Support services 678,254                              
Community services 65,418                                

Facilities acquisition and construction 207,091                              
Contingency 437                                      

Total expenditures 2,273,323                          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (10,205)                               

Fund balance - beginning 321,257                              

Fund balance - ending 311,052$                           

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL
Philomath, Oregon

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Packet page 71 of 228



 

14 

Net change in fund balance (10,205)$        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures; however,
in the statement of activities, the costs of these assets are allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.

Capital asset additions 92,784           
Depreciation expense recorded in the current year (32,463)         60,321           

Long-term debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources, in
the governmental funds. In the statement of net position, however,
issuing long-term debt increases liabilities. Similarily, repayment of
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but reduces
the liability in the statement of net position.

Debt principal paid 3,901            

Pension expense or credits that do not meet the meaureable and
avaliable criteria are not recognized as revenue or expense in the
current year in governmental funds. In the statement of activities,
pension expense or credits are recognized when determind to have
been accrued. (12,478)         

Change in net position of governmental activities 41,539$         

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL
Philomath, Oregon

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Packet page 72 of 228



 

 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Packet page 73 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 15  

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. Description of Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statements of 
activities) report information on all of the activities of the School. Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, 
are reported by the School.  

 
B. Reporting Entity 

 
Kings Valley Charter School operates under the authority of Philomath School District 17J, who 
grants a charter to the School and exercises oversight, as required by Oregon law. The School is 
reported as a component unit of Philomath School District 17J. The School began operations in 2001, 
serving the Kings Valley area. The School is subject to ORS 338 in connection with the operation of 
public charter schools. In accordance with ORS 338, the School is organized as a not-for-profit 
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The School is governed by a 
four-member board of directors.  
 
C. Income Taxes 

 
Kings Valley Charter School is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code; therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made. In addition, the School 
qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and has been 
classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2). The tax-
exempt status can be revoked by the Internal Revenue Service as a result of direct violations of laws 
and regulations governing 501(c)(3) organizations. The School’s operating policy requires strict 
adherence to these laws and regulations in order to maintain its tax-exempt status. Management’s 
policy is to engage in activities related to their exempt purpose.  
 
Management evaluates tax positions annually based on the guidance in Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740. FASB ASV 740 prescribes a 
comprehensive model for recognizing, measuring, presenting, and disclosing, in the financial 
statements, tax position taken or expected to be taken on a tax return, including positions that the 
School is exempt from income taxes or not subject to income taxes on unrelated business income. 
The School presently discloses or recognizes income tax positions based on management’s estimate 
of whether it is reasonably possible or probable, respectively, that a liability has been incurred for 
unrecognized income tax benefits.  
 
Generally, the School is subject to examination by U.S. federal and state income tax authorities for 
three years from the filing of a tax return.  

 

Packet page 74 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 16  

D. Basis of Presentation – Fund Financial Statements 
 

The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s fund. The emphasis of 
fund financial statements is on major governmental funds.  
 
The School reports the following major governmental fund: 
  

General Fund – The General Fund is the School’s only operating fund. It accounts for all 
financial resources of the School. The primary sources of revenue are state and local revenues.  

 
E. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement 
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured 
such as current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the 
timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.  
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met.  
 
The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measureable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
 
F. Budgetary Information 

 
The School is not subject to Oregon Budget Law. The School prepares an annual budget for 
management purposes and for submission to its sponsoring district, as required under the terms of 
its charter. A budgetary comparison schedule is included in this report for additional analysis. 
Annual budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Budget amounts shown 
in the financial statements reflect the original budget amounts.  

 

Packet page 75 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 17  

G. Assets, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund 
Balance 

 
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

The School’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. 

 
2. Investments 
 
State statues authorized the School to invest in legally issued general obligations of the 
United States, the agencies and instrumentalities of the United States and the states of 
Oregon, Washington, Idaho, or California, certain interest-bearing bonds, time deposit open 
accounts, certificates of deposit, and savings accounts in banks, mutual savings banks, and 
savings and loan associations that maintain a head office or a branch in this state in the 
capacity of a bank, mutual savings bank, or savings and loan association, and share accounts 
and savings accounts in credit unions in the name of , or for the benefit of, a member of the 
credit union pursuant to a plan of deferred compensation. 
 
3. Inventory 
 
Inventory is valued at cost using the first-in, first out method. Inventories consist of supplies 
held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual 
inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased. 

 
4. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the School as assets with 
an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one 
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost where no 
historical records exist. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at 
the date of donation. 

 
Property, plant, and equipment of the School are depreciated using the straight-line method 
over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
Assets    Years 
Vehicles      10 
Leasehold improvements    20 

 

Packet page 76 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 18  

The costs of normal maintenance or repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or 
materially extend its life are charged to expenditures as incurred and are not capitalized.  

 
5. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Non-Pension Related)  

 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources until that time. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period 
and therefore, will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until that time.  

 
6. Net Position Flow Assumption 
 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted 
(e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the 
amounts to report as restricted – net position and unrestricted – net position in the 
government-wide fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the 
order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to 
consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is 
applied. 

 
7. Fund Balance Flow Assumption 
 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted 
and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). 
In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and 
unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption 
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.  
 
It is the government’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before 
using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of 
unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is 
depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 
 
8. Fund Balance Policies 
 
Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of 
any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes.  

Packet page 77 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 19  

The government itself can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a 
commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance). 
 
The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the 
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of 
decision-making authority. The board of directors is the highest level of decision-making 
authority for the government that can, by adoption of a resolution prior to the end of the 
fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution 
remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another resolution) to remove 
or revise the limitation. 
 
Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the 
government for the specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as 
committed. The board may assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance 
to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s 
appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In 
other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an 
assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove 
or revise a commitment. 

 
The School reports fund equity in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.  
 
The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints: 
 
• Nonspendable fund balance – amounts that are in nonspendable form (such as 

inventory or prepaid expenses) or are required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted fund balance – amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers 
(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through 
constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. 

• Committed fund balance – amounts constrained to specific purposes by the School itself, 
using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e. board of directors). To be 
reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the School 
takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint. 

• Assigned fund balance – amounts that School intends to use for a specific purpose. 
Intent can be expressed by the board of directors or by an official or body to which the 
school board delegates authority. 

Packet page 78 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 20  

• Unassigned fund balance – amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive 
amounts are reported only in the General Fund. 

 
Commitment of fund balance is accomplished through adoption of a resolution by the board 
of directors. Further, commitments of fund balance may be modified or rescinded only 
through approval of the board of directors via resolution or ordinance. Authority to assign 
fund balances has been granted to the Executive Director. 
 
The School has adopted a minimum fund balance policy. In general, the School strives to 
maintain minimum fund balance to be used for unanticipated emergencies of approximately 
200% of budgeted payroll expenditures.  

 
H.  Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses 

 
1. Program Revenues 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, us, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.  

 
2. Pensions 

 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) and 
additions to/deductions from PERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with 
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 

I. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual results could differ from 
those estimates.   

 

Packet page 79 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 21  

II.  DETAILED NOTES ON THE FUND AND ALL ACCOUNT GROUPS 

A. Cash Deposits with Financial Institutions 

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits  

This is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the School’s deposits may not be returned. The 
School holds accounts at Citizens Bank, for which the FDIC provides insurance coverages of 
$250,000 for demand deposit accounts and an additional $250,000 for time and savings accounts.  

At June 30, 2020, the School had deposits of $250,000 insured by the FDIC and $62,105 of uninsured 
deposits. 

Deposits 

The School’s deposits and investments at June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

Cash on hand 50$                   
Checking accounts 303,030             
Savings accounts 5,028                

Total deposits and investments 308,108$            

Deposits and investments by restriction type: 

Governmental activities - unrestricted
General Fund - cash and cash equivalents 296,127$           

Governmental activities - restricted
General Fund 11,981               

Total deposits and investments 308,108$            

Restricted cash is for future student activities, memorials, and grant expenditures. 
 

Packet page 80 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 22  

B. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases

Ending 
Balance

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in progress 2,938$            15,240$          (2,938)$           15,240$          

Capital assets being depreciated
Leasehold improvements 274,719          80,482            -                        355,201          
Vehicles 160,443          -                        -                        160,443          

Total capital assets being depreciated 435,162          80,482            -                        515,644          

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Leasehold improvements (92,808)           (17,104)           -                        (109,912)         
Vehicles (117,482)         (15,359)           -                        (132,841)         

Total accumulated depreciation (210,290)         (32,463)           -                        (242,753)         

Capital assets being depreciated, net 224,872          48,019            -                        272,891          

Governmental activities capital assets, net 227,810$        63,259$          (2,938)$           288,131$        

 
Capital assets are reported on the statement of net position as follows: 

Capital Assets
Accumulated 
Depreciation

Net Capital 
Assets

Governmental activities
Construction in progress 15,240$                  -$                             15,240$                  
Leasehold improvements 355,201                  (109,912)                 245,289                  
Vehicles 160,443                  (132,841)                 27,602                    

Total governmental activities 530,884$                (242,753)$              288,131$                 

Depreciation was not charged to specific functions or programs of the School. Capital assets of the 
School are for the use of the entire School and are therefore unallocated. Depreciation expense is 
recorded on the statement of activities as follows: 

Governmental activities
Unallocated depreciation 32,463$                   

Packet page 81 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 23  

C. Operating Leases 

The School has a long-term lease agreement with King Valley Community Trust, a related party, 
with terms as follows: 

1. School Premises Lease 

On February 6, 2014, the School signed a 15-year lease agreement for use of the building in 
which the School operates, ending on September 20, 2028. Payments of $12,500 are due 
quarterly. Lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $50,000. 

Future estimated lease liabilities are as follows: 

 

Year ending June 30: Amount

2021 50,000$                  
2022 50,000                    
2023 50,000                    
2024 50,000                    
2025 50,000                    

2025-2029 212,500                  

Total 462,500$                 

D. Long-Term Liabilities 

1. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities for the year: 

Interest 
Rate

Original 
Amount

Beginnin
g Balance Additions Reductions

Ending 
Balance

Due 
Within 

One Year
Governmental Activities

Kubota Leasing 7.18% 20,565$  16,188$  -$             3,901$    12,287$  4,191$    

 
2. Interest expense 

Interest expense is recorded on the statement of activities as follows: 

Governmental activities
Interest on long-term debt 1,036$                 

 

Packet page 82 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 24  

3. Kubota Lease 

The School entered into an agreement to lease Kubota equipment on February 9, 2018. This 
lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and has therefore been 
recorded at the present value of minimum lease payments as of the inception date. Interest is 
fixed at 7.18%, and payments of $411 are due on the ninth of each month. The lease is 
collateralized by the Kubota equipment.  

4. Governmental Activity Future Maturities of Long-Term Liabilities 

Year ending
June 30: Principal Interest Total

2021 4,191$          746$              4,937$          
2022 4,502             435                4,937             
2023 3,594             108                3,702             

12,287$        1,289$          13,576$        

Kubota Lease

 

E. Constraints on Fund Balances 

General
Fund

Fund balances:
Restricted for:

Student activities 11,981$                   
Committed to:

Building fund 24,898                     
Unassigned 274,173                   

Total fund balances 311,052$                  

III.  OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Risk Management 

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the School carries 
commercial insurance. There was no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the 
previous year. There were no insurance settlements exceeding insurance coverages in the past 
year. 
 

Packet page 83 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 25  

B. Retirement Plans 

1. Oregon Public Employees Retirement System 

General Information about the Pension Plan 

Name of Pension Plan 

The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit plan. 

Description of Benefit Terms 

Plan Benefits – PERS Pension (Chapter 238) 

Plan benefits of the System are established by the legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised 
Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A 

PERS Pension 

The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after 
August 29, 2003. 

Pension Benefits 

The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13 
retirement benefit options. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. 
The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average salary. A percentage (2.0 percent 
for police and fire employees, 1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the 
number of years of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under 
either a formula plus annuity (for members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a 
money match computation if a greater benefit results. 

Death Benefits 

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the 
member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary 
will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided 
one or more of the following conditions are met: 

• Member was employed by a PERS employer at the time of death 

• Member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-covered employment 

• Member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or 

• Member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death 

Packet page 84 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 26  

 Disability Benefits 

A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other than 
duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a 
job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for disability 
benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for a either a non-
duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) 
when determining monthly benefit. 

Benefit Changes after Retirement 

Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities investment account after 
retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market value of 
equity investments. Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-
living changes. The cap on the COLA in fiscal year 2015 and beyond will vary based on the 
amount of the annual benefit, in accordance with Moro decision. 

OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB) 

Pension Benefits 

The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit Pension Program provides benefits to members hired 
on or after August 29, 2003. This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer 
contributions. Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain 
normal retirement age: police and fire – 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of 
service and the final average salary.  

Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of 
retirement credit. To be classified as a police and fire member, the individual must have been 
employed continuously as a police and fire member for at least five years immediately 
preceding retirement. General Service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of 
service and the final average salary. Normal retirement age for general service members is age 
65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit. A member of the pension program becomes 
vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of 
service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and, 
if the pension program is terminated, the date on which the termination becomes effective. 

Death Benefits 

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally 
required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse receives for life 50 percent of the 
pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member. 

Packet page 85 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 27  

Disability Benefits 

A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member becomes 
disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability 
benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of employment 
before the disability occurred.  

Benefit Changes After Retirement 

Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes. 
The cap on the COLA in fiscal year 2015 and beyond will vary based on the amount of the 
annual benefit, in accordance with Moro decision. 

Contributions 

PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined 
rates. These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to 
accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. This funding policy applies to the PERS 
Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans. Employer contribution rates 
during the period were based on the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation, which became 
effective July 1, 2019. The State of Oregon and certain schools, community colleges, and political 
subdivisions have made unfunded actuarial liability payments, and their rates have been 
reduced. 

Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2020 were $18,987. 

Pension Plan Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

Oregon PERS produces an independently audited CAFR which can be found at:  

https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2019-CAFR.pdf.  

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
Oregon PERS and additions to/deductions from Oregon PERS’ fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by Oregon PERS. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable 
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Actuarial Valuations 

The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2019, through June 30, 2021, were set using the 
entry age normal actuarial cost method.  

Packet page 86 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 28  

For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced 
an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (the estimated 
amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), 
(2) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being 
amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized 
over 20 years. 

For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method 
produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the 
estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current 
service year), (b) an actuarially determined amount for funding a disability benefit component, 
and (c) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are 
being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial liabilities being amortized 
over 16 years. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 

Valuation Date December 31, 2017 

Measurement Date June 30, 2019 

Experience Study 2016, published July 26, 2017 

Actuarial Assumptions:  

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal 

Inflation Rate 2.50 percent 

Long-term Expected Rate of 
Return 

7.20 percent 

Discount Rate 7.20 percent 

Projected Salary Increases 3.50 percent 

Cost of living adjustment 
(COLA) 

Blend of 2.00% COLA and graded COLA 
(1.25%/.15%) in accordance with Moro decision; 
blend based on service. 

Mortality Health retirees and beneficiaries: RP-2014 
healthy annuitant, sex-distinct, generational 
with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with 
collar adjustments and set-backs as described in 
the valuation. 

Packet page 87 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 29  

Active members: RP-2014 Employees, sex-
distinct, generational with Unisex, Social 
Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and 
set-backs as described in the valuation. 

Disabled retirees: RP-2014 Disabled retirees, 
sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social 
Security Data Scale. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.  

Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are 
performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The methods and assumptions shown 
above are on the 2016 Experience Study, which reviewed experience for the four-year period 
ended December 31, 2016. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20 percent. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members 
and those of the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as 
actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on Plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return 
assumption, in July 2017 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both 
Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) 
investment advisors. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying 
assumptions and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not 
based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic 
model. For more information on the Plan’s portfolio, assumed asset allocation, and the long-
term expected rate of return for each major asset class, calculated using both arithmetic and 
geometric means, see PERS’ audited financial statements at:  

https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2019-CAFR.pdf  

Packet page 88 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 30  

Asset Class Low Range High Range OIC Target 

Cash 0.0% 3.0% 0.0% 

Debt Securities 15.0% 25.0% 20.0% 

Public Equity 32.5% 42.5% 37.5% 

Private Equity 13.5% 21.5% 17.5% 

Real Estate 9.5% 15.5% 12.5% 

Alternative Equity 0.0% 12.5% 12.5% 

Opportunity Portfolio 0.0% 3.0% 0.0% 

Total   100.0% 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2020, the School reported a liability of $125,586 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured at June 30, 2019, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of that date. The School’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
School’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At December 31, 2019 the 
School’s proportion was 0.00007260%. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the School recognized 
pension expense of $35,572. At June 30, 2020, the School reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 6,926$                           -$                                    
Changes of assumptions 17,037                           -$                                    
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on investments -                                      (3,560)                            
Changes in proportionate share 27,206                           (34,996)                         
Differences between employer contributions and 
employer's proportionate share of system 
contributions 5,568                             (1,990)                            
Total (prior to post-MD contributions) 56,737                           (40,546)                         
Contributions subsequent to the MD 19,915                           -                                      
Total 76,652$                        (40,546)$                        

Packet page 89 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 31  

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.  

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in subsequent years as follows: 

Employer Subsequent Fiscal Years:

Deferred 
Outflow/(Inflow) of 
Resources (prior to 
post-measurement 
date contributions)

1st Fiscal Year 13,319$                        
2nd Fiscal Year 1,724                             
3rd Fiscal Year (2,157)                            
4th Fiscal Year 2,737                             
5th Fiscal Year 568                                 

Sensitivity of the School’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 

The following presents the School’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the School’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a higher discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (6.20 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) than the 
current rate: 

School’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset): 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.20%) (7.20%) (8.20%)

201,115$                                  125,586$                                  62,379$                                     

Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date 

A legislative change that occurred after the December 31, 2017 valuation date affected the plan 
provisions reflected for financial reporting purposes. Senate Bill 1049, signed into law in June 
2019, introduced a limit on the amount of annual salary included for the calculation of benefits. 
Beginning in 2020, annual salary in excess of $195,000 (as indexed in future years) will be 
excluded when determining member benefits. As a result, future Tier 1/Tier 2 and OPSRP 
benefits for certain active members are now projected to be lower than prior to the legislation. 
For GASB 67 and GASB 68, the benefits valued in the Total Pension Liability are required to be 

Packet page 90 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 32  

in accordance with the benefit terms legally in effect as of the relevant fiscal year-end for the 
plan. As a result, Senate Bill 1049 was reflected in the June 30, 2019 Total Pension Liability. The 
decrease in the Total Pension Liability resulting from Senate Bill 1049, measured as of June 30, 
2019, is shown in the Exhibit A as the “Effect of plan changes” during the measurement period. 
While Senate Bill 1049 also made changes to certain aspects of the System’s funding and 
administration, the salary limit is the only change that affects the measured Total Pension 
Liability. As a result, the salary limit provision is the only difference in the valuation basis used 
to determine the Total Pension Liability between June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2019. 

C. Individual Account Program (IAP) 

Plan Description 

Employees of the School are provided with pensions through OPERS. All the benefits of OPERS 
are established by the Oregon legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 
238 and 238A. Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or 
after August 29, 2003. Chapter 238A created the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan 
(OPSRP), which consists of the Defined Benefit Pension Program and the Individual Account 
Program (IAP).  

Membership includes public employees hired on or after August 29, 2003. PERS members retain 
their existing defined benefit plan accounts, but member contributions are deposited into the 
member’s IAP account. OPSRP is part of OPERS and is administered by the OPERS Board.  

Pension Benefits 

Participants in OPERS defined benefit pension plans also participate in their defined 
contribution plan. An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is 
established or on the date the rollover account was established. If the employer makes optional 
employer contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the earliest of the 
following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar 
years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the 
date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies.  

Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee 
account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal 
installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each 
distribution option has a $200 minimum distribution limit.  

Death Benefits 

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s 
account balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account 
balance.  

Packet page 91 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 33  

If a retired member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may 
receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment.  

Contributions  

Member contributions are set by statute at 6 percent of salary and are remitted by participating 
employers. The contributions are either deducted from member salaries or paid by the 
employers on the members’ behalf. As permitted, the School has opted to pick-up the 
contributions on behalf of its employees.  

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  

Assets are valued at their market value. Gains and losses between odd-year valuations are 
amortized as a level percentage of combined valuation payroll over 20 years from the odd-year 
valuation in which they are first recognized. The assumed rate of return on investments is 7.2% 
compounded annually. The assumed consumer price inflation rate used is 2.5% per year. 
Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are 
available by contacting PERS at the following address: PO Box 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-3700, or 
can be found at:  

https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/CAFR/2019-CAFR.pdf.  

D. Related Party Transactions 

Kings Valley Charter School is a related party to People Sustaining Kings Valley (PSKV), which 
was created to provide a platform for entrepreneurial economic development activities, and to 
provide educational services to and hold and care for capital assets of the Kings Valley 
community. The amounts paid to PSKV during the year ended June 30, 2020 totaled $1,721,458. 
The amount payable to PSKV as of June 30, 2020 was $0. 

Kings Valley Charter School is a related party to Kings Valley Community Trust, which was 
established for the benefit of holding assets for the School. The School leases the property on 
which the School operates from the Trust. Refer to Note II-C for information regarding the current 
year transactions. 

E. Concentrations of Funding Sources 

Kings Valley Charter School received a significant portion of its revenue from the state school fund. 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the School received approximately 93% of its total revenue from 
the state school fund. 

F. Commitments and Contingencies 

A substantial portion of operating funding is received from the State of Oregon through Philomath 
School District 17J.  

State funding is determined through statewide revenue projections that are paid to individual 

Packet page 92 of 228



KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Philomath, Oregon 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
June 30, 2020 

 

 34  

school districts based on pupil counts and other factors in the state school fund revenue formula. 
Since these projections are pupil counts fluctuate, they can cause either increases or decreases in 
revenue. Due to these future uncertainties at the state level, the future effect on operations cannot 
be determined.  

G. New Pronouncements 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 95, Postponement 
of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. The Statement is intended to provide relief 
to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

The guidance postpones by one year the effective dates of certain provisions in the 
pronouncements as follows: 

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities – This statement established criteria and 
guidance for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments for 
accounting and financial reporting purposes, as well as the reporting requirements for 
these fiduciary funds.  

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Borrowing and Direct 
Placements – This statement addresses the information that is disclosed in the notes to 
government financial statements related to debt, including borrowing and direct 
placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing 
information related to debt.  

The Statement postpones the effective dates of the following pronouncements by 18 months: 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases – This statement addresses the accounting and financial 
reporting for leases by governments, requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that were previously classified as operating leases.  

The School will implement applicable new GASB pronouncements no later than the required 
fiscal year. Management has not determined the effect on the financial statements for 
implementing any of the above pronouncements. The GASB provides other COVID-19 related 
resources on its website:  

https://www.gasb.org/COVID19 . 

H. Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 15, 2020, which was the date that 
the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Packet page 93 of 228



 
 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

Packet page 94 of 228



 
 

35 

OREGON PERS SYSTEM

Schedule of the School's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

School's Proportion of the net 
pension liability (asset) 0.00007260% 0.00067869% 0.00122586% 0.00063725% 0.00055280% 0.00089963%

School's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset)

125,586$      102,813$      165,246$      95,666$        31,739$        (20,392)$       

School's covered-employee 
payroll (from actuarial exhibits)

54,319$        49,732$        82,844$        37,885$        28,099$        27,087$        

School's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset) as 
a percentage its covered-
employee payroll 231% 207% 199% 253% 113% -75%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension 
liability 80% 82% 83% 81% 92% 104%

Schedule of the School's 
Contributions

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required 
contribution 18,987$        15,144$        13,608$        8,239$          10,420$        8,698$          

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required 
contribution (18,987)         (15,144)         (13,608)         (8,239)           (10,420)         (8,698)           

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              

School's covered-employee 
payroll 78,581$        74,345$        85,581$        62,377$        91,875$        41,891$        

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 24% 20% 16% 13% 11% 21%

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL
Philomath, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF THE SCHOOL'S CONTRIBUTIONS

 

Packet page 95 of 228



 
 

 

OTHER INFORMATION

Packet page 96 of 228



36 
 

Original and Variance with
Final Final Budget GAAP

Budget Over (Under) Basis
REVENUES

Local revenue 103,934$             1,934$                 105,868$             
State revenue 2,150,285            (24,073)                2,126,212            
Federal revenue 40,477                  (9,439)                  31,038                  

Total revenues 2,294,696            (31,578)                2,263,118            

EXPENDITURES
Current

Instruction 1,288,764            33,359                 1,322,123            
Support services 760,508               (82,254)                678,254                
Community services 77,173                  (11,755)                65,418                  

Debt service 1,649                    (1,649)                  -                             

Facilities acquisition and construction 85,816                  121,275               207,091                

Contingency 253                       184                       437                        

Total expenditures 2,214,163            59,160                 2,273,323            

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
 over (under) expenditures 80,533                  (90,738)                (10,205)                 

Fund balance - beginning -                             321,257               321,257                

Fund balance - ending 80,533$               230,519$             311,052$             

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL
Philomath, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Packet page 97 of 228



 
 

37 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY  
STATE REGULATIONS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 98 of 228



 

436 1st Avenue W • PO Box 1072 • Albany, Oregon 97321 
(541) 223-5555 • www.accuitycpas.com • Fax (541) 730-4420 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS 

 
Board of Directors 
Kings Valley Charter School 
Philomath, Oregon 97370 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Kings Valley Charter School, Philomath, Oregon, a 
component unit of Philomath School District 17J, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 15, 2020. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Kings Valley Charter School’s financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised 
Statutes, as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-010-0000 through 162-010-0320 of the 
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
 
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments 
and disclosures, which included, but were not limited to, the following:  

 
Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law 
 
Programs funded from outside sources 
 
Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C) 
 
Public charter school requirements 
 

In connection with our testing, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the School was 
not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, contracts, and grants, including the 
provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes, as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-010-0000 
through 162-010-0320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations. 
 

Packet page 99 of 228



 

 38  

OAR 162-010-0230 Internal Control 
 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted certain 
matters that we have reported to management of the School in a separate letter dated December 15, 
2020. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of 
Kings Valley Charter School, Philomath School District 17J, and the Oregon Secretary of State, and is 
not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these parties. 
 
 
 
Accuity, LLC 
 
December 15, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Packet page 100 of 228



 
 
 
 

 

 
 

KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
(A Component Unit of Philomath School District 17J) 

 
Report to the Board of Directors 
for the Year Ended June 30, 2020  

 
December 15, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
436 1st Avenue W • PO Box 1072 

Albany, Oregon 97321 • (541) 223-5555  

Packet page 101 of 228



 
 
 
 

  

 
KINGS VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL  

Philomath, Oregon 
  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

June 30, 2020 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 

Title Page 
Table of Contents 

 
LETTER SECTION 

  Letter of Report Presentation ...............................................................................................................    

  Letter of Findings and Recommendations .........................................................................................   

  Required Communications ..................................................................................................................   

  Recently Issued Accounting Standards ..............................................................................................   

ATTACHMENTS 

Certain Written Communications between Management and Accuity 

Engagement Letter ........................................................................................................................   

Management Representation Letter ...........................................................................................   

Adjusting Journal Entries .............................................................................................................  

Packet page 102 of 228



 

436 1st Avenue W • PO Box 1072 • Albany, Oregon 97321 
(541) 223-5555 • www.accuitycpas.com • Fax (541) 730-4420 

 
December 15, 2020 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Kings Valley Charter School 
Philomath, Oregon  

 
We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of the 
governmental activities and the major fund of Kings Valley Charter School, Philomath, Oregon, 
a component unit of Philomath School District 17J, for the year ended June 30, 2020. This report 
summarizes certain matters required by professional standards to be communicated to you in 
your oversight responsibility for the School’s financial reporting process. Also included, is a 
summary of recently issued accounting standards that may affect future financial reporting by 
the School. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and 
management of the School, and it is not intended to be used, and should not be used, by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 

It will be our pleasure to respond to any questions you have regarding this report. We appreciate 
the opportunity to continue to be of service to the School. 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
Accuity, LLC 
 
Certified Public Accountants 
Albany, Oregon 
  

Packet page 103 of 228



 

436 1st Avenue W • PO Box 1072 • Albany, Oregon 97321 
(541) 223-5555 • www.accuitycpas.com • Fax (541) 730-4420 

 
Board of Directors 
Kings Valley Charter School 
Philomath, Oregon 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and the major fund of 
Kings Valley Charter School, Philomath, Oregon, a component unit of Philomath School District 
17J for the year ended June 30, 2020. Professional standards require that we provide you with 
information about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our 
audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter dated June 4, 2020. 
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information 
related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by Kings Valley Charter School are described in Note I to the 
financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted during the year, and the 
application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 2020. We noted 
no transactions entered into by the School during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates 
affecting the School’s financial statements were: 

• Management’s estimate of depreciable lives and salvage values of capital assets, which 
are based on expected useful lives of the assets and current market conditions. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciable lives and 
salvage values and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion units.  

• Defined benefit pension plans (actuarial assumptions) and defined other 
postemployments benefits (OPEB) plans (actuarial assumptions) 

• Accrued compensation 

Packet page 104 of 228



 

 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the School’s financial 
statements relate to long-term liabilities, pensions, and post-employment benefits. 
 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 
of management.  
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management is a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the 
attached letter dated December 15, 2020. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Kings Valley Charter School’s financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the School’s auditors; 
however, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and 
our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
 
 

Packet page 105 of 228



 

 

Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis, School’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability and School contributions, which are required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We did not audit the aforementioned RSI and do not express and 
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
We were engaged to report on the General Fund budgetary comparison schedule, which is RSI. 
We were also engaged to report on the combining and individual fund statements and schedules, 
the schedules of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balance – budget and actual, the 
schedules of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position, and the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With 
respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and 
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. The method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information 
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and 
reconciled the aforementioned information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
We were not engaged to report on the supplemental information required by the Oregon 
Department of Education, which accompanies the financial statements but is not RSI. We did not 
audit or perform other procedures on this other information, and we do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
Accuity, LLC 
 
December 15, 2020 
 

Packet page 106 of 228



 
 

 
 

Recently Issued Accounting Standards 
June 30, 2020 
 
 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 95, Postponement 
of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. The Statement is intended to provide relief 
to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

The guidance postpones by one year the effective dates of certain provisions in the 
pronouncements as follows: 

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities – This statement established criteria and 
guidance for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments for 
accounting and financial reporting purposes, as well as the reporting requirements for 
these fiduciary funds.  

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Borrowing and Direct 
Placements – This statement addresses the information that is disclosed in the notes to 
government financial statements related to debt, including borrowing and direct 
placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing 
information related to debt.  

The Statement postpones the effective dates of the following pronouncements by 18 months: 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases – This statement addresses the accounting and financial 
reporting for leases by governments, requiring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that were previously classified as operating leases.  

The School will implement applicable new GASB pronouncements no later than the required 
fiscal year. Management has not determined the effect on the financial statements for 
implementing any of the above pronouncements. 

The GASB provides other COVID-19 related resources on its website: 

https://www.gasb.org/COVID19 . 

 
 

Packet page 107 of 228

file://portal.local/data/vodfs02/PROD/Firms/450032/wincsi/CSAData/LEBA5526/Engagements/2019%20Audit/covid19


June 18, 2020

Jamon Ellingson
Kings Valley Charter School
38840 Kings Valley Hwy
Philomath, OR 97370

Dear Jamon Ellingson,

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide to Kings Valley Charter School for the
year ended June 30, 2020. We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, blended or discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information, including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of Kings Valley Charter School as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020. Accounting standards
generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI),
such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement Kings Valley Charter School’s basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our
engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Kings Valley Charter School’s RSI in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance. The following RSI is required by the U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and will
be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
2. Schedules of the Government’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension and OPEB Liabilities and Government

Contributions, if applicable
3. Schedules of Funding Progress and Government Contributions, if applicable

The following RSI is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and will be subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and will provide an opinion on it in relation to the
financial statements as a whole:

1. Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund
and Major Special Revenue Funds, if any

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies Kings Valley
Charter School’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and will provide an opinion on it in relation to the
financial statements as a whole:

1. Combining Balance Sheet and Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances for all Nonmajor Governmental Funds, if any

Page 1 of 6

Packet page 108 of 228



2. Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – Nonmajor
Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Projects Funds, if any

The following other information accompanying the financial statements will not be subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor’s report will not provide an opinion or any
assurance on that other information:

1. Schedule of Long-Term Debt Transactions
2. Schedule of Future Requirements for Retirement of Long-Term Debt

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether the basic financial statements are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to report on the
fairness of the supplementary information referred to above when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations and will
include tests of accounting records of Kings Valley Charter School and other procedures we consider necessary to
enable us to express such opinions.  We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Kings Valley
Charter School’s financial statements.  Our report will be addressed to the governing body of Kings Valley Charter
School.  We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed.  Circumstances may arise in
which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our
opinions on the financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with management in
advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions,
we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or may withdraw from this engagement.   

Audit Procedures – General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas
to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial
reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to
the Government or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the Government. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and because
we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist
and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors
and any fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform the
appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention,
unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility as auditors
is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as
auditors. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts and
may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets
and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We
will request written representations from the Government’s attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill

Page 2 of 6

Packet page 109 of 228



you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from
you about the financial statements and related matters.
 
Audit Procedures – Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the Government and its environment, including internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and
extent of further audit procedures. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify
deficiencies in internal control. Accordingly, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those
charged with governance, internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA
professional standards.

Audit Procedures – Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
we will perform tests of Kings Valley Charter School’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall
compliance, and we will not express such an opinion.

Other Services 

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of Kings Valley Charter School in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. We will perform
the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial
statements and related notes as previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgement, reserve the right to
refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management
responsibilities. We will assist with preparation of the capital asset schedule and depreciation calculation in
conformity with the applicable basis of accounting.

Management Responsibilities    

Management is responsible for designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, including monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and
for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for the
accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements,
including identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions, (2) additional
information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the
Government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us
in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during
the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for
informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the Government involving (1) management, (2) employees
who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material
effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of
fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government

Page 3 of 6

Packet page 110 of 228



complies with applicable laws and regulations.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with the U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any document
that contains and indicates that we have reported on the supplementary information. You also agree to include the
audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon
or make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the supplementary information no later than the
date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to
us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in
accordance with the GAAP (2) that you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly
presented in accordance with the GAAP, (3) that the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed
from those used in the prior period (or if they have changed, the reasons for such changes), and (4) you have
disclosed to us any significant assumptions in interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the
supplementary information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for financial statement preparation services and any other
nonattest services we provide; oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably from senior
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and
accept responsibility for them. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your
account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers but will remain committed to
maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain internal policies,
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will secure
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we will
take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized
release of your confidential information to others. In the event that we are unable to secure an appropriate
confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential
information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by
any such third-party service providers.

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash or other confirmations we request and will locate any
documents selected by us for testing and will prepare schedules requested by us by the dates communicated directly
to management.

We will provide copies of our reports to Kings Valley Charter School, however management is responsible for
distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged
and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Accuity, LLC and constitutes confidential information.
However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be made
available upon request and in a timely manner to the State of Oregon or its designee, a federal agency providing
direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to
resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested,
access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Accuity, LLC personnel. Furthermore,
upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties
may intend or decide to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental
agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the report release
date or for any additional period requested by the State of Oregon. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency or
auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party/parties contesting the audit finding for guidance prior

Page 4 of 6

Packet page 111 of 228



to destroying the audit documentation.

We expect to begin our audit on August 31, 2020, and to issue our report no later than December 31, 2020. is the
engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the reports or authorizing
another individual to sign them.

Our fees for these services will be based on the value of the services rendered, plus out-of-pocket expenses. We
estimate that our fees for these services, including out-of-pocket costs (such as report reproduction, typing, postage,
copies, or travel), will be $5,000. The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the
assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is
necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered
each month as work progresses and are payable upon presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may
be suspended if your account becomes 30 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until your account is paid
in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed
upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of
termination. 

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to the governing body, who we have determined to
be those charged with governance, the following significant findings from the audit:

Our view about the qualitative aspects of the Government’s significant accounting practices;
Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;
Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any;
Disagreements with management, if any;
Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant and
relevant to the governing body regarding their oversight of the financial reporting process;
Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit
procedures, if any;
Representations we requested from management;
Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and
Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of correspondence with
management.

If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the financial statements and make reference to our firm, you agree to
provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before printing. You also agree to provide us
with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval before it is distributed. 

If this engagement letter is written in support of any existing bid or contract, in case of any conflict between such
agreement and this letter, this letter will control.

If any of the above sections or clauses are held to be invalid for any reason, or are declared to be null and void, all
other sections and clauses of this agreement shall remain valid, will not be nullified, and are hereby further affirmed. 

Venue of all matters arising from this agreement, this engagement, and subsequent engagements shall reside in
Albany, Linn County, Oregon. 

Any dispute, controversy, or claim rising out of this agreement shall be settled by binding arbitration under the
arbitration rules of the Linn County Circuit Court. There shall be one arbitrator selected from the Circuit Court Panel
of Arbitrators and the proceeding shall follow the Oregon Rules of Civil Procedure. 

The arbitrator shall have the authority to award any remedy or relief that an Oregon court could order or grant,
including, without limitation, specific performance of any obligation created under this agreement, the issuance of an

Page 5 of 6

Packet page 112 of 228



injunction, or the imposition of sanctions for abuse or frustration of the arbitration process, except that the arbitrator
shall not have authority to award punitive damages or any other amount for the purpose of imposing a penalty as
opposed to compensating for actual damages suffered or loss incurred. With respect to any action relating to this
agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the losing party its reasonable attorney’s fees,
paralegal fees, expert fees, and all other fees, costs, and expenses actually incurred and reasonably necessary in
connection with such action as determined by the arbitrator. Our audit engagement ends upon delivery of our audit
report. Any follow-up services that might be required will be a separate, new engagement. The terms and conditions
of that new engagement will be governed by a new specific engagement letter for that service.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe that this letter accurately summarizes the significant
terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our
engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. 

 

Very truly yours,

G l en  K ea rn sG l en  K ea rn s
Accuity, LLC
 

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Kings Valley Charter School
 

Ja mo n  E l l i n g s o nJa mo n  E l l i n g s o n
Jamon Ellingson, Executive Director

1 2/0 1 / 20 201 2/0 1 / 20 20
Date

                                        

 

Page 6 of 6

Packet page 113 of 228



Accuity, LLC
Certified Public Accountants
4361'tAvenue W
P.O. Box 1072
Albany, Oregon 97321,

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements
of Kings Valley Charter School, which comprise the respective financial position of the
govemmental activities and the major fund, as of June 30, 2020, the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the
financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of
a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission
or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be
considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of the date of signature of this letter, the
following representations made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
letter dated June L8, 2020, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements and for preparation of the supplementary
inJormation in accordance with the applicable criteria.

The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include all
properly classified funds and other financial information of the School required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America to be included
in the financial reporting entity.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

1.

2.

J.

Packet page 114 of 228



We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
intemal control to prevent and detect fraud.

Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates are reasonable.

Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses,
loans, transfers, leasing arrangements and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or
payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of
noncompliance, subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires adjustment or
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. No events, including instances of
noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the
date of signature of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the
aforementioned f inancial statements.

We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed, and they
have been posted to the accounts.

We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the
financial statements, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims,
or assessments.

11. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the School is contingently liable, if
any, have been properly recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided

12. We have provided you with:

a. Access to all inJormation of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation,
and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the School from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

Packet page 115 of 228



13.

L4.

15.

16.

17.

18.

d. Minutes of the meetings of the board of directors or sumnaries of actions of recent
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the School and
involves:

a. Management,

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or

c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
School's financial statements communicated by employees, former emplo:yees,
regulators, or others.

We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse/ whose effects
should be considered when preparing financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and
assessments whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial
statements.

19. We have disclosed to you the identity of the School's related parties and all the related
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

School-Specific

20. We have made available to you all financial records and related data.

21' There have been no communications from regulatory agencies conceming
noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.-

22. We have takel timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, or abuse that you have
reported to us.

23. We have a Process to track the status of audit findings and recomrnendations.

Packet page 116 of 228



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other
studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been
implemented.

We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations,
as well as our planned corrective actions for the report.

The School has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets, liabilities, or equity.

We are responsible for compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts
and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts,
and legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to
have occurred, of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that
we believe have a material effect on the financial statements or other financial data
significant to the audit objectives, and any other instances that warrant the attention of
those charged with governance.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely
to have occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements
that we believe have a material effect on the determination of financial itatement
amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objective.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to
have occurred, of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the
financial statements or other financial data significant to the iudit obyectives.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt
contracts; and we have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations, and
provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data
significant to the audit objectives, including legal and contractual provisions for
reporting specific activities in separate funds.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations
(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), piovisions
of contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any rJated lebt covenants,
whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, as a basis
for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and
related notes. We have designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or
experience to oversee your services and have assumed all management responsibilities.

29.

30.

31.

32.

JJ.

Packet page 117 of 228



34.

We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial statements
and related notes.

The School has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

The School has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

We have followed all applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and
amending budgets.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with
CASB Statement No. 34.

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 37 for
presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are
presented as major are particularly important to financial statement users.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted, and
unrestricted) and equity amounts are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments
are properly valued.

Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in
the statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

Revenues are aPproPriately classified in the statement of activities within program
revenues, general revenues/ contributions to term or permanent endowments, or
contributions to permanent fund principal.

Interfund, intemal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately
classified and reported.

Deposits, investment securities, and derivative instruments are properly classified as to
risk and are properly disclosed.

Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized,
reported, and, if applicable, depreciated.

We have appropriately disclosed the School's policy regarding whether to first apply
restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for whicir

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

Packet page 118 of 228



49.

50.

51.

both restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net
position is properly recognized under the policy.

We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is,
restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for
expenditures for which more than one resource classification is available. That policy
determines the fund balance classifications for financial reporting purposes.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI).
The RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of
measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period.
We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying
the measurement and presentation of the RSI.

With respect to the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison
information:

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the management's discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and we believe thii
information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
methods of measurement and presentation of the management's discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information have not changed from those used
in the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information.

Expenditures of federal awards were below the $750,000 threshold for the year ended
June 30, 2020 and we were not required to have an audit in accordance with tfie Uniform
Guidance.

Date

52.

Business Manager

tr e'd tv{plNto

Packet page 119 of 228



����������	
�����	�������

��������	����

���������

������� � !��"#�"��

$��%#�# ��

 & � �� � '"� �� ("� � ������) �	&& ��

��	�* ��

�������	

���	������������������	������

�������� ��
����	����
������� ��������� ����

�������� ��	��������� ���� ���������

����� ��������� ��������� ����

��	�� ��

�����������	 �	�����
�	�!�"���!	
�


�������� #�	
�$��"��� �������
 ���� ���������

��%����� &�  ���
 ��������� ����

�������� '���"����	�"�'���"������ �������
 ���� ���������

��%����� &�  ���
 ��������� ����

����� ���������( ���������( ����������(

��	��

��������"�)*������
����!��+�"�!,������

�����(�� -.�� ��� ���� ���������

�������� /�����
�������	!�� (������� ����

�������� ���"�'	�	��� ����%���� ����

����� ��������� ��������� ���������

��������������� ��%���%��� ��%���%��� �%��%�%��(

)	������0��
Packet page 120 of 228



03/05/2021

Rhodes-Warden Insurance Inc.
PO Box 2660
Albany, OR 97321

Bob Foster

541-967-8062 541-967-4169

bfoster@rhodeswardenins.com

91014939-205264 31

Kings Valley Charter School
38840 Kings Valley Highway
Philomath, OR 97370

Special Districts Association of Oregon

A 35P60168-1020 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

X
X Educators Liability
X  

X

20,000,000

30,000,000

Special Districts Association of Oregon

A 35P60168-1020 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

 
 X
X X

500,000

Excess Auto 14500000

SAIF Corporation

B 956899 09/01/2020 09/01/2021 X 500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000

Kings Valley Charter School
38840 Kings Valley Highway
Philomath, OR 97370

(RMF)

Printed by RMF on March 05, 2021 at 09:17AM

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRO-
POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $JECT

OTHER: $

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Packet page 121 of 228



Packet page 122 of 228



Packet page 123 of 228



Packet page 124 of 228



Packet page 125 of 228



Packet page 126 of 228



Packet page 127 of 228



 

 Community Use of District Facilities – KG-AR
1-5

 

Philomath School District 17J 
 
Code: KG-AR 
Revised/Reviewed: 8/02; 2/24/20 
Orig. Code: KG-AR 

Community Use of District Facilities 
 
The following rules shall be in effect: 
 
1. A Building Use Request and Agreement Form must be submitted by the person or group to the school 

office in coordination with administrators of the involved facility. The users must agree to all guidelines 
on the Building Use Request and Agreement Form. The original copy of the agreement will remain in the 
school office, with copies distributed to the appropriate building administrator, building custodial staff 
and facility user.  

2. All use of school facilities is subject to approval of the building principal or designee.  

3. All use of school facilities is subject to signing a rental agreement prior to use.  

4. All users of school facilities are to be responsible for any damage to or loss of building, grounds, or 
equipment during the time of their occupancy or resulting thereof.  

5. All rental fees are to be paid promptly to the district at the end of the use period or when billed for same.  

6. Renters of school facilities are responsible for conduct of group members, audience, or any other persons 
who gain access to the building during their rental period.  

7. No alcohol is to be sold, served, or consumed by any person on the school premises nor in any school 
building at any time. Tobacco is not to be used on our “tobacco free campus.”  

8. For practice or rehearsal and/or set up purposes, renters of building facilities may use facilities for a 
period of time to be determined by the district schedule.  

9. Renters of building facilities may use only the part of the building rented, and must leave the facilities in a 
clean and orderly condition.  

10. Renters of building facilities are responsible for unauthorized persons who gain access to the building 
during use period as a result of the renter not keeping doors and windows locked.  

11. Renters who violate these rules and regulations may be denied further use of the building.  

12. Supervision from Philomath school staff and/or custodial services may be required at the established rate 
of $35.00/hour. Maintenance and technology services are $55.00/hour if required in the rental agreement. 
All required services must be submitted to the district office.  

13. All organizations must use district employees for weekend activities use when required. The staff member 
is responsible for access, security, supervision and cleaning and must be employed in the building where 
the activity is to take place unless prior approval is obtained from the site administrator. If the district 
requires a staff member and neither a school custodian nor other staff member is available, the 
organization will be declined on the Building Use Request and Agreement Form.  

Packet page 128 of 228



 

 Community Use of District Facilities – KG-AR
2-5

 

14. Should a staff member be associated with the group using the facility and sign the request form, the need 
for custodial security to open or close the building may be waived.  

15. The following hourly fees shall be used for the rental of school facilities (kitchen rate is for 4 hours- 
minimum charge, all other spaces is a 1 hour-minimum charge):  

Groups:  

a. Employee, job related  
b. Employee non-job-related/individual community members and groups/nonprofit with no admission 

charged  
c. Nonprofit with admission charged  
d. Any person or group acting for profit including employees 

Rates: 

SPACE  A  B  C  D  

Classroom  0  $ 10.00  $ 20.00  $ 30.00  

Large Gym  0  $ 30.00  
$250/day  

$ 50.00  
$400/day  

$ 100.00  
$800/day  

Small Gym  0  $ 20.00  $ 35.00  $ 70.00  

Kitchen  0  $ 60.00  $ 60.00  $ 120.00  

Commons  0  $ 30.00  
$300/day  

$ 50.00  
$500/day  

$ 100.00  
$1000/day  

Kitchen/Commons  0  $ 100.00  $ 150.00  $ 250.00  

Auditorium & Stage  0  By supplementary contract (page 6)  

 
e. Special Rates may be established for groups such as Oregon State University, Linn-Benton 

Community College, PYAC, AYSO etc., on a weekly or semester basis. These rates shall be 
established by the superintendent and will not be such that prohibit these groups from using our 
facilities. However, school district activities will have priority for the use of all facilities. 

 

Signature Representing Organization:           

 

Date:      Key Number Issued: _____________ Date Returned:     

  

Packet page 129 of 228



 

 Community Use of District Facilities – KG-AR
3-5

 

The following rates shall be in effect for the use of other sports facilities for categories c, d, e:  
 

Football Field ...........................................................$90.00/event  
PA & Press Box..............................................$30.00/event 
Electric Clock.................................................$18.00/event 
Lights..............................................................$24.00/hour 

$275.00/season per team 

Baseball Field ...........................................................$50.00/event 
Lights..............................................................$18.00/hour 

$200.00/season per team 

Softball Field.............................................................$50.00/event $200.00/season per team 

Soccer Field...............................................................$50.00/event $200.00/season per team 

Tennis Courts………………………………………$50.00/event 
          Commercial Use (i.e. Lessons)……………...$25.00/hour 

$200.00/season per team 

Track..........................................................................$90.00/event 
Blocks..............................................................$18.00/event Pits 
Standards, Bars................................................$36.00/event 
PA & Press Box...............................................$30.00/event 

$275.00/season per team 

 

16. The Board or its delegate may require additional deposits or charges for special requests not covered by 
the policy.  

17. All cleaning/security deposits remain the property of the user’s organization and are refundable until such 
time an assessment is made against the user. The user shall be notified of such assessment three working 
days prior to the user’s next activity.  

18. All fees and assessment shall be deposited to the school district office and shall be used for the facilities 
operational costs.  

19. The Board or its delegate retains the right to deny anyone further use due to security breach, damage to 
facilities or other improper action. Problems with users’ groups (damages, etc.) will be documented and 
may preclude future use.  

  
(See Building Use Request and Agreement Form on Page 4)  
  

Packet page 130 of 228



 

 Community Use of District Facilities – KG-AR
4-5

 

Philomath School District  
Building Use Request Agreement Form 
 
 Fiscal Year   Date    
 
Organization requesting   
 
Contact person    
 
Mailing address   
 
Phone (H)   (W)   Email   
  
Purpose of usage 
 
   
Building   Will admission or fees be charged?   Yes   No 
   
 Specific Spaces  Dates  Hours  Fee Charged by School 

1.         
2.         
         
 Use Fee Total $   
Any equipment requested?   
 
Name of district employee responsible for security and clean-up, if applicable: 
 
Name   Employee Signature   
   
Custodial/Security services required: Open   hours 
 Closed   hours 
 
Total Hours ____ x $35.00/hour =       Total use and custodial fee $      
   
Building Restrictions/Deposit Requirements:  
  
By signing this agreement, the group or individual is agreeing to abide by the terms and conditions listed above and on the 
back of this form.  
 
    
Signature representing “Organization”     Signature representing “school”  District initials 
  
Key checked out by:   Date:   Returned:   
  

< over > 
 
Signature Representing Organization:   
 
Date:   Key number issued:   Date returned:   

Packet page 131 of 228



 

 Community Use of District Facilities – KG-AR
5-5

 

Auditorium Equipment Needs/Reservation Form 
 
 Where will performance take place? 

o Stage Only  
o Floor Only 
o Stage and Floor 

 House Seating  
o Tables and chairs 

  Number of Tables  
  Number of chairs 

o Extended platform (theater seats) 
o Fully – 480 seats 
o Partially - Total seats   

 Lighting 
o Florescent 
o Programmable fixed illumination 

 House 
 Full 
 Dimmable 

 To lowest level 
 Half 

 Stage 
 Apron 
 Apron plus stage 

 Floor in front of stage 
o Variable stage lighting (additional fee) 

 
 Sound Fixed Volume 

o Handheld microphones (not to exceed 4):  
  Number of Handheld 
  Number of Wireless (up to 2) 

o Microphone Stand 
  Number of stands 

o Music Playback 
 Player has 1/8” output jack 
 Player has ¼” output jack 

 
 Common Wall 

o Open  
o Closed  

 Storage Room 
 Makeup Room 
 Monitored Variable Sound – Requires Sound Technician 

(additional fee) 
 
 Projector (additional staff fee) 

o Will use computer for presentation 
o Will use computer for video 
o Need DVD player 
o Need sound with projector 

 
 Custodial (additional fee) 
 Ushers (additional fee) 
 Stage Crew (additional fee) 
 Ticket Booth (additional fee) 
 Piano (additional fee) 
 
Usage Fees (check applicable fees): 

 Auditorium: $100 per hour 
 Custodial fee: $35 per person/per hour 
 Lighting and technician: $35 per hour 
 Preprogrammed lighting: $10 per hour 
 Preprogrammed sound: $10 per hour 
 Sound and technician: $35 per hour 
 Stage crew: $15 per person/per hour 
 Ticket booth: $15 per hour 
 Ushers: $15 per person/per hour 
 Building supervisor: $45 per hour 

 
Total hours rented:   
 
Total rental cost:   
 
Deposit:   
 
Payment Received:   
 
 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS: (Based on School Board Policy KG). The estimated total cost is subject to review. The organization’s 
contact will be notified of any change in rental prior to use. Schools have priority on use of facilities and may cause cancellation of 
use by outside groups. However, every effort will be made to give at least 48 hour notice.  
This agreement is between the school and the organization identified in the application (“Organization”) In consideration of this 
agreement, the school does hereby grant the Organization the right to use the facilities noted above, The Organization shall pay the 
actual charge billed by the school after completion of use or monthly as appropriate, and within 10 days from the day such bill is 
determined by the school. The Organization assumes the responsibility (over normal wear and usage) for damage and cost of repairs to 
the above facilities/equipment caused by the Organization, costs of clean up where Organization fails to properly clean up after the 
event/use, as well as for the conduct of group members, audience, or any other persons who gain access to the facilities during their 
rental period. The Organization promises to indemnify and hold the district, its officers, and employees, harmless on account of any 
claim arising out of this use. This agreement is merely a license and shall not be construed as a lease of the school’s property. The 
Organization is restricted and limited to use only the space/equipment requested above The entire school property is an alcohol, drug 
and tobacco-free facility and, therefore, these items must not enter the premises The Organization is responsible for unauthorized 
persons who gain access to the building during use period as a result of the Organization not keeping doors and windows locked.  
Proof of insurance is required before approval of request.  
Organizations who violate these Terms and Conditions may be denied further use of the facilities. In carrying out this non-school 
sponsored activity, it is the contracting third party’s obligation and not the Philomath School District’s, to comply with the 
requirements of the Office of Civil Rights as well as those stipulated in Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

Packet page 132 of 228



  
Oregon achieves . . . together! 

 

 

OPERATIONAL BLUEPRINT FOR SCHOOL REENTRY 2020‐21 

Updated 1/19/2021 

Under ODE’s Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance, each school1 has been directed to submit a plan to the district2 in 
order to provide on‐site and/or hybrid instruction. Districts must submit each school’s plan to the local school board and 
make the plans available to the public. This form is to be used to document a district’s, school’s or program’s plan to 
ensure students can return for the 2020‐21 school year, in some form, in accordance with Executive Order 20‐25(10). 
Schools must use the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance document as they complete their Operational Blueprint for 
Reentry. ODE recommends plan development be inclusive of, but not limited to, school‐based administrators, teachers 

and school staff, health and nursing staff, association leadership, nutrition services, transportation services, tribal 
consultation,3 parents and others for purposes of providing expertise, developing broad understanding of the health 
protocols and carrying out plan implementation. It is required that a revised Operational Blueprint be completed and 
updated when there is a change of Instructional Model. 

1. Please fill out information: 

SCHOOL/DISTRICT/PROGRAM INFORMATION 

Name of School, District or Program  Philomath High School (PSD 17J) 

Key Contact Person for this Plan  Mike Bussard, Principal 

Phone Number of this Person  541‐929‐3211 

Email Address of this Person  mike.bussard@philomath.k12.or.us 

Sectors and position titles of those who informed 
the plan 

Superintendent, Principal, Assistant Principal, District Nurse, 
Teachers, Classified Staff, Business Manager, Special 
Programs Director, Technology Director, Food Service 
Provider, Transportation Provider, ODE and OHA. 

Local public health office(s) or officers(s)  Benton County Health Department (Paula Felipe) 
541‐766‐6168 

Name of person Designated to Establish, 
Implement and Enforce Physical Distancing 
Requirements 

Mike Bussard, Principal 
Tony Matta, Assistant Principal 

Intended Effective Dates for this Plan  March 1, 2021 – June 30, 2021 

ESD Region  LBL (Albany, OR) 

                                                       
1 For the purposes of this guidance: “school” refers to all public schools, including public charter schools, public virtual charter schools, alternative 

education programs, private schools and the Oregon School for the Deaf. For ease of readability, “school” will be used inclusively to reference all of these 
settings. 
2 For the purposes of this guidance: “district” refers to a school district, education service district, public charter school sponsoring district, virtual public 

charter school sponsoring district, state sponsored public charter school, alternative education programs, private schools, and the Oregon School for the 
Deaf. 
3 Tribal Consultation is a separate process from stakeholder engagement; consultation recognizes and affirms tribal rights of self‐government and tribal 

sovereignty, and mandates state government to work with American Indian nations on a government‐to‐government basis. 

Packet page 133 of 228



 

Page 2 of 25 

 

 

2. Please list efforts you have made to engage your community (public health information sharing, taking feedback 
on planning, etc.) in preparing for school in 2020‐21. Include information on engagement with communities 
often underserved and marginalized and those communities disproportionately impacted by COVID‐19. 

Recognizing and supporting the diverse needs within the Philomath School District, equity is a critical lens for 
our planning and actions.  Our schools are dedicated to placing students, families, and staff at the center of our 
considerations for the 2020‐2021 school year.  Philomath High School (PHS) has taken input from all staff as well 
as from focus group meetings (i.e. parents of students, Spanish family liaison, Special Education family 
representative, Site Council members, counselor, teachers, and administration), and Livestream school board 
meetings.  Parents have participated in two district‐wide surveys and two virtual ‘Town Hall’ meetings. 

While our original plan to return students to school in September did not work out, we are excited for their 
return at this time.  Through the school year, we have announced dates for starting only to be blocked for one 
reason or another.  Most recently, PSD decided to complete the updated Operational Blueprint, reflecting the 
01/19/2021 Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance, prior to opening schools. 

Philomath High School will begin with students physically attending school through an array of opportunities to 
best meet the needs of students and families.  As metrics allow and as elementary school success is 
demonstrated, high school students will schedule a return date for hybrid learning. 
● Hybrid (On‐Site) Every Other Day 
● Hybrid (On‐Site) Every Day (for students with greatest need) 
 
Students remaining fully in CDL will transfer enrollment to the Philomath Academy. 

 
If major changes to guidance and practice, PHS stands ready to more quickly move to additional on‐site learning 
or to comprehensive distance learning. 
 
Philomath High School will offer access to four days of on‐site learning for students from marginalized and/or 
underserved student populations.  The current PHS student population is represented as follows: 
● 30%  Free/Reduced Lunch 
●   9%  Hispanic 
● 10%  Non‐White 
● 90%  White 
● < 1%  Emerging Bilingual 
● 12%   Special Education 
●    6%   Section 504 

 
3. Select which instructional model will be used: 

☐ On‐Site Learning    ✓ Hybrid Learning    ☐ Comprehensive Distance Learning 

4. If you selected Comprehensive Distance Learning, you only have to fill out the green portion of the Operational 
Blueprint for Reentry (i.e., page 2 in the initial template). 

5. If you selected On‐Site Learning or Hybrid Learning, you have to fill out the blue portion of the Operational 
Blueprint for Reentry (i.e., pages 3‐22 in the initial template) and submit online, including updating when you 
are changing Instructional Model (https://app.smartsheet.com/b/form/a4dedb5185d94966b1dffc75e4874c8a). 

* Note: Private schools are required to comply with only sections 1‐3 of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance.  

 
 

Packet page 134 of 228



 

Page 3 of 25 

 

 

REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPREHENSIVE DISTANCE LEARNING OPERATIONAL BLUEPRINT 
This section must be completed by any school that is seeking to provide instruction through Comprehensive Distance Learning. For Private Schools, 
completing this section is optional (not required). Schools providing On‐Site or Hybrid Instructional Models do not need to complete this section. 

 

Describe why you are selecting Comprehensive Distance Learning as the school’s Instructional Model for the effective dates of this plan. 

Some students will remain in the CDL environment, to accommodate students not yet able to return to the school site, 
through enrollment in the Philomath Academy. 

 

In completing this portion of the Blueprint you are attesting that you have reviewed the Comprehensive Distance Learning Guidance. Here is a 
link to the overview of CDL Requirements. Please name any requirements you need ODE to review for any possible flexibility or waiver.  

N/A 

 

Describe the school’s plan, including the anticipated timeline, for returning to Hybrid Learning or On‐Site Learning consistent with the Ready 
Schools, Safe Learners guidance. 

N/A 

 
The remainder of this operational blueprint is not applicable to schools operating a Comprehensive Distance Learning Model. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 135 of 228



 

Page 4 of 25 

 

ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR HYBRID / ON‐SITE OPERATIONAL BLUEPRINT 
This section must be completed by any school that is providing instruction through On‐Site or Hybrid Instructional Models. 

Schools providing Comprehensive Distance Learning Instructional Models do not need to complete this section unless the school is implementing 
the Limited In‐Person Instruction provision under the Comprehensive Distance Learning guidance. 

 
 

 

  1. Public Health Protocols 

 
1a. COMMUNICABLE DISEASE MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR COVID‐19 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Conduct a risk assessment as required by OSHA administrative rule 
OAR 437‐001‐0744(3)(g). 
● OSHA has developed a risk assessment template.  

See Attached 
Completed by PSD Facilities Director (Joey DiGiovannangelo) 
 
Screen upon entry; cohort tracking; hand sanitizing; face covering; 
facility cleaning protocols. 
 
See Communicable Disease (CD) Management Plan. 
(Updated 02/16/2021) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The point person at Philomath High School is the principal, Mike 
Bussard. 
 
Adding two days of inservice prior to the start of the hybrid learning 
model to allow training in safety and instructional protocols. 
 

Anonymous Google Form, developed and shared by PSD. 
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSc‐
L8eFSTe9GaUVCTwvht0ofS21ibWVp33os3c6Fn6zWg5PDw/viewform?gx
ids=7628 

OSHA Complaint 
https://osha.oregon.gov/workers/Pages/index.aspx 
 
 
LPHA Staff: Lynn Rogers and Paula Felipe 
District Nurse: Lori Haslam and Tina Hoch 
 
 
Policies/Protocols handbook has been updated routinely to include new 
RSSL guidance protocols.  Trainings for staff have occurred virtually via 
zoom on multiple occasions, as well as in person via a school 
walkthrough on multiple occasions. 
Updated training to take place with updated Blueprints and CDMP. 
 
 
 
 
 

✓  Implement measures to limit the spread of COVID‐19 within the 
school setting, including when the school setting is outside a building. 

✓ Update written Communicable Disease Management Plan to 
specifically address the prevention of the spread of COVID‐19. 
Examples are located in the Oregon School Nurses Association (OSNA) 
COVID‐19 Toolkit. 
● Review OSHA requirements for infection control plan to ensure 

that all required elements are covered by your communicable 
disease management plan, including making the plan available 
to employees at their workplace. Requirements are listed in 
OSHA administrative rule OAR 437‐001‐0744(3)(h). 

● OSHA has developed a sample infection control plan.   

✓ Designate a single point‐person at each school to establish, 
implement, support and enforce all RSSL health and safety protocols, 
including face coverings and physical distancing requirements, 
consistent with the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance and other 
guidance from OHA. This role should be known to all staff in the 
building with consistent ways for licensed and classified staff to access 
and voice concerns or needs.  

✓ Create a simple process that allows for named and anonymous sharing 
of concerns that can be reviewed on a daily and weekly basis by the 
designated RSSL building point‐person. Example: Anonymous survey 
form or suggestion box where at least weekly submissions and 
resolutions are shared in some format.   
 
 
 
 

✓  Include names of the LPHA staff, school nurses, and other medical 
experts who provided support and resources to the district/school 
policies and plans. Review relevant local, state, and national evidence 
to inform plan. 

✓ Process and procedures established to train all staff in sections 1 ‐ 3 of 
the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance. Consider conducting the 
training virtually, or, if in‐person, ensure physical distancing is 
maintained to the maximum extent possible. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 136 of 228



 

Page 5 of 25 

 

 

✓ Protocol to notify the local public health authority (LPHA Directory by 
County) of any confirmed COVID‐19 cases among students or staff.  
 
 

Contact School Administrator: Mike Bussard or Tony Matta 
Administrator will notify District Nurse (Lori Haslam or Tina Hoch) who 
will follow up with LPHA. 
 
PSD Facilities Director, Joey DiGiovannangelo, will be responsible for 
planning and coordinating with custodial staff to implement the 
disinfection of schools.  A cleaning schedule will be provided for the 
custodians inclusive of restrooms and common areas. 
 
All presumptive and confirmed cases at PHS or involving PHS staff or 
students will be reported to the District’s nurse, Lori Haslam or Tina 
Hoch.  They will follow up with LPHA. 
 
 
All PHS students/staff will receive daily screening (temperature checks) 
by staff at assigned entry points to the school.  Any ill person will be 
isolated per RSSL guidelines.   
 
Students with COVID symptoms at school will be sent to isolation in an 
empty office near the front office called the Learning Annex. If needed a 
secondary location is the “sick room” located near the front office. 
 
E‐mail, personal phone calls, and/or formal letters. 

Use letters from Oregon School Nurses Association COVID‐19 Toolkit 
and Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools. 

Daily Student Tracking ‐ Students in classroom tracked through daily 
attendance in Wazzle (SIS). 

General Logs: Attached to the classroom door.  Collected and turned in 
to the school office each Friday.  Filed at school office at the end of each 
week in a location known to the school nurse. 

Personal Logs: Itinerant or district staff need to provide location of 
personal log information to District Nurse as may be requested. 

Keeping logs where best meant to be‐‐ easily found. 

Peggy Ring, ESD, Mental Health,... where work is done. 

General logs turned in to the school office at the end of each week.  
Stored in school office for at least four weeks. 

  

 

 

 
Any additional people that enter the classroom will be required to sign 
in on the contact tracing log and immediately sanitize or wash their 
hands upon entry.  These logs will be kept in the office and can be 
checked by the District nurse if/when needed.   
 
All itinerant and district staff entering the building will enter via the 
front office and will be required to sign the contact tracing log, and 
complete health screening before entering the building.  Then, they will 
sign each classroom log if they enter within a designated cohort.     
 

✓ Plans for systematic disinfection of classrooms, common areas, 
offices, table surfaces, bathrooms and activity areas.  
 
 
 

✓ Process to report to the LPHA any cluster of any illness among staff or 
students. 

✓ Protocol to cooperate with the LPHA recommendations. 

✓ Provide all logs and information to the LPHA in a timely manner. 

✓ Protocol for screening students and staff for symptoms (see section 1f 
of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance). 
 
 

✓ Protocol to isolate any ill or exposed persons from physical contact 
with others. 
 
 

✓ Protocol for communicating potential COVID‐19 cases to the school 
community and other stakeholders (see section 1e of the Ready 
Schools, Safe Learners guidance). 
 

✓ Create a system for maintaining daily logs for each student/cohort for 
the purposes of contact tracing. This system needs to be made in 
consultation with a school/district nurse or an LPHA official. Sample 
logs are available as a part of the Oregon School Nurses Association 
COVID‐19 Toolkit. 
● If a student(s) is part of a stable cohort (a group of students 

that are consistently in contact with each other or in multiple 
cohort groups) that conform to the requirements of cohorting 
(see section 1d of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance), 
the daily log may be maintained for the cohort.  

● If a student(s) is not part of a stable cohort, then an individual 
student log must be maintained. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

✓ Required components of individual daily student/cohort logs include: 
● Child’s name 
● Drop off/pick up time 
● Parent/guardian name and emergency contact information 
● All staff (including itinerant staff, district staff, substitutes, and 

guest teachers) names and phone numbers who interact with a 
stable cohort or individual student 

✓ Protocol to record/keep daily logs to be used for contact tracing for a 
minimum of four weeks to assist the LPHA as needed. 
● See supplemental guidance on LPHA/school partnering on 

contact tracing. 
● Refer to OHA Policy on Sharing COVID‐19 Information 

✓ Process to ensure that all itinerant and all district staff (maintenance, 
administrative, delivery, nutrition, and any other staff) who move 
between buildings keep a log or calendar with a running four‐week 
history of their time in each school building and who they were in 
contact with at each site. 

Packet page 137 of 228



 

Page 6 of 25 

 

 

✓ Process to ensure that the school reports to and consults with the 
LPHA regarding cleaning and possible classroom or program closure if 
anyone who has entered school is diagnosed with COVID‐19. 
 
 
 
 

Contact: School Administrator 
Principal will contact District Nurse. 
 
PSD Facilities Director, Joey DiGiovannangelo, responsible for this area. 
PSD Nurse to contact BC Health Department. 
 
Cohort tracking as per CD Management Plan. 
 
Susan Halliday, District Superintendent, will report this information. 
 
 
 
See Communicable Disease Management Plan. 
 
 

✓ Designate a staff member and process to ensure that the school 
provides updated information regarding current instructional models 
and student counts and reports these data in ODE’s COVID‐19 Weekly 
School Status system. 

✓ Protocol to respond to potential outbreaks (see section 3 of the Ready 
Schools, Safe Learners guidance). 

 
1b. HIGH‐RISK POPULATIONS 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Serve students in high‐risk population(s) whether learning is 
happening through On‐Site (including outside), Hybrid (partially On‐
Site and partially Comprehensive Distance Learning models), or 
Comprehensive Distance Learning models.  

Information will be maintained for all students and staff identified as 
vulnerable and/or high risk. 
 
There is a commitment to serve all students enrolled in school. 
 
 
Information will be maintained for all students and staff identified as 
vulnerable and/or high risk.  Staff members at high risk may be 
considered for re‐assigned duties as available and/or provided with all 
possible leave options. 
 
Only essential and consistent volunteers will be able to work directly 
with students in schools.  Cohort rules will apply. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PSD District Nurse will provide case management/ care planning for 
students with chronic medical conditions which could present with 
symptoms of COVID (asthma, coughing, Crohn’s/IBS lactose intolerance, 
diarrhea, allergies, runny nose) to ensure they are not excluded 
unnecessarily and/or disproportionately. 
 
PSD District Nurse will coordinate with families, BC Public Health, and/or 
medical providers to determine return‐to‐school status and current 
needs of each student. 
 
All students identified as vulnerable, either by physician or parent/ 
guardian notification, will have the opportunity to enroll in the CDL 
model or online instruction through the Philomath Academy. 
 
Students who experience specific disabilities will continue to receive 
specially designed instruction. 
 
Students in need of language support will continue to receive ELD 
services. 
 
 
 

Medically Fragile, Complex and Nursing‐Dependent Student 
Requirements 

✓ All districts must account for students who have health conditions 
that require additional nursing services. Oregon law (ORS 336.201) 
defines three levels of severity related to required nursing services:  
1. Medically Complex: Are students who may have an unstable 

health condition and who may require daily professional 
nursing services. 

2. Medically Fragile: Are students who may have a life‐
threatening health condition and who may require immediate 
professional nursing services. 

3. Nursing‐Dependent: Are students who have an unstable or 
life‐threatening health condition and who require daily, direct, 
and continuous professional nursing services. 

✓ Review Supplemental Guidance on Community and Health 
Responsibilities Regarding FAPE in Relation to IDEA During CDL and 
Hybrid. 

✓ Staff and school administrators, in partnership with school nurses, or 
other school health providers, should work with interdisciplinary 
teams to address individual student needs. The school registered 
nurse (RN) is responsible for nursing care provided to individual 
students as outlined in ODE guidance and state law: 
● Communicate with parents and health care providers to 

determine return to school status and current needs of the 
student.  

● Coordinate and update other health services the student may 
be receiving in addition to nursing services. This may include 
speech language pathology, occupational therapy, physical 
therapy, as well as behavioral and mental health services.   

● Modify Health Management Plans, Care Plans, IEPs, or 504 or 
other student‐level medical plans, as indicated, to address 
current health care considerations.     

● The RN practicing in the school setting should be supported to 
remain up to date on current guidelines and access 
professional support such as evidence‐based resources from 
the Oregon School Nurses Association.  

● Service provision should consider health and safety as well as 
legal standards. 

Packet page 138 of 228



 

Page 7 of 25 

 

 

● Appropriate medical‐grade personal protective equipment 
(PPE) should be made available to nurses and other health 
providers.  

● Work with an interdisciplinary team to meet requirements of 
ADA and FAPE. 

● High‐risk individuals may meet criteria for exclusion during a 
local health crisis.  

● Refer to updated state and national guidance and resources 
such as:  
o U.S. Department of Education Supplemental Fact 

Sheet: Addressing the Risk of COVID‐19 in Preschool, 
Elementary and Secondary Schools While Serving 
Children with Disabilities from March 21, 2020. 

o ODE guidance updates for Special Education. Example 
from March 11, 2020.  

o OAR 581‐015‐2000 Special Education, requires districts 
to provide ‘school health services and school nurse 
services’ as part of the ‘related services’ in order ‘to 
assist a child with a disability to benefit from special 
education.’  

o OAR 333‐019‐0010 Public Health: Investigation and 
Control of Diseases: General Powers and 
Responsibilities, outlines authority and responsibilities 
for school exclusion. 

 
 
 
 
 
District Nurse in touch with all high risk students including plans for 
return to in‐person instruction. 

 
1c. PHYSICAL DISTANCING 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Establish a minimum of 35 square feet per person when determining 
room capacity. Calculate only with usable classroom space, 
understanding that desks and room set‐up will require use of all 
space in the calculation. This also applies for professional 
development and staff gatherings.  If implementing Learning Outside 
guidance, establish an outside learning space for learning that 
maintains minimum 35 square feet per person. 
● Within this design, educators should have their own minimum 

of 35 square feet and the design of the learning environment 
must allow for some ability for the educator to move through 
the room efficiently and carefully without breaking 6 feet of 
physical distance to the maximum extent feasible.  

All classrooms/teaching spaces (including communal spaces, if they are 
used) will be evaluated to determine how many people can be 
accommodated allowing 35 square feet of usable space. 
 
Relocate extra furniture to allow seating capacity for only the allowable 
number of people in each classroom. Identify furniture which is intended 
for student use and identify other furniture as off‐limits. 
 
Assign seating to maximize physical distancing and minimize physical 
interaction. 
 
Floor markings will demonstrate movement patterns and physical 
distance requirements. 
 
Travel lanes will be marked in hallways. 
  
Staff in each school to oversee compliance (through re‐teaching, not 
discipline) with social distancing and support the process of maintaining 
contact‐tracing logs. 
 
Schedule modifications to limit the number of students in the school and 
classrooms (cohorting). 
 
Stagger use of community spaces (hallways, cafeteria, gymnasium, 
playground) 
 
Assigned entry points for each cohort will minimize the number of 
students at entrances and allow for supervision while students are 
physically distanced. 
 
 
 

✓ Support physical distancing in all daily activities and instruction, 
maintaining six feet between individuals to the maximum extent 
possible.  

✓ Minimize time standing in lines and take steps to ensure that six feet 
of distance between students is maintained, including marking 
spacing on floor, one‐way traffic flow in constrained spaces, etc. 

✓ Schedule modifications to limit the number of students in the 
building or outside learning space (e.g., rotating groups by days or 
location, staggered schedules to avoid hallway crowding and 
gathering). 

✓ Plan for students who will need additional support in learning how to 
maintain physical distancing requirements. Provide instruction; don’t 
employ punitive discipline. 

✓ Staff must maintain physical distancing during all staff meetings and 
conferences, or consider remote web‐based meetings. 

Packet page 139 of 228



 

Page 8 of 25 

 

 

Additional Considerations:  
Special education services will be planned and provided for by each Case 
Manager, in collaboration with the classroom teacher, with 
administrative and parent input. Most services will be provided using a 
push‐in model within the classroom. However, when 1‐1 support is 
needed, specialists will maintain physical distancing, wear face shields, 
and use Plexiglas partitions or tri‐fold barriers as necessary. 
 
Speech/Language Pathologist:  SLP services will be provided via a 
combination of in‐person and comprehensive distance learning.  
Speech/language pathologist will work with families to determine the 
best way to serve their children.   
 
Music: Will follow Visual and Performing Arts Additional 
Considerations.  When indoors, students must wear face coverings at all 
time.  Face coverings not required when singing of playing a wind 
instrument outdoors while practicing 6’ social distancing requirements.  
Band and Choir classes will continue to take place using the CDL model.  
 
PE Instruction: Will follow Physical Education Additional Considerations. 
PE classes will be scheduled in the gymnasium or outside, with cohort 
groups. Classes will be scheduled so there’s enough time for required 
cleaning and sanitization between groups. Each cohort will be given their 
own items to use for the lesson and will not share with other classes.  
Locker rooms will not be used at this time. 

 
1d. COHORTING 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Where feasible, establish stable cohorts: groups shall be no larger 
than can be accommodated by the space available to provide 35 
square feet per person, including staff. 
● The smaller the cohort, the less risk of spreading disease. As 

cohort groups increase in size, the risk of spreading disease 
increases.   

Contact tracing logs: Logs will be maintained for the school and all 
cohorts. 
 
Attendance will be taken by individual classroom teachers.  Nursing staff 
will seek cohort logs from the school office as needed. 
 
Entrances/Exits, Meals: Student cohorts are assigned to specific 
entrances based on cohort. 
 
Meals times shall take place in different locations to maintain cohorts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cleaning:  See CD Management Plan 
 
 
 
 
 

✓ Students cannot be part of any single cohort, or part of multiple 
cohorts that exceed a total of 100 people within the educational 
week4, unless the school is offering Learning Outside, then they must 
follow guidelines for cohorting in Learning Outside guidance. Schools 
must plan to limit cohort sizes to allow for efficient contact‐tracing 
and minimal risk for exposure. Cohorts may change week‐to‐week, 
but must be stable within the educational week. 

✓ Each school must have a system for daily logs to ensure contract 
tracing among the cohort (see section 1a of the Ready Schools, Safe 
Learners guidance). 

✓ Minimize interaction between students in different stable cohorts 
(e.g., access to restrooms, activities, common areas). Provide access 
to All Gender/Gender Neutral restrooms. 

✓ Cleaning and sanitizing surfaces (e.g., desks, dry erase boards, door 
handles, etc.) must be maintained between multiple student uses, 
even in the same cohort. 

✓ Design cohorts such that all students (including those protected 
under ADA and IDEA) maintain access to general education, grade‐
level academic content standards5, and peers. 

                                                       
4 The cohort limit is focused on the student’s experience and their limit of 100 people includes every person they come into contact with, including 

staff. There is not a limitation for staff in cohort size while care should be given to design and attention to the additional requirements. 

5 Academic content standards refer to all of Oregon state academic standards and the Oregon CTE skill sets. 

Packet page 140 of 228



 

Page 9 of 25 

 

 

✓ Minimize the number of staff that interact with each cohort to the 
extent possible, staff who interact with multiple stable cohorts must 
wash/sanitize their hands between interactions with different stable 
cohorts. 

Staff Working with Multiple Cohorts: Staff members 
interacting with multiple cohorts shall wear masks and 
shall wash and/or sanitize hands between cohorts. 
 
Attendance on each bus shall be taken per route. 
  
All students protected under ADA and IDEA will be part of a regular 
classroom cohort throughout the day, with push ins form our licensed 
staff.   
 
 

✓ Elementary staff who interact with multiple cohorts (music, PE, 
library, paraprofessionals who provide supervision at recesses, etc.) 
should have schedules altered to reduce the number of 
cohorts/students they interact within a week. Consider having these 
staff engage via technology, altering duties so that they are not in 
close contact with students in multiple cohorts, or adjust schedules to 
reduce contacts. 

 
1e. PUBLIC HEALTH COMMUNICATION AND TRAINING 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Communicate to staff at the start of On‐Site instruction and at 
periodic intervals explaining infection control measures that are 
being implemented to prevent spread of disease.  

Communication will be shared with students, staff, and families as 
needed to outline the following in their preferred language: 

● Instructional model; 
● Rationale for decision; and 
● Specific infection control measures. 

PSD District staff responsible for developing communication for students, 
staff, families and community at the following times: 

● Family decisions about sending students to school; 
● Sustained contact and/or confirmed case; 
● Isolation and/or Exclusion; 
● School or community outbreak; and 

School closure and re‐opening plans.  
 
 
 
 
District Office, School Nurse, and/or school administrators will 
communicate with staff, families, and the school community by email, 
and phone calls. 
 
 
 
As determined by Benton County Health Authority communication with 
those that are in close contact, cohorts, and school community will be 
provided appropriate and relevant information by the school 
administration and school nurse. 
 
Staff will be notified if a student in their room has contracted COVID. 

At least monthly the administration will review and update all protocols 
with staff to ensure compliance and enforcement.  Immediate updates 
will take place when needed. 

Information will be provided in languages and formats accessible to the 
school community. 

✓ Offer initial training to all staff prior to being in‐person in any 
instructional model. Training could be accomplished through all staff 
webinar, narrated slide decks, online video, using professional 
learning communities, or mailing handouts with discussion. Training 
cannot be delivered solely through the sharing or forwarding 
information electronically or in paper copy form as this is an 
insufficient method for ensuring fidelity to public health protocols 
(see section 8b of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance for 
specific training requirements).  Note: Instructional time 
requirements allow for time to be devoted for professional learning 
that includes RSSL training.  

✓ Post “COVID ‐19 Hazard Poster” and “Masks Required” signs as 
required by OSHA administrative rule OAR 437‐001‐0744(3)(d) and 
(e).  

✓ Develop protocols for communicating with students, families and 
staff who have come into close contact with a person who has 
COVID‐19. 
● The definition of exposure is being within 6 feet of a person 

who has COVID‐19 for at least 15 cumulative minutes in a day. 
● OSHA has developed a model notification policy. 

✓ Develop protocols for communicating immediately with staff, 
families, and the school community when a new case(s) of COVID‐19 
is diagnosed in students or staff members, including a description of 
how the school or district is responding. 
 
 
 

✓ Periodic interval training also keeps the vigilance to protocols ever 
present when fatigue and changing circumstances might result in 
reduced adherence to guidance. 
 

✓ Provide all information in languages and formats accessible to the 
school community. 

 
1f. ENTRY AND SCREENING 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Direct students and staff to stay home if they have COVID‐19 
symptoms. COVID‐19 symptoms are as follows: 
● Primary symptoms of concern: cough, fever (temperature of 

100.4°F or higher) or chills, shortness of breath, difficulty 
breathing, or new loss of taste or smell. 

● Note that muscle pain, headache, sore throat, diarrhea, 
nausea, vomiting, new nasal congestion, and runny nose are 

See Communicable Disease Management Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 141 of 228



 

Page 10 of 25 

 

 

also symptoms often associated with COVID‐19. More 
information about COVID‐19 symptoms is available from CDC. 

● In addition to COVID‐19 symptoms, students must be 
excluded from school for signs of other infectious diseases, 
per existing school policy and protocols. See pages 9‐11 of 
OHA/ODE Communicable Disease Guidance for Schools. 

● Emergency signs that require immediate medical attention: 
o Trouble breathing 
o Persistent pain or pressure in the chest 
o New confusion or inability to awaken 
o Bluish lips or face (lighter skin); greyish lips or face 

(darker skin) 
o Other severe symptoms 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Student Screening: 
● Each cohort will be assigned a specific school entry location. 
● Trained staff members will be assigned to each entry location to 

screen students prior to entry. 
● When screening indicates symptoms, students will be escorted by 

available adult to the school office.  Office staff will contact PSD 
Nurse and monitor isolation protocols. 

● Hand washing and hand sanitizing stations will be strategically 
placed in school. 

● For students arriving late to school, entry will be through the school 
office, utilizing appropriate protocols. 

Staff Screening: 

● Staff members are required to contact the school nurse when they 

have been exposed to COVID‐19. They will receive further 
instruction from the school nurse. 

● Staff members are required to contact the school nurse when they 
have symptoms related to COVID‐19. They will receive further 
instruction from the school nurse. 

Staff will go through screening protocol at the beginning of each school 
day, at the front office.   

✓ Diligently screen all students and staff for symptoms on entry to 
bus/school/outside learning space every day. This can be done 
visually as well as asking students and staff about any new symptoms 
or close contact with someone with COVID‐19. For students, 
confirmation from a parent/caregiver or guardian can also be 
appropriate. Staff members can self‐screen and attest to their own 
health, but regular reminders of the importance of daily screening 
must be provided to staff. 
● Anyone displaying or reporting the primary symptoms of 

concern must be isolated (see section 1i of the Ready Schools, 
Safe Learners guidance) and sent home as soon as possible. 
See table “Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools.”  

● Additional guidance for nurses and health staff. 

✓ Follow LPHA advice on restricting from school any student or staff 
known to have been exposed (e.g., by a household member) to 
COVID‐19. See “Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools” and the 
COVID‐19 Exclusion Summary Guide. 

✓ Staff or students with a chronic or baseline cough that has worsened 
or is not well‐controlled with medication must be excluded from 
school. Do not exclude staff or students who have other symptoms 
that are chronic or baseline symptoms (e.g., asthma, allergies, etc.) 
from school. See the COVID‐19 Exclusion Summary Guide. 

✓ Hand hygiene on entry to school every day: wash with soap and 
water for 20 seconds or use an alcohol‐based hand sanitizer with 60‐
95% alcohol. 

 
1g. VISITORS/VOLUNTEERS 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Restrict non‐essential visitors/volunteers. 
● Examples of essential visitors include: DHS Child Protective 

Services, Law Enforcement, etc.  
● Examples of non‐essential visitors/volunteers include: Parent 

Teacher Association (PTA), classroom volunteers, etc. 

Only essential and consistent volunteers will be able to work directly 
with students in schools.  Cohort rules will apply. 
 
Adults in the school are limited to essential personnel only.  (Includes 
LBL, DHS, law enforcement, emergency personnel, mental health 
support, and/or delivery personnel as might be needed. 
 
School specific volunteers sign in on log maintained on classroom 
doorway. 

✓ Diligently screen all visitors/volunteers for symptoms and ask 
questions about symptoms and any close contact with someone 
diagnosed with COVID‐19 upon every entry. Restrict from school 
property any visitor known to have been exposed to COVID‐19. See 
the COVID‐19 Exclusion Summary Guide. 

✓ Visitors/volunteers must wash or sanitize their hands upon entry and 
exit. 

✓ Visitors/volunteers must maintain six‐foot distancing, wear face 
coverings, and adhere to all other provisions of the Ready Schools, 
Safe Learners guidance. 

 
   

Commented [1]: Lori - what would you prefer? 

Commented [2R1]: @lori.haslam@philomath.k12.or.u
s 

Commented [SH3R1]:  

Packet page 142 of 228



 

Page 11 of 25 

 

 

1h. FACE COVERINGS, FACE SHIELDS, AND CLEAR PLASTIC BARRIERS 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Employers are required to provide masks, face coverings, or face 
shields for all staff, contractors, other service providers, visitors and 
volunteers. 
 

School Staff and other essential adults will have access to required PPE. A 
necessary amount will be in classrooms.  
 
 
Required PPE will be available for students as might be needed. 
 
All students and staff will be required to wear a face mask unless they 
have an existing medical condition(s) as indicated by a physician's note. 
Medical exemption accommodations and a plan will be addressed by 
school as needed. 
 
 
 
 
ADA accommodations will be addressed by school as needed. 
 
In IDEA instances discovered in class, classroom teacher should contact 
case manager of individual student to determine next steps. 
IPS/ SST protocol in place for student not protected under IDEA. 
 
 
 
 
At the staff member’s discretion, mask breaks will be provided for 
students as needed.  Breaks should be considered much like a ‘sensory 
break’/ ‘time out’.  Students taking a teacher‐directed break will be 
distanced from others in the classroom beyond the customary 6’ 
distance. 
 
ADA and IDEA accommodations will always apply. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In IDEA instances discovered in class, classroom teacher should contact 
the case manager of individual student to determine next steps. 
IPS protocol in place for student not protected under IDEA. 
 
 
A multi‐disciplinary team will meet to determine what accommodations 
are needed to meet the student’s needs and to protect the health and 
safety of others. 
 
 
Physician note required for these students. 
Educational plan determined by IEP, 504, or IPS protocol. 

✓ Face coverings or face shields for all staff, contractors, other service 
providers, visitors or volunteers following CDC guidelines for Face 
Coverings. Individuals may remove their face coverings while 
working alone in private offices or when separated by more than 6 
feet in outside learning spaces. Face shields are an acceptable 
alternative only when a person has a medical condition that 
prevents them from wearing a mask or face covering, when people 
need to see mouth and tongue motions in order to communicate, or 
when an individual is speaking to an audience for a short period of 
time and clear communication is otherwise not possible. 

✓ Face coverings or face shields for all students in grades Kindergarten 
and up following CDC guidelines for Face Coverings. Face shields are 
an acceptable alternative when a student has a medical condition 
that prevents them from wearing a mask or face covering, or when 
people need to see the student’s mouth and tongue motions in 
order to communicate. 

✓ Face coverings should be worn both indoors and outdoors, including 
during outdoor recess. 

✓ Group mask breaks” or “full classroom mask breaks” are not 
allowed. If a student removes a face covering, or demonstrates a 
need to remove the face covering for a short‐period of time: 
● Provide space away from peers while the face covering is 

removed. In the classroom setting, an example could be a 
designated chair where a student can sit and take a 15 
minute “sensory break;” 
o Students must not be left alone or unsupervised;  
o Designated area or chair must be appropriately 

distanced from other students and of a material that 
is easily wiped down for disinfection after each use; 

● Provide additional instructional supports to effectively wear a 
face covering; 

● Provide students adequate support to re‐engage in safely 
wearing a face covering; 

● Students cannot be discriminated against or disciplined for an 
inability to safely wear a face covering during the school day. 

✓ Face masks for school RNs or other medical personnel when 
providing direct contact care and monitoring of staff/students 
displaying symptoms. School nurses shall also wear appropriate 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for their role. 
● Additional guidance for nurses and health staff. 

Accommodations under ADA or IDEA and providing FAPE while 
attending to Face Covering Guidance 

✓  If any student requires an accommodation to meet the requirement 
for face coverings, districts and schools must limit the student’s 
proximity to students and staff to the extent possible to minimize 
the possibility of exposure. Appropriate accommodations could 
include: 
● Offering different types of face coverings and face shields 

that may meet the needs of the student.  
● Spaces away from peers while the face covering is removed; 

students must not be left alone or unsupervised.  
● Short periods of the educational day that do not include 

wearing the face covering, while following the other health 
strategies to reduce the spread of disease. 

Packet page 143 of 228



 

Page 12 of 25 

 

 

● Additional instructional supports to effectively wear a face 
covering. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For IEP  contact case manager. 
For  504, or ISP/ SST plans, contact the school counselor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact the school counselor. 
A multi‐disciplinary team will meet to determine what accommodations 
are needed to meet the student’s needs and to protect the health and 
safety of others. 
 
Meeting will occur to determine appropriate placement and assignment 

✓ For students with existing medical conditions and a physician’s 
orders to not wear face coverings, or other health related concerns, 
schools/districts must not deny any in‐person instruction. 
 

✓ Schools and districts must comply with the established IEP/504 plan 
prior to the closure of in‐person instruction in March of 2020, or the 
current plan in effect for the student if appropriately developed 
after March of 2020.  
● If a student eligible for, or receiving services under a 504/IEP, 

cannot wear a face covering due to the nature of the 
disability, the school or district must: 
1. Review the 504/IEP to ensure access to instruction in 

a manner comparable to what was originally 
established in the student’s plan including on‐site 
instruction with accommodations or adjustments. 

2. Not make placement determinations solely on the 
inability to wear a face covering.  

3. Include updates to accommodations and 
modifications to support students in plans.  

● For students protected under ADA/IDEA, who abstain from 
wearing a face covering, or students whose families 
determine the student will not wear a face covering, the 
school or district must:  
1. Review the 504/IEP to ensure access to instruction in 

a manner comparable to what was originally 
established in the student’s plan. 

2. The team must determine that the disability is not 
prohibiting the student from meeting the 
requirement.  

● If the team determines that the disability is 
prohibiting the student from meeting the 
requirement, follow the requirements for 
students eligible for, or receiving services 
under, a 504/IEP who cannot wear a face 
covering due to the nature of the disability, 

● If a student’s 504/IEP plan included 
supports/goals/instruction for behavior or 
social emotional learning, the school team 
must evaluate the student’s plan prior to 
providing instruction through Comprehensive 
Distance Learning.  

3. Hold a 504/IEP meeting to determine equitable access 
to educational opportunities which may include 
limited in‐person instruction, on‐site instruction with 
accommodations, or Comprehensive Distance 
Learning. 

✓ For students not currently served under an IEP or 504, districts must 
consider whether or not student inability to consistently wear a face 
covering or face shield as required is due to a disability. Ongoing 
inability to meet this requirement may be evidence of the need for 
an evaluation to determine eligibility for support under IDEA or 
Section 504. 

✓  If a staff member requires an accommodation for the face covering 
or face shield requirements, districts and schools shall work to limit 
the staff member’s proximity to students and staff to the extent 
possible to minimize the possibility of exposure. 

 
 

 

Packet page 144 of 228



 

Page 13 of 25 

 

 

1i. ISOLATION AND QUARANTINE  

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Protocols for exclusion and isolation for sick students and staff 
whether identified at the time of bus pick‐up, arrival to school, or at 
any time during the school day. 

School Bus: 
Students developing symptoms on the bus shall be seated in a 
designated location and taken to the school office immediately upon 
arrival to school.  Students displaying symptoms upon screening will be 
escorted by an adult to the supervised isolation area until able to go 
home. 
 
Contact the school office when escorting any student to isolation areas. 
When escorting students, be sure to keep physical distance to the 
greatest extent possible.  
 
School Arrival: 
Students and staff will be screened upon arrival to school. Students 
exhibiting symptoms upon arrival will be sent to the supervised isolation 
area until able to go home. 
 
During School Day: 
Students and staff exhibiting symptoms shall be sent to the front office 
for screening and placement in an isolation room. 
 
 
 
 
 
Positive COVID‐19 Test: 
Students or staff who have tested positive for COVID‐19 will quarantine 
at home.  The person should remain at home for at least ten days after 
illness onset and 72 hours after fever is gone, without use of fever‐
reducing medication, and other symptoms are improving.   
 
Updated protocol from the Oregon Health Authority and the Oregon 
Department of education guidance will direct any changes to this 
criteria. 
 
Communication Protocol: 
Contact PSD District Nurse whenever an individual is isolated with 
symptoms. 
 
While exercising caution to maintain/ensure safety when working with 
children exhibiting symptoms, it is also critical that staff maintain 
sufficient composure and disposition so as not to unduly worry a student 
or family.  
 
 
 
 
 
Parent/ guardian will provide transportation. 
If emergency, call 911. 
 
 
 
 
 
PSD Nurse, Lori Haslam or Tina Hoch 
 
 
 
COVID logs and attendance data from Wazzle (SIS). 
 

✓ Protocols for screening students, as well as exclusion and isolation 
protocols for sick students and staff identified at the time of arrival or 
during the school day. See the COVID‐19 Exclusion Summary Guide. 
● Work with school nurses, health care providers, or other staff 

with expertise to determine necessary modifications to areas 
where staff/students will be isolated. If two students present 
COVID‐19 symptoms at the same time, they must be isolated 
at once. If separate rooms are not available, ensure that six 
feet distance is maintained. Do not assume they have the 
same illness. Consider if and where students and staff will be 
isolated during learning outside. Create a comfortable 
outdoor area for isolation or follow plan for in building 
isolation. 

● Consider required physical arrangements to reduce risk of 
disease transmission.  

● Plan for the needs of generally well students who need 
medication or routine treatment, as well as students who may 
show signs of illness.  

● Additional guidance for nurses and health staff for providing 
care to students with complex needs. 

✓ Students and staff who report or develop symptoms must be isolated 
in a designated isolation area in the school or outside learning space, 
with adequate space and staff supervision and symptom monitoring 
by a school nurse, other school‐based health care provider or school 
staff until they are able to go home. Anyone providing supervision 
and symptom monitoring must wear appropriate face covering or 
face shields. 
● School nurses and health staff in close contact with 

symptomatic individuals (less than 6 feet) must wear a 
medical‐grade face mask. Other Personal Protective 
Equipment (PPE) may be needed depending on symptoms and 
care provided. Consult a nurse or health care professional 
regarding appropriate use of PPE. Any PPE used during care of 
a symptomatic individual must be properly removed and 
disposed of prior to exiting the care space. 

● After removing PPE, hands shall be immediately cleaned with 
soap and water for at least 20 seconds. If soap and water are 
not available, hands can be cleaned with an alcohol‐based 
hand sanitizer that contains 60‐95% alcohol.  

● If able to do so safely, a symptomatic individual shall wear a 
face covering. 

● To reduce fear, anxiety, or shame related to isolation, provide 
a clear explanation of procedures, including use of PPE and 
handwashing.  

✓ Establish procedures for safely transporting anyone who is sick to 
their home or to a health care facility. 

✓ Staff and students who are ill must stay home from school and must 
be sent home if they become ill at school, particularly if they have 
COVID‐19 symptoms. Refer to table in “Planning for COVID‐19 
Scenarios in Schools.” 

✓  Involve school nurses, School Based Health Centers, or staff with 
related experience (Occupational or Physical Therapists) in 
development of protocols and assessment of symptoms (where 
staffing exists). 

✓ Record and monitor the students and staff being isolated or sent 
home for the LPHA review. 

Packet page 145 of 228



 

Page 14 of 25 

 

✓ The school must provide a remote learning option for students who 
are required to be temporarily off‐site for isolation and quarantine. 

School will determine available options for students in 
isolation/quarantine: 

● Philomath Academy 
● CANVAS 
● Tutor 
● Other 

 
 

 

  2. Facilities and School Operations 

 

Some activities and areas will have a higher risk for spread (e.g., band, choir, science labs, locker rooms). When engaging in these activities within 
the school setting, schools will need to consider additional physical distancing or conduct the activities outside (where feasible). Additionally, 
schools should consider sharing explicit risk statements for instructional and extra‐curricular activities requiring additional considerations (see 

section 5f of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance). 

 
2a. ENROLLMENT 

(Note: Section 2a does not apply to private schools.) 

OHA/ODE Requirements   Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Enroll all students (including foreign exchange students) following the 
standard Oregon Department of Education guidelines. 

All students will be enrolled following ODE guidelines. 
 
Students may enroll in Philomath High School or, for participation in fully 
online instruction, the Philomath Academy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All staff will work to re‐engage students with office staff taking the lead. 
 
School office will use attendance thresholds to make determinations. 
 

  

 School Registrar: Mandy Misner 

  

  

Students may enroll in Philomath High School for Hybrid or CDL or the 
Philomath Academy. 

PHS Office: 
(Mike Bussard, Tony Matta, Denee Newton, Mandy Misner, Emily 
Goodman) 

✓ The temporary suspension of the 10‐day drop rule does not change 
the rules for the initial enrollment date for students: 
● The ADM enrollment date for a student is the first day of the 

student’s actual attendance. 
● A student with fewer than 10 days of absence at the beginning 

of the school year may be counted in membership prior to the 
first day of attendance, but not prior to the first calendar day 
of the school year.   

● If a student does not attend during the first 10 session days of 
school, the student’s ADM enrollment date must reflect the 
student’s actual first day of attendance. 

● Students who were anticipated to be enrolled, but who do not 
attend at any time must not be enrolled and submitted in 
ADM. 

✓  If a student has stopped attending for 10 or more days, districts must 
continue to try to engage the student. At a minimum, districts must 
attempt to contact these students and their families weekly to either 
encourage attendance or receive confirmation that the student has 
transferred or has withdrawn from school. This includes students 
who were scheduled to start the school year, but who have not yet 
attended. 

✓ When enrolling a student from another school, schools must request 
documentation from the prior school within 10 days of enrollment 
per OAR 581‐021‐0255 to make all parties aware of the transfer. 
Documentation obtained directly from the family does not relieve 
the school of this responsibility. After receiving documentation from 
another school that a student has enrolled, drop that student from 
your roll. 

✓ Design attendance policies to account for students who do not 
attend in‐person due to student or family health and safety concerns. 

✓ When a student has a pre‐excused absence or COVID‐19 absence, the 
school district must reach out to offer support at least weekly until 
the student has resumed their education. 
 

Packet page 146 of 228



 

Page 15 of 25 

 

 

✓ When a student is absent beyond 10 days and meets the criteria for 
continued enrollment due to the temporary suspension of the 10 day 
drop rule, continue to count them as absent for those days and 
include those days in your Cumulative ADM reporting. 

 School Registrar: Mandy Misner 

 

 
2b. ATTENDANCE 

(Note: Section 2b does not apply to private schools.) 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

☐ Grades K‐5 (self‐contained): Attendance must be taken at least once 
per day for all students enrolled in school, regardless of the 
instructional model (On‐Site, Hybrid, Comprehensive Distance 
Learning, online schools).  

 
 
 
 

Attendance procedures will ask students to stay home from school if 

someone in their house is exhibiting COVID‐19 symptoms. 
● Students will be asked to follow OHA & ODE quarantine guidelines.  
  
School office will maintain documentation for students with respiratory 
illness. 
 
On‐site attendance shall be used as a primary attendance indicator.  
Students not regularly in attendance during days scheduled to be on‐site 
may be considered present through at least one other method of two‐way 
communication, including: 
● Participation in CANVAS ‐student must log in; 
● E‐mail or Phone communication. 

 

Families will be provided descriptions of student attendance and 
participation expectations through handbooks, newsletters, & student 
registration process. 

✓ Grades 6‐12 (individual subject): Attendance must be taken at least 
once for each scheduled class that day for all students enrolled in 
school, regardless of the instructional model (On‐Site, Hybrid, 
Comprehensive Distance Learning, online schools). 

✓ Alternative Programs: Some students are reported in ADM as 
enrolled in a non‐standard program (such as tutorial time), with 
hours of instruction rather than days present and days absent. 
Attendance must be taken at least once for each scheduled 
interaction with each student, so that local systems can track the 
student’s attendance and engagement. Reported hours of 
instruction continue to be those hours in which the student was 
present.  

✓ Online schools that previously followed a two check‐in per week 
attendance process must follow the Comprehensive Distance 
Learning requirements for checking and reporting attendance. 

✓ Provide families with clear and concise descriptions of student 
attendance and participation expectations as well as family 
involvement expectations that take into consideration the home 
environment, caregiver’s work schedule, and mental/physical 
health. 

 
2c. TECHNOLOGY 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Update procedures for district‐owned or school‐owned devices to 
match cleaning requirements (see section 2d of the Ready Schools, 
Safe Learners guidance). 

● Technology department will clean and sanitize each device brought 
in for updates, repair, return, inventory, or redistribution.  

● School devices will be cleaned and sanitized between each use. 

(70% Isopropyl Alcohol and 30% water solution) 
 

✓ Procedures for return, inventory, updating, and redistributing 
district‐owned devices must meet physical distancing requirements. 

✓  If providing learning outside and allowing students to engage with 
devices during the learning experiences, provide safe charging 
stations. 

 
2d. SCHOOL SPECIFIC FUNCTIONS/FACILITY FEATURES 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Handwashing: All people on campus shall be advised and encouraged 
to frequently wash their hands or use hand sanitizer. 
 
 

● Handwashing: Provide age‐appropriate hand‐washing instruction, 
define appropriate times for hand‐washing, and provide hand 
sanitizer when hand‐washing is not available. 

● Equipment: All classroom equipment and supplies will be cleaned 
and sanitized before use by another student or cohort. 

● Events: Field trips will be designed virtually or following the hybrid 
cohorting rules.  All assemblies, athletic events, practices, special 
performances, school‐wide parent meetings, and other large 
gatherings will be cancelled or held in a virtual format.   

✓ Equipment: Develop and use sanitizing protocols for all equipment 
used by more than one individual or purchase equipment for 
individual use.  

✓ Events: Cancel, modify, or postpone field trips, assemblies, athletic 
events, practices, special performances, school‐wide parent meetings 
and other large gatherings to meet requirements for physical 
distancing.  

Commented [4]: Can those students do the work 
online if they stay home in this instance? What about 
staff? Can they teach virtually that day with an adult 
supervising their classroom (similar to LIPI in the 
morning time?) 

Commented [5R4]: Lori- does having the vaccine 
change the outcome for staff? 

Commented [6R4]: @lori.haslam@philomath.k12.or.u
s 

Commented [7]: Tech Crew - How to safely clean 
between use? 

Commented [8]: Who will be responsible for cleaning 
these? 

Commented [9R8]: *Doesn't belong in this section, but 
what is our availability for devices? Will student 
bring their own? Will school provide them? How will 
they be cleaned (safely)? 

Commented [10R8]: 3 computer labs + 3 Chromebook 
labs 

Packet page 147 of 228



 

Page 16 of 25 

 

 

✓ Transitions/Hallways: Limit transitions to the extent possible. Create 
hallway procedures to promote physical distancing and minimize 
gatherings. 

● Transitions/Hallways: Hallway traffic direction will be marked to 
show travel flow. Passing periods will be staggered to promote 
physical distancing. 

● Personal Property:  Students will not use lockers to store personal 
property. All personal property brought to school will be carried by 
the student throughout the school day in their backpack/bag. 

✓ Personal Property: Establish policies for identifying personal property 
being brought to school (e.g., refillable water bottles, school supplies, 
headphones/earbuds, cell phones, books, instruments, etc.). 

 
2e. ARRIVAL AND DISMISSAL 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Physical distancing, stable cohorts, square footage, and cleaning 
requirements must be maintained during arrival and dismissal 
procedures. 

Students will have designated drop‐off and pick‐up locations based on 
cohort and grade level. 
 
Staff will complete information, not allowing a shared pen/ paper. 
 
Hand sanitizer will be available at entrance to use during arrival and 
dismissal. 
 
Hand washing stations or hand sanitizing dispensers will be placed near 
all entry doors and high‐traffic areas. 
 
Families will be informed of the need to keep drop‐off/ pick‐up 
interactions as brief as possible. 
 
Students identified as potentially symptomatic will be directed to the 
school office to follow isolation protocols. 
 
Students entering school late and/or leaving school early, entry will only 
be allowed through the school office. 
 
Late arrivals will remain  in the secure entry vestibule until screening is 
complete. 

✓ Create schedule(s) and communicate staggered arrival and/or 
dismissal times.  

✓ Assign students or cohorts to an entrance; assign staff member(s) to 
conduct visual screenings (see section 1f of the Ready Schools, Safe 
Learners guidance). 

✓ Ensure accurate sign‐in/sign‐out protocols to help facilitate contact 
tracing by the LPHA. Sign‐in procedures are not a replacement for 
entrance and screening requirements. Students entering school after 
arrival times must be screened for the primary symptoms of concern. 
● Eliminate shared pen and paper sign‐in/sign‐out sheets. 
● Ensure hand sanitizer is available if signing children in or out 

on an electronic device. 

✓ Ensure alcohol‐based hand sanitizer (with 60‐95% alcohol) dispensers 
are easily accessible near all entry doors and other high‐traffic areas. 
Establish and clearly communicate procedures for keeping caregiver 
drop‐off/pick‐up as brief as possible. 

 
2f. CLASSROOMS/REPURPOSED LEARNING SPACES 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Seating: Rearrange student desks and other seat spaces so that staff 
and students’ physical bodies are six feet apart to the maximum 
extent possible while also maintaining 35 square feet per person; 
assign seating so students are in the same seat at all times. 

● Seating: Classroom desks and tables will be arranged allowing 
students to maintain 35 sq. feet of space and maintain 6’ of 
distance. Students will have assigned seats. 

● Materials: Each classroom will limit sharing of community supplies 
when possible (e.g., scissors, pencils, etc.). If needed to share, these 
items will be cleaned between each use. Hand sanitizer and tissues 
will be available for use by students and staff. 

● Handwashing: All students will be regularly reminded to wash their 
hands. Hand washing opportunities will be provided throughout the 
school day. Signage at each sink/hand washing station will remind 
students and staff of effective handwashing practices. 

● Environment: Ventilation is being addressed in every building. 
Supplemental ventilation tools and/or outdoor spaces will be used 
when appropriate. 

✓ Materials: Avoid sharing of community supplies when possible (e.g., 
scissors, pencils, etc.). Clean these items frequently. Provide hand 
sanitizer and tissues for use by students and staff. 

✓ Handwashing: Remind students (with signage and regular verbal 
reminders from staff) of the utmost importance of hand hygiene and 
respiratory etiquette. Respiratory etiquette means covering coughs 
and sneezes with an elbow or a tissue. Tissues shall be disposed of in 
a garbage can, then hands washed or sanitized immediately. 
● Wash hands with soap and water for 20 seconds or use an 

alcohol‐based hand sanitizer with 60‐95% alcohol. 

 
2g. PLAYGROUNDS, FIELDS, RECESS, BREAKS, AND RESTROOMS 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Keep school playgrounds closed to the general public until park 
playground equipment and benches reopen in the community (see 
Oregon Health Authority’s Specific Guidance for Outdoor Recreation 
Organizations). 
 

Playgrounds shall remain closed to the public. 
 
Student break activities will be supervised in a manner conducive to 
appropriate social distancing. 
 

Packet page 148 of 228



 

Page 17 of 25 

 

 

✓ After using the restroom students must wash hands with soap and 
water for 20 seconds. Soap must be made available to students and 
staff.  For learning outside if portable bathrooms are used, set up 
portable hand washing stations and create a regular cleaning 
schedule. 

Students will take breaks only with the assigned cohort. 
 
Students will be reminded of hand‐cleansing requirements before and 
after breaks. 
 
Supervising staff will clean shared equipment between cohorts. ✓ Before and after using playground equipment, students must wash 

hands with soap and water for 20 seconds or use an alcohol‐based 
hand sanitizer with 60‐95% alcohol. 

✓ Designate playground and shared equipment solely for the use of one 
cohort at a time. Outdoor playground structures require normal 
routine cleaning and do not require disinfection. Shared equipment 
(balls, jump ropes, etc.) should be cleaned and disinfected at least 
daily in accordance with CDC guidance. 

✓ Cleaning requirements must be maintained (see section 2j of the 
Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance). 

✓ Maintain physical distancing requirements, stable cohorts, and 
square footage requirements. 

✓ Provide signage and restrict access to outdoor equipment (including 
sports equipment, etc.). 

✓ Design recess activities that allow for physical distancing and 
maintenance of stable cohorts. 

✓ Clean all outdoor equipment at least daily or between use as much as 
possible in accordance with CDC guidance. 

✓ Limit the number of employees gathering in shared spaces. Restrict 
use of shared spaces such as conference rooms, break rooms, and 
elevators by limiting occupancy or staggering use, maintaining six 
feet of distance between adults. Establish a minimum of 35 square 
feet per person when determining room capacity. Calculate only with 
usable space, understanding that tables and room set‐up will require 
use of all space in the calculation. Note: The largest area of risk is 
adults eating together in break rooms without face coverings. 

 
2h. MEAL SERVICE/NUTRITION 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓  Include meal services/nutrition staff in planning for school reentry.  Planning with Corvallis School District Food Service. 
 
Staff will wear face coverings while serving meals. 
 
Students will pick up food in the cafeteria, utilizing appropriate physical 
distance and cohort requirements during meals. 
 
Hand sanitization will take place before and after meals. 
 
Students will not share utensils or other items during meals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The surface where a student eats will be cleaned prior to meals being 
consumed.  
 
Meals will be available for students each school day. 
 
Staff will observe social distancing guidelines during lunch. Staff room 
will not be open as an eating space. Staff can eat where they see fit ‐
classrooms, outside, at home, etc. 

● Refrigerator and microwave use will be permitted as long as 
staff following hygiene and social distancing guidelines.  

✓ Prohibit self‐service buffet‐style meals.  

✓ Prohibit sharing of food and drinks among students and/or staff. 

✓ At designated meal or snack times, students may remove their face 
coverings to eat or drink but must maintain six feet of physical 
distance from others, and must put face coverings back on after 
finishing the meal or snack. 

✓ Staff serving meals and students interacting with staff at mealtimes 
must wear face coverings (see section 1h of the Ready Schools, Safe 
Learners guidance). Staff must maintain 6 feet of physical distance to 
the greatest extent possible. If students are eating in a classroom, 
staff may supervise from the doorway of the classroom if feasible.  

✓ Students and staff must wash hands with soap and water for 20 
seconds or use an alcohol‐based hand sanitizer with 60‐95% alcohol 
before meals and shall be encouraged to do so after. 

✓ Appropriate daily cleaning of meal items (e.g., plates, utensils, 
transport items). 

✓ Cleaning and sanitizing of meal touch‐points and meal counting 
system between stable cohorts. 

✓ Adequate cleaning and disinfection of tables between meal periods. 

✓ Since staff must remove their face coverings during eating and 
drinking, limit the number of employees gathering in shared spaces. 
Restrict use of shared spaces such as conference rooms and break 
rooms by limiting occupancy or staggering use. Consider staggering 
times for staff breaks, to prevent congregation in shared spaces. 

Packet page 149 of 228



 

Page 18 of 25 

 

 

Always maintain at least six feet of physical distancing and establish a 
minimum of 35 square feet per person when determining room 
capacity. Calculate only with usable classroom space, understanding 
that desks and room set‐up will require use of all space in the 
calculation. Wear face coverings except when eating or drinking and 
minimize time in spaces where face coverings are not consistently 
worn.  

● Dishes/silverware will not be shared.  

 
2i. TRANSPORTATION 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓  Include transportation departments (and associated contracted 
providers, if used) in planning for return to service. 

Planning with Mid‐Columbia Bus Company. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Each driver will: 
● Visually screen students for symptoms of illness; 
● Maintain attendance logs for contact tracing; and 
● Wear face coverings. 

Each bus will have: 
● Three feet of physical distance between passengers and 
● Six feet of physical distance between driver and passengers, unless 

additional student support is required. 

 
Bus cleaned and sanitized between routes. 
 
 
 
 
 
Students needing additional support to access school transportation will 
not be denied access. 
 
Bus routes may be adjusted to support cohorting of students. 

✓ Buses are cleaned frequently. Conduct targeted cleanings between 
routes, with a focus on disinfecting frequently touched surfaces of 
the bus (see section 2j of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners 
guidance). 

✓ Staff must use hand sanitizer (containing between 60‐95% alcohol) in 
between helping each child and when getting on and off the vehicle. 
Gloves are not recommended; hand sanitizer is strongly preferred. If 
hand sanitizer is not available, disposable gloves can be used and 
must be changed to a new pair before helping each child. 

✓ Develop protocol for loading/unloading that includes visual screening 
for students exhibiting symptoms and logs for contact‐tracing. This 
must be done at the time of arrival and departure. 
● If a student displays COVID‐19 symptoms, provide a face 

covering (unless they are already wearing one) and keep six 
feet away from others. Continue transporting the student. 
o The symptomatic student shall be seated in the first 

row of the bus during transportation, and multiple 
windows must be opened to allow for fresh air 
circulation, if feasible. 

o The symptomatic student shall leave the bus first. 
After all students exit the bus, the seat and 
surrounding surfaces must be cleaned and disinfected. 

● If arriving at school, notify staff to begin isolation measures.  
o If transporting for dismissal and the student displays 

an onset of symptoms, notify the school. 

✓ Consult with parents/guardians of students who may require 
additional support (e.g., students who experience a disability and 
require specialized transportation as a related service) to 
appropriately provide service. 

✓ Drivers must wear masks or face coverings while driving, unless the 
mask or face covering interferes with the driver’s vision (e.g., fogging 
of eyeglasses). Drivers must wear face coverings when not actively 
driving and operating the bus, including while students are entering 
or exiting the vehicle. A face shield may be an acceptable alternative, 
only as stated in Section 1h of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners 
guidance. 

✓  Inform parents/guardians of practical changes to transportation 
service (i.e., physical distancing at bus stops and while 
loading/unloading, potential for increased route time due to 
additional precautions, sanitizing practices, and face coverings). 

✓ Face coverings for all students, applying the guidance in section 1h of 
the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance to transportation 
settings. This prevents eating while on the bus. 

✓ Take all possible actions to maximize ventilation: Dress warmly, keep 
vents and windows open to the greatest extent possible. 

 
   

Commented [11]: SH to talk to Denise @ MidCo 

Packet page 150 of 228



 

Page 19 of 25 

 

 

2j. CLEANING, DISINFECTION, AND VENTILATION 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Clean, sanitize, and disinfect frequently touched surfaces (e.g. door 
handles, sink handles, drinking fountains, transport vehicles) and 
shared objects (e.g., toys, games, art supplies) between uses multiple 
times per day. Maintain clean and disinfected (CDC guidance) 
environments, including classrooms, cafeteria settings and 
restrooms. Provide time and supplies for the cleaning and 
disinfecting of high‐touch surfaces between multiple student uses, 
even in the same cohort.  

● All frequently touched surfaces (e.g., playground equipment, door 
handles, sink handles, drinking fountains, transport vehicles) and 
shared objects (e.g., toys, games, art supplies) will be cleaned 
multiple times per day. 

o Custodial staff will clean frequently touched surfaces 
within the school building (i.e. restrooms, door 
handles). 

o Transportation Co. will be responsible for cleaning 
transport vehicles. 

o In non‐traditional classroom spaces, the teacher will be 
responsible for cleaning shared objects (i.e. woodshop, 
P.E., art, etc.) 

o Classroom teacher responsible for the cleaning of 
student work surfaces between classes. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
● Ventilation systems will be checked and maintained at‐least monthly 

by maintenance staff. 
  
● When appropriate, doors will be opened to encourage ventilation 

and air circulation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HEPA Filter added to Manufacturing Technology and Forestry areas. 
 
 

 

✓ Outdoor learning spaces must have at least 75% of the square 
footage of its sides open for airflow. 

✓ Outdoor playground structures require normal routine cleaning and 
do not require disinfection. Shared equipment should be cleaned and 
disinfected at least daily in accordance with CDC guidance. 

✓ Apply disinfectants safely and correctly following labeling direction as 
specified by the manufacturer. Keep these products away from 
students. 

✓ To reduce the risk of asthma, choose disinfectant products on the 
EPA List N with asthma‐safer ingredients (e.g. hydrogen peroxide, 
citric acid, or lactic acid) and avoid products that mix these with 
asthma‐causing ingredients like peroxyacetic acid, sodium 
hypochlorite (bleach), or quaternary ammonium compounds. 

✓ Schools with HVAC systems must evaluate the system to minimize 
indoor air recirculation (thus maximizing fresh outdoor air) to the 
extent possible. Schools that do not have mechanical ventilation 
systems shall, to the extent possible, increase natural ventilation by 
opening windows and interior doors before students arrive and after 
students leave, and while students are present. Do not prop open 
doors that can pose a safety or security risk to students and staff 
(e.g., exterior doors and fire doors that must remain closed.) 

✓ Schools with HVAC systems should ensure all filters are maintained 
and replaced as necessary to ensure proper functioning of the 
system.  

✓ All intake ports that provide outside air to the HVAC system should 
be cleaned, maintained, and cleared of any debris that may affect the 
function and performance of the ventilation system. 

✓ Consider running ventilation systems continuously and changing the 
filters more frequently. Do not use fans if they pose a safety or health 
risk, such as increasing exposure to pollen/allergies or exacerbating 
asthma symptoms. Consider using window fans or box fans 
positioned in open windows to blow fresh outdoor air into the 
classroom via one window, and indoor air out of the classroom via 
another window. Fans must not be used in rooms with closed 
windows and doors, as this does not allow for fresh air to circulate. 

✓ Consider the need for increased ventilation in areas where students 
with special health care needs receive medication or treatments. 

✓ Facilities must be cleaned and disinfected at least daily to prevent 
transmission of the virus from surfaces (see CDC’s guidance on 
disinfecting public spaces). 

✓ Consider modification or enhancement of building ventilation where 
feasible (see CDC’s guidance on ventilation and filtration and 
American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air‐Conditioning 
Engineers’ guidance). 

 
   

Packet page 151 of 228



 

Page 20 of 25 

 

 

2k. HEALTH SERVICES 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ OAR 581‐022‐2220 Health Services, requires districts to “maintain a 
prevention‐oriented health services program for all students” 
including space to isolate sick students and services for students with 
special health care needs. While OAR 581‐022‐2220 does not apply to 
private schools, private schools must provide a space to isolate sick 
students and provide services for students with special health care 
needs. 

PSD District Nurse continue to develop, implement, and support 
preventive health measures. 

PSD remains in constant communication with the Benton County Health 
Department. 

• PHS will provide age appropriate hand hygiene and respiratory 
etiquette education to endorse prevention. This includes website, 
newsletter and signage in the school setting for health promotion.  

• Schools will practice appropriate communicable disease isolation 
and exclusion measures.  

• Staff will participate in required health services related training to 
maintain health services practices in the school setting.  

• COVID‐19 specific infection control practices for staff and students 
will be communicated.  

• Review of 504 and IEP accommodations and IHP’s will be advised to 
address vulnerable populations. 

• For sudden student illness (throwing up, seizure, choking, etc…), 
provide for immediate student safety first.  Contact school office for 
assistance as might be needed. 

 

✓ Licensed, experienced health staff should be included on teams to 
determine district health service priorities. Collaborate with health 
professionals such as school nurses; SBHC staff; mental and 
behavioral health providers; dental providers; physical, occupational, 
speech, and respiratory therapists; and School Based Health Centers 
(SBHC). 

 
2l. BOARDING SCHOOLS AND RESIDENTIAL PROGRAMS ONLY 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

☐ Provide specific plan details and adjustments in Operational 
Blueprints that address staff and student safety, which includes how 
you will approach: 
● Contact tracing 
● The intersection of cohort designs in residential settings (by 

wing or common restrooms) with cohort designs in the 
instructional settings. The same cohorting parameter limiting 
total cohort size to 100 people applies.   

● Quarantine of exposed staff or students 
● Isolation of infected staff or students 
● Communication and designation of where the “household” or 

“family unit” applies to your residents and staff 

N/A 

☐ Review and take into consideration CDC guidance for shared or 
congregate housing: 
● Not allow more than two students to share a residential dorm 

room unless alternative housing arrangements are impossible 
● Ensure at least 64 square feet of room space per resident 
● Reduce overall residential density to ensure sufficient space 

for the isolation of sick or potentially infected individuals, as 
necessary; 

● Configure common spaces to maximize physical distancing; 
● Provide enhanced cleaning;  
● Establish plans for the containment and isolation of on‐

campus cases, including consideration of PPE, food delivery, 
and bathroom needs. 

Exception 
K‐12 boarding schools that do not meet the Advisory Metrics (Section 0 
of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance) may operate, in 
consultation with their Local Public Health Authority, provided that: 

☐ They have a current and complete RSSL Blueprint and are complying 
with Sections 1‐3 of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance and 
any other applicable sections, including Section 2L of the Ready 
Schools, Safe Learners guidance. 

Packet page 152 of 228



 

Page 21 of 25 

 

 

☐ The school maintains a fully‐closed residential campus (no non‐
essential visitors allowed), and normal day school operations are only 
offered remotely through distance learning. 

☐ There have been no confirmed cases of COVID‐19 among school staff 
or students in the past 14 days. 

☐ Less than 10% of staff, employees, or contracts (in total) are traveling 
to or from campus. Staff in this designation will: 
● Limit travel to essential functions. 
● Carefully monitor their own health daily and avoid coming to 

campus at any potential symptom of COVID‐19. 

☐ Any boarding students newly arriving to campus will either: 
● Complete a quarantine at home for 14 days* prior to traveling 

to the school, OR 
● Quarantine on campus for 14 days.* 

 
* A 14‐day quarantine is the safest option to prevent the spread of 
COVID‐19 to others. However, in either option above, for boarding 
students who have not developed any symptoms, schools may 
consider ending quarantine after 10 days without any testing, or after 
7 days with a negative result on a COVID‐19 viral test collected within 
48 hours before ending quarantine, unless otherwise directed by the 
local public health authority (LPHA). 

☐ Student transportation off‐campus is limited to medical care. 

 
2m. SCHOOL EMERGENCY PROCEDURES AND DRILLS 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓  In accordance with ORS 336.071 and OAR 581‐022‐2225 all schools 
(including those operating a Comprehensive Distance Learning 
model) are required to instruct students on emergency procedures. 
Schools that operate an On‐Site or Hybrid model need to instruct and 
practice drills on emergency procedures so that students and staff 
can respond to emergencies.  
● At least 30 minutes in each school month must be used to 

instruct students on the emergency procedures for fires, 
earthquakes (including tsunami drills in appropriate zones), 
and safety threats. 

● Fire drills must be conducted monthly.   
● Earthquake drills (including tsunami drills and instruction for 

schools in a tsunami hazard zone) must be conducted two 
times a year. 

● Safety threats including procedures related to lockdown, 
lockout, shelter in place and evacuation and other appropriate 
actions to take when there is a threat to safety must be 
conducted two times a year. 

● Walk‐through drills with students to maintain safety and 
appropriate social distancing. 

● Alert students that a ‘real’ alarm situation means that social 
distance rules may need to be broken. 

● In situations of imminent threat to health and safety, ensure 
students are stable and breathing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

When evacuating to outside, students will line up in assigned locations, 
forming socially distanced lines. 

✓ Drills can and should be carried out as close as possible to the 
procedures that would be used in an actual emergency. For example, 
a fire drill must be carried out with the same alerts and same routes 
as normal.  If appropriate and practicable, COVID‐19 physical 
distancing measures can be implemented, but only if they do not 
compromise the drill.  

✓ When or if physical distancing must be compromised, drills must be 
completed in less than 15 minutes.  

✓ Drills shall not be practiced unless they can be practiced correctly. 

✓ Train staff on safety drills prior to students arriving on the first day on 
campus in hybrid or face‐to‐face engagement.  

✓  If on a hybrid schedule, conduct multiple drills each month to ensure 
that all cohorts of students have opportunities to participate in drills 
(i.e., schedule on different cohort days throughout the year). 

Packet page 153 of 228



 

Page 22 of 25 

 

 

✓ Students must wash hands with soap and water for 20 seconds or use 
an alcohol‐based hand sanitizer with 60‐95% alcohol after a drill is 
complete. 

  

 
2n. SUPPORTING STUDENTS WHO ARE DYSREGULATED, ESCALATED, AND/OR EXHIBITING SELF‐REGULATORY CHALLENGES 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Utilize the components of Collaborative Problem Solving or a similar 
framework to continually provide instruction and skill‐
building/training related to the student’s demonstrated lagging skills. 

 
Philomath High School follows the tenets of PBIS supporting students. 
 
Staff working with students with behavior plans will receive instruction 
on strategies.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Call administrator or counselor for support. 

  

 

  

  

  

  

Practice, much like a drill, how to exit class quickly if needed (room clear) 
and to remain socially distanced. 

PHS: Clear to Library. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

✓ Take proactive/preventative steps to reduce antecedent events and 
triggers within the school environment. 

✓ Be proactive in planning for known behavioral escalations (e.g., self‐
harm, spitting, scratching, biting, eloping, failure to maintain physical 
distance). Adjust antecedents where possible to minimize student 
and staff dysregulation. Recognize that there could be new and 
different antecedents and setting events with the additional 
requirements and expectations for the 2020‐21 school year. 

✓ Establish a proactive plan for daily routines designed to build self‐
regulation skills; self‐regulation skill‐building sessions can be short (5‐
10 minutes), and should take place at times when the student is 
regulated and/or is not demonstrating challenging behaviors. 

✓ Ensure all staff are trained to support de‐escalation, provide lagging 
skill instruction, and implement alternatives to restraint and 
seclusion. 

✓ Ensure that staff are trained in effective, evidence‐based methods for 
developing and maintaining their own level of self‐regulation and 
resilience to enable them to remain calm and able to support 
struggling students as well as colleagues. 

✓ Plan for the impact of behavior mitigation strategies on public health 
and safety requirements: 
● Student elopes from area 

o If staff need to intervene for student safety, staff should: 
● Use empathetic and calming verbal interactions (i.e. 

“This seems hard right now. Help me understand… 
How can I help?”) to attempt to re‐regulate the 
student without physical intervention. 

● Use the least restrictive interventions possible to 
maintain physical safety for the student and staff. 

● Wash hands after a close interaction. 
● Note the interaction on the appropriate contact log.  

o *If unexpected interaction with other stable cohorts 
occurs, those contacts must be noted in the appropriate 
contact logs. 

● Student engages in behavior that requires them to be isolated 
from peers and results in a room clear. 
o If students leave the classroom: 

● Preplan for a clean and safe alternative space that 
maintains physical safety for the student and staff 

● Ensure physical distancing and separation occur, to the 
maximum extent possible. 

● Use the least restrictive interventions possible to 
maintain physical safety for the student and staff. 

● Wash hands after a close interaction. 
● Note the interaction on the appropriate contact log. 

o *If unexpected interaction with other stable cohorts 
occurs, those contacts must be noted in the appropriate 
contact logs. 

● Student engages in physically aggressive behaviors that preclude 
the possibility of maintaining physical distance and/or require 
physical de‐escalation or intervention techniques other than 

Packet page 154 of 228



 

Page 23 of 25 

 

restraint or seclusion (e.g., hitting, biting, spitting, kicking, self‐
injurious behavior). 
o If staff need to intervene for student safety, staff should: 

● Maintain student dignity throughout and following the 
incident. 

● Use empathetic and calming verbal interactions (i.e. 
“This seems hard right now. Help me understand… 
How can I help?”) to attempt to re‐regulate the 
student without physical intervention. 

● Use the least restrictive interventions possible to 
maintain physical safety for the student and staff 

● Wash hands after a close interaction. 
● Note the interaction on the appropriate contact log. 

*If unexpected interaction with other stable cohorts occurs, those 
contacts must be noted in the appropriate contact logs. 

 
 
 

✓ Ensure that spaces that are unexpectedly used to deescalate 
behaviors are appropriately cleaned and sanitized after use before 
the introduction of other stable cohorts to that space. 

 
2o. PROTECTIVE PHYSICAL INTERVENTION 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Reusable Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) must be cleaned and 
disinfected following the manufacturer’s recommendation, after 
every episode of physical intervention (see section 2j. Cleaning, 
Disinfection, and Ventilation in the Ready Schools, Safe Learners 
guidance). Single‐use disposable PPE must not be re‐used. 

PHS Custodial Staff will be responsible for cleaning reusable PPE. 

 
 

 

  3. Response to Outbreak 

   
3a. PREVENTION AND PLANNING 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Review the “Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools” toolkit.   ● Coordinate communication and action with the Benton County 
Health Department. 

● PSD District Nurse, is the contact person identified for any school 
concerns. 

● If the region impacted is in Benton County Health Authority, will 
provide school centered communication and will potentially host 
conference calls. 

● Establish PSD Response Team for making any Immediate, necessary 
adjustments should infection rates increase.  Actions may include: 

o Temporarily dismiss students attending school childcare 
and K‐12 schools; 

o Modify, postpone, or cancel large school events; 
o Establish timely communication with staff and families. 

● When novel viruses are identified in the school setting, and the 
incidence is low, the local health department will provide a direct 
report to the district nurse on the diagnosed case. 

● If school closure is advised by the local public health department, 
consultation should occur between legal, union and district 
administration to ensure processes are consistent with legal 
preparedness processes. 

✓ Coordinate with Local Public Health Authority (LPHA) to establish 
communication channels related to current transmission level. 

 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 155 of 228



 

Page 24 of 25 

 

3b. RESPONSE 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Review and utilize the “Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools” 
toolkit.  

See Communicable Disease Management Plan. 

● Identify baseline absentee rates to determine if the rates have 
increased by 15%.  

● Temporarily dismiss students attending childcare facilities and k12 
schools.  

● Modify, postpone, or cancel large school events as coordinated with 
BC Public Health. 

● Work with BC Public Health to establish timely communication with 
staff and families.  

● When novel viruses are identified in the school setting, and the 
incidence is low, the LPHA will provide a direct report to the district 
nurse on the diagnosed case. 

✓ Ensure continuous services and implement Comprehensive Distance 
Learning. 

✓ Continue to provide meals for students. 

 
3c. RECOVERY AND REENTRY 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Review and utilize the “Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools” 
toolkit.  

Comprehensive Distance Learning (CDL) will remain in place during any 
time of school closure due to COVID‐19, unless staffing levels are 
insufficient to support this model. 

Ongoing consultation with the Benton County Health Department 
regarding re‐opening considerations. 

If school closure is advised by Benton County Public Health, consultation 
will take place with legal counsel, union leadership, and PSD 
administration to ensure processes are consistent with legal 
preparedness protocols. 

Teachers will plan for Comprehensive Distance Learning (CDL) to support 
all learners in times of need for this instructional model. 

Follow guidance for cleaning to allow for re‐opening. 

✓ Clean, sanitize, and disinfect surfaces (e.g. door handles, sink 
handles, drinking fountains, transport vehicles) and follow CDC 
guidance for classrooms, cafeteria settings, restrooms, and 
playgrounds. 

✓ When bringing students back into On‐Site or Hybrid instruction, 
consider smaller groups, cohorts, and rotating schedules to allow for 
a safe return to schools.   

 
 

 

ASSURANCES 
This section must be completed by any public school that is providing instruction through On‐Site or Hybrid Instructional Models.  

Schools providing Comprehensive Distance Learning Instructional Models do not need to complete this section unless the school is implementing 
the Limited In‐Person Instruction provision under the Comprehensive Distance Learning guidance. 

This section does not apply to private schools. 
 

☐  We affirm that, in addition to meeting the requirements as outlined above, our school plan has met the collective 
requirements from ODE/OHA guidance related to the 2020‐21 school year, including but not limited to 
requirements from: 
● Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance, 
● The Comprehensive Distance Learning guidance, 
● The Ensuring Equity and Access: Aligning Federal and State Requirements guidance, and 
● Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools 

Packet page 156 of 228



 

Page 25 of 25 

 

☐  We affirm that we cannot meet all of the collective requirements from ODE/OHA guidance related to the 2020‐21 
school year from: 
● Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance, 
● The Comprehensive Distance Learning guidance, 
● The Ensuring Equity and Access: Aligning Federal and State Requirements guidance, and 
● Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools 

We will continue to work towards meeting them and have noted and addressed which requirement(s) we are 
unable to meet in the table titled “Assurance Compliance and Timeline” below. 

 
 

 
  4. Equity 

 

 
  5. Instruction 

 

 
  6. Family, Community, Engagement 

 

 
  7. Mental, Social, and Emotional Health 

 

 
  8. Staffing and Personnel 

Assurance Compliance and Timeline 
If a district/school cannot meet the requirements from the sections above, provide a plan and timeline to meet the requirement. 

List Requirement(s) Not Met  Provide a Plan and Timeline to Meet Requirements 
Include how/why the school is currently unable to meet them 

   

 

Packet page 157 of 228



  
Oregon achieves . . . together! 

 

 

 

 

OPERATIONAL BLUEPRINT FOR SCHOOL REENTRY 2020‐21 

Updated 1/19/2021 

Under ODE’s Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance, each school1 has been directed to submit a plan to the district2 in 
order to provide on‐site and/or hybrid instruction. Districts must submit each school’s plan to the local school board and 
make the plans available to the public. This form is to be used to document a district’s, school’s or program’s plan to 
ensure students can return for the 2020‐21 school year, in some form, in accordance with Executive Order 20‐25(10). 
Schools must use the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance document as they complete their Operational Blueprint for 
Reentry. ODE recommends plan development be inclusive of, but not limited to, school‐based administrators, teachers 

and school staff, health and nursing staff, association leadership, nutrition services, transportation services, tribal 
consultation,3 parents and others for purposes of providing expertise, developing broad understanding of the health 
protocols and carrying out plan implementation. It is required that a revised Operational Blueprint be completed and 
updated when there is a change of Instructional Model. 

1. Please fill out information: 

SCHOOL/DISTRICT/PROGRAM INFORMATION 

Name of School, District or Program  Philomath Academy (PSD 17J) 

Key Contact Person for this Plan  Dr. Dan Johnson, Principal 

Phone Number of this Person  541‐929‐3211 

Email Address of this Person  dan.johnson@philomath.k12.or.us  

Sectors and position titles of those who 
informed the plan 

Administration team, Office and support staff, teaching 
staff, District Nurse, District Office staff, Transportation 
provider, School Board, Technology Department, Benton 
County Health Dept., ODE and OHA 

Local public health office(s) or officers(s)  Benton County Health Department 
Paula Felipe (541‐766‐6766) 

Name of person Designated to Establish, 
Implement and Enforce Physical Distancing 
Requirements 

Dr. Dan Johnson, Principal 

Intended Effective Dates for this Plan  03/15/2021 – 6/30‐2021 

ESD Region  LBLESD 
Albany, OR 

 

   

                                                       
1 For the purposes of this guidance: “school” refers to all public schools, including public charter schools, public virtual charter schools, alternative education 
programs, private schools and the Oregon School for the Deaf. For ease of readability, “school” will be used inclusively to reference all of these settings. 
2 For the purposes of this guidance: “district” refers to a school district, education service district, public charter school sponsoring district, virtual public 
charter school sponsoring district, state sponsored public charter school, alternative education programs, private schools, and the Oregon School for the 
Deaf. 
3 Tribal Consultation is a separate process from stakeholder engagement; consultation recognizes and affirms tribal rights of self‐government and tribal 
sovereignty, and mandates state government to work with American Indian nations on a government‐to‐government basis. 

Packet page 158 of 228



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

2. Please list efforts you have made to engage your community (public health information sharing, taking 
feedback on planning, etc.) in preparing for school in 2020‐21. Include information on engagement with 
communities often underserved and marginalized and those communities disproportionately impacted by 
COVID‐19. 

Recognizing and supporting the diverse needs within the Philomath School District, equity is a critical lens for 
our planning and actions.  Our schools are dedicated to placing students, families, and staff at the center of 
our considerations for the 2020‐2021 school year.  The Philomath Academy (PA) has taken input from staff.  
Parents have participated in two district‐wide surveys and two virtual ‘Town Hall’ meetings. 
 
The Philomath Academy (PA), a new school this year, will offer only online opportunities for students 
throughout the school year.  Students wishing to participate in on‐site and/or hybrid learning will register at 
one of the other Philomath schools.  Students registering for the Philomath Academy at the beginning of the 
school year will have opportunities at standard grading periods to switch enrollment from the Academy to 
another Philomath school. 
 
As the year progresses, the PA will open for Limited In Person Instruction (onsite) opportunities for students.  
Opening will follow the access requirements for small groups as dictated by the Ready Schools, Safe Learners 
guidance. This will primarily involve students that have struggled to complete work, have limited access to 
consistent internet connectivity, or have other educational needs that can only be met in an in person model. 
Strict cohort rules will be in place including: masking, physical distance, cohort protocols strictly adhered, and 
hand washing/sanitizing.   
 
As a new school, there are no available statistics for the student population at the Philomath Academy. 

 
3. Select which instructional model will be used: 

☐ On‐Site Learning    ☐ Hybrid Learning    ☒ Comprehensive Distance Learning 

4. If you selected Comprehensive Distance Learning, you only have to fill out the green portion of the 
Operational Blueprint for Reentry (i.e., page 2 in the initial template). 

5. If you selected On‐Site Learning or Hybrid Learning, you have to fill out the blue portion of the Operational 
Blueprint for Reentry (i.e., pages 3‐22 in the initial template) and submit online, including updating when 
you are changing Instructional Model 
(https://app.smartsheet.com/b/form/a4dedb5185d94966b1dffc75e4874c8a). 

* Note: Private schools are required to comply with only sections 1‐3 of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance.  

   

Packet page 159 of 228



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPREHENSIVE DISTANCE LEARNING OPERATIONAL BLUEPRINT 
This section must be completed by any school that is seeking to provide instruction through Comprehensive Distance Learning. For Private Schools, 
completing this section is optional (not required). Schools providing On‐Site or Hybrid Instructional Models do not need to complete this section. 

 

Describe why you are selecting Comprehensive Distance Learning as the school’s Instructional Model for the effective dates of this plan. 

The Philomath Academy, a new school this year, will offer only online opportunities for students throughout 
the school year.  Students wishing to participate in on‐site and/or hybrid learning will register at one of the 
other Philomath schools.  Students registering for the Philomath Academy at the beginning of the school 
year will have opportunities at standard grading periods to switch enrollment from the Academy to another 
Philomath school. 
 
One component of the Philomath Academy is designed to support students and families seeking a fully 
online experience for learning.  As we experience the range of COVID‐19 decisions, a number of our families 
do not wish to return their children to a brick‐and‐mortar school.  For these students and families, the 
Philomath Academy will immediately be available. 
 
As guidance allows, the Academy will open for limited in person instructional opportunities for students 
seeking credit recovery as well as students seeking an alternative path for K‐12 schooling.  Students involved 
in these groups will have access to online instruction, in‐person opportunities to connect with staff for 
additional support, and for those with internet connectivity issues, consistent access.  

 

In completing this portion of the Blueprint you are attesting that you have reviewed the Comprehensive Distance Learning Guidance. Here is 
a link to the overview of CDL Requirements. Please name any requirements you need ODE to review for any possible flexibility or waiver.  

N/A 

 

Describe the school’s plan, including the anticipated timeline, for returning to Hybrid Learning or On‐Site Learning consistent with the Ready 
Schools, Safe Learners guidance. 

N/A 

 
The remainder of this operational blueprint is not applicable to schools operating a Comprehensive Distance Learning Model. 

 
 

Packet page 160 of 228



  
Oregon achieves . . . together! 

 

 

OPERATIONAL BLUEPRINT FOR SCHOOL REENTRY 2020‐21 

Updated 1/19/2021 

Under ODE’s Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance, each school1 has been directed to submit a plan to the district2 in 
order to provide on‐site and/or hybrid instruction. Districts must submit each school’s plan to the local school board and 
make the plans available to the public. This form is to be used to document a district’s, school’s or program’s plan to 
ensure students can return for the 2020‐21 school year, in some form, in accordance with Executive Order 20‐25(10). 
Schools must use the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance document as they complete their Operational Blueprint for 
Reentry. ODE recommends plan development be inclusive of, but not limited to, school‐based administrators, teachers 

and school staff, health and nursing staff, association leadership, nutrition services, transportation services, tribal 
consultation,3 parents and others for purposes of providing expertise, developing broad understanding of the health 
protocols and carrying out plan implementation. It is required that a revised Operational Blueprint be completed and 
updated when there is a change of Instructional Model. 

1. Please fill out information: 

SCHOOL/DISTRICT/PROGRAM INFORMATION 

Name of School, District or Program  Philomath Middle School (PSD 17J) 

Key Contact Person for this Plan  Steve Bell, Principal 

Phone Number of this Person  541‐929‐3167 

Email Address of this Person  steve.bell@philomath.k12.or.us  

Sectors and position titles of those who informed 
the plan 

Superintendent, Principal, Assistant Principal, District Nurse, 
Teachers, Classified Staff, Business Manager, Special 
Programs Director, Technology Director, Food Service 
Provider, Transportation Provider, School Board Member, 
Parents, ODE and OHA. 

Local public health office(s) or officers(s)  Benton County Health Department 
541‐766‐6168 

Name of person Designated to Establish, 
Implement and Enforce Physical Distancing 
Requirements 

Steve Bell, Principal 
Chad Matthews, Assistant Principal 

Intended Effective Dates for this Plan  March 1, 2021 – June 30, 2021 

ESD Region  LBL (Albany, OR) 

                                                       
1 For the purposes of this guidance: “school” refers to all public schools, including public charter schools, public virtual charter schools, alternative 

education programs, private schools and the Oregon School for the Deaf. For ease of readability, “school” will be used inclusively to reference all of these 
settings. 
2 For the purposes of this guidance: “district” refers to a school district, education service district, public charter school sponsoring district, virtual public 

charter school sponsoring district, state sponsored public charter school, alternative education programs, private schools, and the Oregon School for the 
Deaf. 
3 Tribal Consultation is a separate process from stakeholder engagement; consultation recognizes and affirms tribal rights of self‐government and tribal 

sovereignty, and mandates state government to work with American Indian nations on a government‐to‐government basis. 

Packet page 161 of 228



 

Page 2 of 25 

 

 

2. Please list efforts you have made to engage your community (public health information sharing, taking feedback 
on planning, etc.) in preparing for school in 2020‐21. Include information on engagement with communities 
often underserved and marginalized and those communities disproportionately impacted by COVID‐19. 

Recognizing and supporting the diverse needs within the Philomath School District, equity is a critical lens for 
our planning and actions.  Our schools are dedicated to placing students, families, and staff at the center of our 
considerations for the 2020‐2021 school year.  Philomath Middle School (PMS) has taken input from all staff as 
well as from focus group meetings (i.e. parents of students, Spanish family liaison, Special Education family 
representative, Site Council members, counselor, teachers, and administration), and Livestream school board 
meetings.  Parents have participated in two district‐wide surveys and two virtual ‘Town Hall’ meetings. 

While our original plan to return students to school in September did not work out, we are excited for their 
return at this time.  Through the school year, we have announced dates for starting only to be blocked for one 
reason or another.  Most recently, PSD decided to complete the updated Operational Blueprint, reflecting the 
01/19/2021 Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance, prior to opening schools. 

Philomath Middle School will begin with students physically attending school through an array of opportunities 
to best meet the needs of students and families.  As metrics allow and as elementary school success is 
demonstrated, middle school students will schedule a return date for hybrid learning. 

● CDL (AM Only) 
● CDL (All Day) 
● Hybrid CDL (AM) and On‐Site (PM) 
● Hybrid On‐Site (All Day) 

 
If major changes to guidance and practice, PMS stands ready to more quickly move to additional on‐site learning 
or to comprehensive distance learning. 
 
Philomath Middle School will offer access to four days of on‐site learning for students from marginalized and/or 
underserved student populations.  The current PMS student population is represented as follows: 
● 39%  Free/Reduced Lunch 
● 11%  Hispanic 
● 10%   Non‐White 
● 90%   White 
● < 1%   Emerging Bilingual 
● 11%   Special Education 
● 5%   Section 504 

 
3. Select which instructional model will be used: 

☐ On‐Site Learning    ✓ Hybrid Learning    ☐ Comprehensive Distance Learning 

4. If you selected Comprehensive Distance Learning, you only have to fill out the green portion of the Operational 
Blueprint for Reentry (i.e., page 2 in the initial template). 

5. If you selected On‐Site Learning or Hybrid Learning, you have to fill out the blue portion of the Operational 
Blueprint for Reentry (i.e., pages 3‐22 in the initial template) and submit online, including updating when you 
are changing Instructional Model (https://app.smartsheet.com/b/form/a4dedb5185d94966b1dffc75e4874c8a). 

* Note: Private schools are required to comply with only sections 1‐3 of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance.  

 
 

Packet page 162 of 228



 

Page 3 of 25 

 

 

REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPREHENSIVE DISTANCE LEARNING OPERATIONAL BLUEPRINT 
This section must be completed by any school that is seeking to provide instruction through Comprehensive Distance Learning. For Private Schools, 
completing this section is optional (not required). Schools providing On‐Site or Hybrid Instructional Models do not need to complete this section. 

 

Describe why you are selecting Comprehensive Distance Learning as the school’s Instructional Model for the effective dates of this plan. 

Some students will remain in the CDL environment to accommodate students not yet able to return to the school site. 

 

In completing this portion of the Blueprint you are attesting that you have reviewed the Comprehensive Distance Learning Guidance. Here is a 
link to the overview of CDL Requirements. Please name any requirements you need ODE to review for any possible flexibility or waiver.  

N/A 

 

Describe the school’s plan, including the anticipated timeline, for returning to Hybrid Learning or On‐Site Learning consistent with the Ready 
Schools, Safe Learners guidance. 

N/A 

 
The remainder of this operational blueprint is not applicable to schools operating a Comprehensive Distance Learning Model. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 163 of 228



 

Page 4 of 25 

 

ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR HYBRID / ON‐SITE OPERATIONAL BLUEPRINT 
This section must be completed by any school that is providing instruction through On‐Site or Hybrid Instructional Models. 

Schools providing Comprehensive Distance Learning Instructional Models do not need to complete this section unless the school is implementing 
the Limited In‐Person Instruction provision under the Comprehensive Distance Learning guidance. 

 
 

 

  1. Public Health Protocols 

 
1a. COMMUNICABLE DISEASE MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR COVID‐19 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Conduct a risk assessment as required by OSHA administrative rule 
OAR 437‐001‐0744(3)(g). 
● OSHA has developed a risk assessment template.  

See Attached 
Completed by PSD Facilities Director (Joey DiGiovannangelo) 
 
Screen upon entry; cohort tracking; hand sanitizing; face covering; 
facility cleaning protocols. 
 
See Communicable Disease (CD) Management Plan. 
(Updated 02/16/2021) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The point person at Philomath Middle School is the principal, Steve Bell. 
 
Adding two days of inservice prior to the start of the hybrid learning 
model to allow training in safety and instructional protocols. 
 
 

Anonymous Google Form, developed and shared by PSD. 
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSc‐
L8eFSTe9GaUVCTwvht0ofS21ibWVp33os3c6Fn6zWg5PDw/viewform?gx
ids=7628 

OSHA Complaint 
https://osha.oregon.gov/workers/Pages/index.aspx 
 
 
LPHA Staff: Lynn Rogers and Paula Felipe 
District Nurse: Lori Haslam and Tina Hoch 
 
 
Policies/Protocols handbook has been updated routinely to include new 
RSSL guidance protocols.  Trainings for staff have occurred virtually via 
zoom on multiple occasions, as well as in person via a school 
walkthrough on multiple occasions.  Substitute staff were trained via 
personal building walkthrough on January 22, 2021.  Any staff that may 
not have participated in past training will be trained via personal 
walkthrough. 
Updated training to take place with updated Blueprints and CDMP. 
 
Contact School Administrator: Steve Bell or Chad Matthews 
Administrator will notify District Nurse (Lori Haslam or Tina Hoch) who 
will follow up with LPHA. 

✓  Implement measures to limit the spread of COVID‐19 within the 
school setting, including when the school setting is outside a building. 

✓ Update written Communicable Disease Management Plan to 
specifically address the prevention of the spread of COVID‐19. 
Examples are located in the Oregon School Nurses Association (OSNA) 
COVID‐19 Toolkit. 
● Review OSHA requirements for infection control plan to ensure 

that all required elements are covered by your communicable 
disease management plan, including making the plan available 
to employees at their workplace. Requirements are listed in 
OSHA administrative rule OAR 437‐001‐0744(3)(h). 

● OSHA has developed a sample infection control plan.   

✓ Designate a single point‐person at each school to establish, 
implement, support and enforce all RSSL health and safety protocols, 
including face coverings and physical distancing requirements, 
consistent with the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance and other 
guidance from OHA. This role should be known to all staff in the 
building with consistent ways for licensed and classified staff to access 
and voice concerns or needs.  

✓ Create a simple process that allows for named and anonymous sharing 
of concerns that can be reviewed on a daily and weekly basis by the 
designated RSSL building point‐person. Example: Anonymous survey 
form or suggestion box where at least weekly submissions and 
resolutions are shared in some format.   
 
 
 
 

✓  Include names of the LPHA staff, school nurses, and other medical 
experts who provided support and resources to the district/school 
policies and plans. Review relevant local, state, and national evidence 
to inform plan. 

✓ Process and procedures established to train all staff in sections 1 ‐ 3 of 
the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance. Consider conducting the 
training virtually, or, if in‐person, ensure physical distancing is 
maintained to the maximum extent possible. 
 
 
 
 
 

✓ Protocol to notify the local public health authority (LPHA Directory by 
County) of any confirmed COVID‐19 cases among students or staff.  
 

Packet page 164 of 228



 

Page 5 of 25 

 

 

✓ Plans for systematic disinfection of classrooms, common areas, 
offices, table surfaces, bathrooms and activity areas.  
 
 
 

PSD Facilities Director, Joey DiGiovannangelo, will be responsible for 
planning and coordinating with custodial staff to implement the 
disinfection of schools.  A cleaning schedule will be provided for the 
custodians inclusive of restrooms and common areas. 
 
All presumptive and confirmed cases at PMS or involving PMS staff or 
students will be reported to the District’s nurse, Lori Haslam or Tina 
Hoch.  They will follow up with LPHA. 
 
 
All PMS students/staff will receive daily screening (temperature checks) 
by staff at assigned entry points to the school.  Any ill person will be 
isolated per RSSL guidelines.   
 
Students with COVID symptoms at school will be sent to isolation in an 
empty office near the front office called the Learning Annex. If needed a 
secondary location is the “sick room” located near the front office. 
 
E‐mail, personal phone calls, and/or formal letters. 

Use letters from Oregon School Nurses Association COVID‐19 Toolkit 
and Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools. 

Daily Student Tracking ‐ Students in classroom tracked through daily 
attendance in Wazzle (SIS). 

General Logs: Attached to the classroom door.  Collected and turned in 
to the school office each Friday.  Filed at school office at the end of each 
week in a location known to the school nurse. 

Personal Logs: Itinerant or district staff need to provide location of 
personal log information to District Nurse as may be requested. 

Keeping logs where best meant to be‐‐ easily found. 

Peggy Ring, ESD, Mental Health,... where work is done. 

Logs turned in to the school office at the end of each day.  Collected by 
Nurse at the end of each week. 

  

 

 

 

Any additional people that enter the classroom will be required to sign 
in on the contact tracing log and immediately sanitize or wash their 
hands upon entry.  These logs will be kept in the office and can be 
checked by the District nurse if/when needed.   
 
 
All itinerant and district staff entering the building will enter via the 
front office and will be required to sign the contract tracing log, and 
complete health screening before entering the building.  Then, they will 
sign each classroom log if they enter within a designated cohort.     

✓ Process to report to the LPHA any cluster of any illness among staff or 
students. 

✓ Protocol to cooperate with the LPHA recommendations. 

✓ Provide all logs and information to the LPHA in a timely manner. 

✓ Protocol for screening students and staff for symptoms (see section 1f 
of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance). 
 
 

✓ Protocol to isolate any ill or exposed persons from physical contact 
with others. 
 
 

✓ Protocol for communicating potential COVID‐19 cases to the school 
community and other stakeholders (see section 1e of the Ready 
Schools, Safe Learners guidance). 
 

✓ Create a system for maintaining daily logs for each student/cohort for 
the purposes of contact tracing. This system needs to be made in 
consultation with a school/district nurse or an LPHA official. Sample 
logs are available as a part of the Oregon School Nurses Association 
COVID‐19 Toolkit. 
● If a student(s) is part of a stable cohort (a group of students 

that are consistently in contact with each other or in multiple 
cohort groups) that conform to the requirements of cohorting 
(see section 1d of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance), 
the daily log may be maintained for the cohort.  

● If a student(s) is not part of a stable cohort, then an individual 
student log must be maintained. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

✓ Required components of individual daily student/cohort logs include: 
● Child’s name 
● Drop off/pick up time 
● Parent/guardian name and emergency contact information 
● All staff (including itinerant staff, district staff, substitutes, and 

guest teachers) names and phone numbers who interact with a 
stable cohort or individual student 

✓ Protocol to record/keep daily logs to be used for contact tracing for a 
minimum of four weeks to assist the LPHA as needed. 
● See supplemental guidance on LPHA/school partnering on 

contact tracing. 
● Refer to OHA Policy on Sharing COVID‐19 Information 

✓ Process to ensure that all itinerant and all district staff (maintenance, 
administrative, delivery, nutrition, and any other staff) who move 
between buildings keep a log or calendar with a running four‐week 
history of their time in each school building and who they were in 
contact with at each site. 
 
 

Packet page 165 of 228



 

Page 6 of 25 

 

 

✓ Process to ensure that the school reports to and consults with the 
LPHA regarding cleaning and possible classroom or program closure if 
anyone who has entered school is diagnosed with COVID‐19. 
 
 
 

Contact: School Administrator 
Principal will contact District Nurse. 
PSD Facilities Director, Joey DiGiovannangelo, responsible for this area. 
PSD Nurse to contact BC Health Department. 
 
Cohort tracking as per CD Management Plan. 
 
Susan Halliday, District Superintendent, will report this information. 
 
 
 
See Communicable Disease Management Plan. 
 
 

✓ Designate a staff member and process to ensure that the school 
provides updated information regarding current instructional models 
and student counts and reports these data in ODE’s COVID‐19 Weekly 
School Status system. 

✓ Protocol to respond to potential outbreaks (see section 3 of the Ready 
Schools, Safe Learners guidance). 

 
1b. HIGH‐RISK POPULATIONS 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Serve students in high‐risk population(s) whether learning is 
happening through On‐Site (including outside), Hybrid (partially On‐
Site and partially Comprehensive Distance Learning models), or 
Comprehensive Distance Learning models.  

Information will be maintained for all students and staff identified as 
vulnerable and/or high risk. 
 
There is a commitment to serve all students enrolled in school. 
 
 
Information will be maintained for all students and staff identified as 
vulnerable and/or high risk.  Staff members at high risk may be 
considered for re‐assigned duties as available and/or provided with all 
possible leave options. 
 
Essential and consistent volunteers will be able to work directly with 
students in schools.  Cohort rules will apply. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PSD District Nurse will provide case management/ care planning for 
students with chronic medical conditions which could present with 
symptoms of COVID (asthma, coughing, Crohn’s/IBS lactose intolerance, 
diarrhea, allergies, runny nose) to ensure they are not excluded 
unnecessarily and/or disproportionately. 
 
PSD District Nurse will coordinate with families, BC Public Health, and/or 
medical providers to determine return‐to‐school status and current 
needs of each student. 
 
All students identified as vulnerable, either by physician or parent/ 
guardian notification, will have the opportunity to enroll in the CDL 
model or online instruction through the Philomath Academy. 
 
Students who experience specific disabilities will continue to receive 
specially designed instruction. 
 
Students in need of language support will continue to receive ELD 
services. 
 
 
 
 

Medically Fragile, Complex and Nursing‐Dependent Student 
Requirements 

✓ All districts must account for students who have health conditions 
that require additional nursing services. Oregon law (ORS 336.201) 
defines three levels of severity related to required nursing services:  
1. Medically Complex: Are students who may have an unstable 

health condition and who may require daily professional 
nursing services. 

2. Medically Fragile: Are students who may have a life‐
threatening health condition and who may require immediate 
professional nursing services. 

3. Nursing‐Dependent: Are students who have an unstable or 
life‐threatening health condition and who require daily, direct, 
and continuous professional nursing services. 

✓ Review Supplemental Guidance on Community and Health 
Responsibilities Regarding FAPE in Relation to IDEA During CDL and 
Hybrid. 

✓ Staff and school administrators, in partnership with school nurses, or 
other school health providers, should work with interdisciplinary 
teams to address individual student needs. The school registered 
nurse (RN) is responsible for nursing care provided to individual 
students as outlined in ODE guidance and state law: 
● Communicate with parents and health care providers to 

determine return to school status and current needs of the 
student.  

● Coordinate and update other health services the student may 
be receiving in addition to nursing services. This may include 
speech language pathology, occupational therapy, physical 
therapy, as well as behavioral and mental health services.   

● Modify Health Management Plans, Care Plans, IEPs, or 504 or 
other student‐level medical plans, as indicated, to address 
current health care considerations.     

● The RN practicing in the school setting should be supported to 
remain up to date on current guidelines and access 
professional support such as evidence‐based resources from 
the Oregon School Nurses Association.  

● Service provision should consider health and safety as well as 
legal standards. 

Packet page 166 of 228



 

Page 7 of 25 

 

 

● Appropriate medical‐grade personal protective equipment 
(PPE) should be made available to nurses and other health 
providers.  

● Work with an interdisciplinary team to meet requirements of 
ADA and FAPE. 

● High‐risk individuals may meet criteria for exclusion during a 
local health crisis.  

● Refer to updated state and national guidance and resources 
such as:  
o U.S. Department of Education Supplemental Fact 

Sheet: Addressing the Risk of COVID‐19 in Preschool, 
Elementary and Secondary Schools While Serving 
Children with Disabilities from March 21, 2020. 

o ODE guidance updates for Special Education. Example 
from March 11, 2020.  

o OAR 581‐015‐2000 Special Education, requires districts 
to provide ‘school health services and school nurse 
services’ as part of the ‘related services’ in order ‘to 
assist a child with a disability to benefit from special 
education.’  

o OAR 333‐019‐0010 Public Health: Investigation and 
Control of Diseases: General Powers and 
Responsibilities, outlines authority and responsibilities 
for school exclusion. 

 
 
 
 
 
District Nurse in touch with all high risk students including plans for 
return to in‐person instruction. 

 
1c. PHYSICAL DISTANCING 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Establish a minimum of 35 square feet per person when determining 
room capacity. Calculate only with usable classroom space, 
understanding that desks and room set‐up will require use of all 
space in the calculation. This also applies for professional 
development and staff gatherings.  If implementing Learning Outside 
guidance, establish an outside learning space for learning that 
maintains minimum 35 square feet per person. 
● Within this design, educators should have their own minimum 

of 35 square feet and the design of the learning environment 
must allow for some ability for the educator to move through 
the room efficiently and carefully without breaking 6 feet of 
physical distance to the maximum extent feasible.  

All classrooms/teaching spaces (including communal spaces, if they are 
used) will be evaluated to determine how many people can be 
accommodated allowing 35 square feet of usable space. 
 
Relocate extra furniture to allow seating capacity for only the allowable 
number of people in each classroom. Identify furniture which is intended 
for student use and identify other furniture as off‐limits. 
 
Assign seating to maximize physical distancing and minimize physical 
interaction. 
 
Floor markings will demonstrate where people should stand. 
 
Travel lanes will be marked in hallways. 
  
Staff in each school to oversee compliance (through re‐teaching, not 
discipline) with social distancing and support the process of maintaining 
contact‐tracing logs. 
 
Schedule modifications to limit the number of students in the school and 
classrooms (cohorting). 
 
Stagger use of community spaces (hallways, cafeteria, gymnasium, 
playground) 
 
Assigned entry points for each cohort will minimize the number of 
students at entrances and allow for supervision while students are 
physically distanced. 
 
 
 
 

✓ Support physical distancing in all daily activities and instruction, 
maintaining six feet between individuals to the maximum extent 
possible.  

✓ Minimize time standing in lines and take steps to ensure that six feet 
of distance between students is maintained, including marking 
spacing on floor, one‐way traffic flow in constrained spaces, etc. 

✓ Schedule modifications to limit the number of students in the 
building or outside learning space (e.g., rotating groups by days or 
location, staggered schedules to avoid hallway crowding and 
gathering). 

✓ Plan for students who will need additional support in learning how to 
maintain physical distancing requirements. Provide instruction; don’t 
employ punitive discipline. 

✓ Staff must maintain physical distancing during all staff meetings and 
conferences, or consider remote web‐based meetings. 

Packet page 167 of 228



 

Page 8 of 25 

 

 

Additional Considerations:  
Special education services will be planned and provided for by each Case 
Manager, in collaboration with the classroom teacher, with 
administrative and parent input. Most services will be provided using a 
push‐in model within the classroom. However, when 1‐1 support is 
needed, specialists will maintain physical distancing, wear face shields, 
and use Plexiglas partitions or tri‐fold barriers as necessary. 
 
Speech/Language Pathologist:  SLP services will be provided via a 
combination of in‐person and comprehensive distance learning.  
Speech/language pathologist will work with families to determine the 
best way to serve their children.   
 
Music: Band and Choir classes will continue to take place using the CDL 
model. Afterschool Band Club will practice safe distancing, wearing of 
masks, play outside when weather conditions allow, open exterior doors 
to the multipurpose room when inside the building. 
 
PE Instruction: PE classes will be scheduled in the gymnasium or outside, 
with cohort groups. Classes will be scheduled so there’s enough time for 
cleaning and sanitization between groups. Each cohort will be given their 
own items to use for the lesson and will not share with other classes. 

 
1d. COHORTING 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Where feasible, establish stable cohorts: groups shall be no larger 
than can be accommodated by the space available to provide 35 
square feet per person, including staff. 
● The smaller the cohort, the less risk of spreading disease. As 

cohort groups increase in size, the risk of spreading disease 
increases.   

Contact tracing logs: Logs will be maintained for the school and all 
cohorts. 
 
Attendance will be taken by individual classroom teachers.  Nursing staff 
will seek cohort logs from the school office as needed. 
 
Entrances/Exits, Meals: Student cohorts are assigned to specific 
entrances based on cohort. 
 
Meals times shall be staggered or in different locations to maintain 
cohorts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cleaning:  See CD Management Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff Working with Multiple Cohorts: Staff members 
interacting with multiple cohorts shall wear masks and 
shall wash and/or sanitize hands between cohorts. 
 

✓ Students cannot be part of any single cohort, or part of multiple 
cohorts that exceed a total of 100 people within the educational 
week4, unless the school is offering Learning Outside, then they must 
follow guidelines for cohorting in Learning Outside guidance. Schools 
must plan to limit cohort sizes to allow for efficient contact‐tracing 
and minimal risk for exposure. Cohorts may change week‐to‐week, 
but must be stable within the educational week. 

✓ Each school must have a system for daily logs to ensure contract 
tracing among the cohort (see section 1a of the Ready Schools, Safe 
Learners guidance). 

✓ Minimize interaction between students in different stable cohorts 
(e.g., access to restrooms, activities, common areas). Provide access 
to All Gender/Gender Neutral restrooms. 

✓ Cleaning and sanitizing surfaces (e.g., desks, dry erase boards, door 
handles, etc.) must be maintained between multiple student uses, 
even in the same cohort. 

✓ Design cohorts such that all students (including those protected 
under ADA and IDEA) maintain access to general education, grade‐
level academic content standards5, and peers. 

✓ Minimize the number of staff that interact with each cohort to the 
extent possible, staff who interact with multiple stable cohorts must 
wash/sanitize their hands between interactions with different stable 
cohorts. 

                                                       
4 The cohort limit is focused on the student’s experience and their limit of 100 people includes every person they come into contact with, including 

staff. There is not a limitation for staff in cohort size while care should be given to design and attention to the additional requirements. 

5 Academic content standards refer to all of Oregon state academic standards and the Oregon CTE skill sets. 

Packet page 168 of 228



 

Page 9 of 25 

 

 

✓ Elementary staff who interact with multiple cohorts (music, PE, 
library, paraprofessionals who provide supervision at recesses, etc.) 
should have schedules altered to reduce the number of 
cohorts/students they interact within a week. Consider having these 
staff engage via technology, altering duties so that they are not in 
close contact with students in multiple cohorts, or adjust schedules to 
reduce contacts. 

Attendance on each bus shall be taken per route. 
  
All students protected under ADA and IDEA will be part of a regular 
classroom cohort throughout the day, with push ins form our licensed 
staff.   
 
 

 
1e. PUBLIC HEALTH COMMUNICATION AND TRAINING 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Communicate to staff at the start of On‐Site instruction and at 
periodic intervals explaining infection control measures that are 
being implemented to prevent spread of disease.  

Communication will be shared with students, staff, and families as 
needed to outline the following in their preferred language: 

● Instructional model; 
● Rationale for decision; and 
● Specific infection control measures. 

PSD District staff responsible for developing communication for students, 
staff, families and community at the following times: 

● Family decisions about sending students to school; 
● Sustained contact and/or confirmed case; 
● Isolation and/or Exclusion; 
● School or community outbreak; and 

School closure and re‐opening plans.  
 
 
 
 
District Office, School Nurse, and school building administrators will 
communicate with staff, families, and the school community by email, 
and phone calls. 
 
 
 
As determined by Benton County Health Authority communication with 
those that are in close contact, cohorts, and school community will be 
provided appropriate and relevant information by the school 
administration and school nurse. 
 
Staff will be notified if a student in their room has contracted COVID. 

At least monthly the administration will review and update all protocols 
with staff to ensure compliance and enforcement.  Immediate updates 
will take place when needed. 

Information will be provided in languages and formats accessible to the 
school community. 

✓ Offer initial training to all staff prior to being in‐person in any 
instructional model. Training could be accomplished through all staff 
webinar, narrated slide decks, online video, using professional 
learning communities, or mailing handouts with discussion. Training 
cannot be delivered solely through the sharing or forwarding 
information electronically or in paper copy form as this is an 
insufficient method for ensuring fidelity to public health protocols 
(see section 8b of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance for 
specific training requirements).  Note: Instructional time 
requirements allow for time to be devoted for professional learning 
that includes RSSL training.  

✓ Post “COVID ‐19 Hazard Poster” and “Masks Required” signs as 
required by OSHA administrative rule OAR 437‐001‐0744(3)(d) and 
(e).  

✓ Develop protocols for communicating with students, families and 
staff who have come into close contact with a person who has 
COVID‐19. 
● The definition of exposure is being within 6 feet of a person 

who has COVID‐19 for at least 15 cumulative minutes in a day. 
● OSHA has developed a model notification policy. 

✓ Develop protocols for communicating immediately with staff, 
families, and the school community when a new case(s) of COVID‐19 
is diagnosed in students or staff members, including a description of 
how the school or district is responding. 
 
 
 

✓ Periodic interval training also keeps the vigilance to protocols ever 
present when fatigue and changing circumstances might result in 
reduced adherence to guidance. 
 

✓ Provide all information in languages and formats accessible to the 
school community. 

 
1f. ENTRY AND SCREENING 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Direct students and staff to stay home if they have COVID‐19 
symptoms. COVID‐19 symptoms are as follows: 
● Primary symptoms of concern: cough, fever (temperature of 

100.4°F or higher) or chills, shortness of breath, difficulty 
breathing, or new loss of taste or smell. 

● Note that muscle pain, headache, sore throat, diarrhea, 
nausea, vomiting, new nasal congestion, and runny nose are 
also symptoms often associated with COVID‐19. More 
information about COVID‐19 symptoms is available from CDC. 

● In addition to COVID‐19 symptoms, students must be 
excluded from school for signs of other infectious diseases, 

See Communicable Disease Management Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 169 of 228



 

Page 10 of 25 

 

 

per existing school policy and protocols. See pages 9‐11 of 
OHA/ODE Communicable Disease Guidance for Schools. 

● Emergency signs that require immediate medical attention: 
o Trouble breathing 
o Persistent pain or pressure in the chest 
o New confusion or inability to awaken 
o Bluish lips or face (lighter skin); greyish lips or face 

(darker skin) 
o Other severe symptoms 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Student Screening: 
● Each cohort will be assigned a specific school entry location. 
● Trained staff members will be assigned to each entry location to 

screen students prior to entry. 
● When screening indicates symptoms, students will be escorted by 

available adult to the school office.  Office staff will contact PSD 
Nurse and monitor isolation protocols. 

● Hand washing and hand sanitizing stations will be strategically 
placed in school. 

● For students arriving late to school, entry will be through the school 
office, utilizing appropriate protocols. 

Staff Screening: 

● Staff members are required to contact the school nurse when they 

have been exposed to COVID‐19. They will receive further 
instruction from the school nurse. 

● Staff members are required to contact the school nurse when they 
have symptoms related to COVID‐19. They will receive further 
instruction from the school nurse. 

Staff will go through screening protocol at the beginning of each school 
day, at the front office.   

✓ Diligently screen all students and staff for symptoms on entry to 
bus/school/outside learning space every day. This can be done 
visually as well as asking students and staff about any new symptoms 
or close contact with someone with COVID‐19. For students, 
confirmation from a parent/caregiver or guardian can also be 
appropriate. Staff members can self‐screen and attest to their own 
health, but regular reminders of the importance of daily screening 
must be provided to staff. 
● Anyone displaying or reporting the primary symptoms of 

concern must be isolated (see section 1i of the Ready Schools, 
Safe Learners guidance) and sent home as soon as possible. 
See table “Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools.”  

● Additional guidance for nurses and health staff. 

✓ Follow LPHA advice on restricting from school any student or staff 
known to have been exposed (e.g., by a household member) to 
COVID‐19. See “Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools” and the 
COVID‐19 Exclusion Summary Guide. 

✓ Staff or students with a chronic or baseline cough that has worsened 
or is not well‐controlled with medication must be excluded from 
school. Do not exclude staff or students who have other symptoms 
that are chronic or baseline symptoms (e.g., asthma, allergies, etc.) 
from school. See the COVID‐19 Exclusion Summary Guide. 

✓ Hand hygiene on entry to school every day: wash with soap and 
water for 20 seconds or use an alcohol‐based hand sanitizer with 60‐
95% alcohol. 

 
1g. VISITORS/VOLUNTEERS 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Restrict non‐essential visitors/volunteers. 
● Examples of essential visitors include: DHS Child Protective 

Services, Law Enforcement, etc.  
● Examples of non‐essential visitors/volunteers include: Parent 

Teacher Association (PTA), classroom volunteers, etc. 

Essential and consistent volunteers will be able to work directly with 
students in schools.  Cohort rules will apply. 
 
Adults in the school are limited to essential personnel only.  (Includes 
LBL, DHS, law enforcement, emergency personnel, mental health 
support, and/or delivery personnel as might be needed. 
 
School specific volunteers sign in on log maintained on classroom 
doorway. 

✓ Diligently screen all visitors/volunteers for symptoms and ask 
questions about symptoms and any close contact with someone 
diagnosed with COVID‐19 upon every entry. Restrict from school 
property any visitor known to have been exposed to COVID‐19. See 
the COVID‐19 Exclusion Summary Guide. 

✓ Visitors/volunteers must wash or sanitize their hands upon entry and 
exit. 

✓ Visitors/volunteers must maintain six‐foot distancing, wear face 
coverings, and adhere to all other provisions of the Ready Schools, 
Safe Learners guidance. 

 
1h. FACE COVERINGS, FACE SHIELDS, AND CLEAR PLASTIC BARRIERS 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Employers are required to provide masks, face coverings, or face 
shields for all staff, contractors, other service providers, visitors and 
volunteers. 
 

School Staff and other essential adults will have access to required PPE. A 
necessary amount will be in classrooms.  
 
 

Commented [1]: Lori - what would you prefer? 

Commented [2R1]: @lori.haslam@philomath.k12.or.u
s 

Packet page 170 of 228



 

Page 11 of 25 

 

 

✓ Face coverings or face shields for all staff, contractors, other service 
providers, visitors or volunteers following CDC guidelines for Face 
Coverings. Individuals may remove their face coverings while 
working alone in private offices or when separated by more than 6 
feet in outside learning spaces. Face shields are an acceptable 
alternative only when a person has a medical condition that 
prevents them from wearing a mask or face covering, when people 
need to see mouth and tongue motions in order to communicate, or 
when an individual is speaking to an audience for a short period of 
time and clear communication is otherwise not possible. 

Required PPE will be available for students as might be needed. 
 
All students and staff will be required to wear a face mask unless they 
have an existing medical condition(s) as indicated by a physician's note. 
Medical exemption accommodations and a plan will be addressed by 
school as needed. 
 
 
 
 
ADA accommodations will be addressed by school as needed. 
 
In IDEA instances discovered in class, classroom teacher should contact 
case manager of individual student to determine next steps. 
IPS/ SST protocol in place for student not protected under IDEA. 
 
 
 
At the staff member’s discretion, mask breaks will be provided for 
students as needed.  Breaks should be considered much like a ‘sensory 
break’/ ‘time out’.  Students taking a teacher‐directed break will be 
distanced from others in the classroom beyond the customary 6’ 
distance. 
ADA and IDEA accommodations will always apply. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In IDEA instances discovered in class, classroom teacher should contact 
the case manager of individual student to determine next steps. 
IPS protocol in place for student not protected under IDEA. 
 
 
A multi‐disciplinary team will meet to determine what accommodations 
are needed to meet the student’s needs and to protect the health and 
safety of others. 
 
 
Physician note required for these students. 
Educational plan determined by IEP, 504, or IPS protocol. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

✓ Face coverings or face shields for all students in grades Kindergarten 
and up following CDC guidelines for Face Coverings. Face shields are 
an acceptable alternative when a student has a medical condition 
that prevents them from wearing a mask or face covering, or when 
people need to see the student’s mouth and tongue motions in 
order to communicate. 

✓ Face coverings should be worn both indoors and outdoors, including 
during outdoor recess. 

✓ Group mask breaks” or “full classroom mask breaks” are not 
allowed. If a student removes a face covering, or demonstrates a 
need to remove the face covering for a short‐period of time: 
● Provide space away from peers while the face covering is 

removed. In the classroom setting, an example could be a 
designated chair where a student can sit and take a 15 
minute “sensory break;” 
o Students must not be left alone or unsupervised;  
o Designated area or chair must be appropriately 

distanced from other students and of a material that 
is easily wiped down for disinfection after each use; 

● Provide additional instructional supports to effectively wear a 
face covering; 

● Provide students adequate support to re‐engage in safely 
wearing a face covering; 

● Students cannot be discriminated against or disciplined for an 
inability to safely wear a face covering during the school day. 

✓ Face masks for school RNs or other medical personnel when 
providing direct contact care and monitoring of staff/students 
displaying symptoms. School nurses shall also wear appropriate 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for their role. 
● Additional guidance for nurses and health staff. 

Accommodations under ADA or IDEA and providing FAPE while 
attending to Face Covering Guidance 

✓  If any student requires an accommodation to meet the requirement 
for face coverings, districts and schools must limit the student’s 
proximity to students and staff to the extent possible to minimize 
the possibility of exposure. Appropriate accommodations could 
include: 
● Offering different types of face coverings and face shields 

that may meet the needs of the student.  
● Spaces away from peers while the face covering is removed; 

students must not be left alone or unsupervised.  
● Short periods of the educational day that do not include 

wearing the face covering, while following the other health 
strategies to reduce the spread of disease. 

● Additional instructional supports to effectively wear a face 
covering. 

✓ For students with existing medical conditions and a physician’s 
orders to not wear face coverings, or other health related concerns, 
schools/districts must not deny any in‐person instruction. 
 

Packet page 171 of 228



 

Page 12 of 25 

 

 

✓ Schools and districts must comply with the established IEP/504 plan 
prior to the closure of in‐person instruction in March of 2020, or the 
current plan in effect for the student if appropriately developed 
after March of 2020.  
● If a student eligible for, or receiving services under a 504/IEP, 

cannot wear a face covering due to the nature of the 
disability, the school or district must: 
1. Review the 504/IEP to ensure access to instruction in 

a manner comparable to what was originally 
established in the student’s plan including on‐site 
instruction with accommodations or adjustments. 

2. Not make placement determinations solely on the 
inability to wear a face covering.  

3. Include updates to accommodations and 
modifications to support students in plans.  

● For students protected under ADA/IDEA, who abstain from 
wearing a face covering, or students whose families 
determine the student will not wear a face covering, the 
school or district must:  
1. Review the 504/IEP to ensure access to instruction in 

a manner comparable to what was originally 
established in the student’s plan. 

2. The team must determine that the disability is not 
prohibiting the student from meeting the 
requirement.  

● If the team determines that the disability is 
prohibiting the student from meeting the 
requirement, follow the requirements for 
students eligible for, or receiving services 
under, a 504/IEP who cannot wear a face 
covering due to the nature of the disability, 

● If a student’s 504/IEP plan included 
supports/goals/instruction for behavior or 
social emotional learning, the school team 
must evaluate the student’s plan prior to 
providing instruction through Comprehensive 
Distance Learning.  

3. Hold a 504/IEP meeting to determine equitable access 
to educational opportunities which may include 
limited in‐person instruction, on‐site instruction with 
accommodations, or Comprehensive Distance 
Learning. 

For IEP  contact case manager. 
For  504, or ISP/ SST plans, contact the school counselor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact the school counselor. 
A multi‐disciplinary team will meet to determine what accommodations 
are needed to meet the student’s needs and to protect the health and 
safety of others. 
 
Meeting will occur to determine appropriate placement and assignment 

✓ For students not currently served under an IEP or 504, districts must 
consider whether or not student inability to consistently wear a face 
covering or face shield as required is due to a disability. Ongoing 
inability to meet this requirement may be evidence of the need for 
an evaluation to determine eligibility for support under IDEA or 
Section 504. 

✓  If a staff member requires an accommodation for the face covering 
or face shield requirements, districts and schools shall work to limit 
the staff member’s proximity to students and staff to the extent 
possible to minimize the possibility of exposure. 

 
 

1i. ISOLATION AND QUARANTINE  

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Protocols for exclusion and isolation for sick students and staff 
whether identified at the time of bus pick‐up, arrival to school, or at 
any time during the school day. 

School Bus: 
Students developing symptoms on the bus shall be seated in a 
designated location and taken to the school office immediately upon 

Packet page 172 of 228



 

Page 13 of 25 

 

 

✓ Protocols for screening students, as well as exclusion and isolation 
protocols for sick students and staff identified at the time of arrival or 
during the school day. See the COVID‐19 Exclusion Summary Guide. 
● Work with school nurses, health care providers, or other staff 

with expertise to determine necessary modifications to areas 
where staff/students will be isolated. If two students present 
COVID‐19 symptoms at the same time, they must be isolated 
at once. If separate rooms are not available, ensure that six 
feet distance is maintained. Do not assume they have the 
same illness. Consider if and where students and staff will be 
isolated during learning outside. Create a comfortable 
outdoor area for isolation or follow plan for in building 
isolation. 

● Consider required physical arrangements to reduce risk of 
disease transmission.  

● Plan for the needs of generally well students who need 
medication or routine treatment, as well as students who may 
show signs of illness.  

● Additional guidance for nurses and health staff for providing 
care to students with complex needs. 

arrival to school.  Students displaying symptoms upon screening will be 
escorted by an adult to the supervised isolation area until able to go 
home. 
 
Contact the school office when escorting any student to isolation areas. 
When escorting students, be sure to keep physical distance to the 
greatest extent possible.  
 
School Arrival: 
Students and staff will be screened upon arrival to school. Students 
exhibiting symptoms upon arrival will be sent to the supervised isolation 
area until able to go home. 
 
During School Day: 
Students and staff exhibiting symptoms shall be sent to the front office 
for screening and placement in an isolation room. 
 
 
 
 
 
Positive COVID‐19 Test: 
Students or staff who have tested positive for COVID‐19 will quarantine 
at home.  The person should remain at home for at least ten days after 
illness onset and 72 hours after fever is gone, without use of fever‐
reducing medication, and other symptoms are improving.   
 
Updated protocol from the Oregon Health Authority and the Oregon 
Department of education guidance will direct any changes to this 
criteria. 
 
Communication Protocol: 
Contact PSD District Nurse whenever an individual is isolated with 
symptoms. 
 
While exercising caution to maintain/ensure safety when working with 
children exhibiting symptoms, it is also critical that staff maintain 
sufficient composure and disposition so as not to unduly worry a student 
or family.  
 
 
 
 
 
Parent/ guardian will provide transportation. 
If emergency, call 911. 
 
 
 
 
 
PSD Nurse, Lori Haslam or Tina Hoch 
 
 
COVID logs and attendance data from Wazzle (SIS). 
 
School will determine available options for students in 
isolation/quarantine: 

● CDL Classroom (ex: Only take their morning classes) 
● Philomath Academy 
● Google Classroom 
● Other 

✓ Students and staff who report or develop symptoms must be isolated 
in a designated isolation area in the school or outside learning space, 
with adequate space and staff supervision and symptom monitoring 
by a school nurse, other school‐based health care provider or school 
staff until they are able to go home. Anyone providing supervision 
and symptom monitoring must wear appropriate face covering or 
face shields. 
● School nurses and health staff in close contact with 

symptomatic individuals (less than 6 feet) must wear a 
medical‐grade face mask. Other Personal Protective 
Equipment (PPE) may be needed depending on symptoms and 
care provided. Consult a nurse or health care professional 
regarding appropriate use of PPE. Any PPE used during care of 
a symptomatic individual must be properly removed and 
disposed of prior to exiting the care space. 

● After removing PPE, hands shall be immediately cleaned with 
soap and water for at least 20 seconds. If soap and water are 
not available, hands can be cleaned with an alcohol‐based 
hand sanitizer that contains 60‐95% alcohol.  

● If able to do so safely, a symptomatic individual shall wear a 
face covering. 

● To reduce fear, anxiety, or shame related to isolation, provide 
a clear explanation of procedures, including use of PPE and 
handwashing.  

✓ Establish procedures for safely transporting anyone who is sick to 
their home or to a health care facility. 

✓ Staff and students who are ill must stay home from school and must 
be sent home if they become ill at school, particularly if they have 
COVID‐19 symptoms. Refer to table in “Planning for COVID‐19 
Scenarios in Schools.” 

✓  Involve school nurses, School Based Health Centers, or staff with 
related experience (Occupational or Physical Therapists) in 
development of protocols and assessment of symptoms (where 
staffing exists). 

✓ Record and monitor the students and staff being isolated or sent 
home for the LPHA review. 

✓ The school must provide a remote learning option for students who 
are required to be temporarily off‐site for isolation and quarantine. 

Packet page 173 of 228



 

Page 14 of 25 

 

 
 

 

  2. Facilities and School Operations 

 

Some activities and areas will have a higher risk for spread (e.g., band, choir, science labs, locker rooms). When engaging in these activities within 
the school setting, schools will need to consider additional physical distancing or conduct the activities outside (where feasible). Additionally, 
schools should consider sharing explicit risk statements for instructional and extra‐curricular activities requiring additional considerations (see 

section 5f of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance). 

 
2a. ENROLLMENT 

(Note: Section 2a does not apply to private schools.) 

OHA/ODE Requirements   Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Enroll all students (including foreign exchange students) following the 
standard Oregon Department of Education guidelines. 

All students will be enrolled following ODE guidelines. 
 
Students may enroll in Philomath Middle School or, for participation in 
fully online instruction, the Philomath Academy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All staff will work to re‐engage students with office staff taking the lead. 
 
School office will use attendance thresholds to make determinations. 
 

  

 School Registrar: Chelsea Van der Zwan 

  

  

Students may enroll in Philomath Middle School for Hybrid or CDL or the 
Philomath Academy. 

PMS Office: 
(Chad Matthews, Mike Panico, Chelsea Van der Zwan)) 

 School Registrar: Chelsea Van derZwan 

 

✓ The temporary suspension of the 10‐day drop rule does not change 
the rules for the initial enrollment date for students: 
● The ADM enrollment date for a student is the first day of the 

student’s actual attendance. 
● A student with fewer than 10 days of absence at the beginning 

of the school year may be counted in membership prior to the 
first day of attendance, but not prior to the first calendar day 
of the school year.   

● If a student does not attend during the first 10 session days of 
school, the student’s ADM enrollment date must reflect the 
student’s actual first day of attendance. 

● Students who were anticipated to be enrolled, but who do not 
attend at any time must not be enrolled and submitted in 
ADM. 

✓  If a student has stopped attending for 10 or more days, districts must 
continue to try to engage the student. At a minimum, districts must 
attempt to contact these students and their families weekly to either 
encourage attendance or receive confirmation that the student has 
transferred or has withdrawn from school. This includes students 
who were scheduled to start the school year, but who have not yet 
attended. 

✓ When enrolling a student from another school, schools must request 
documentation from the prior school within 10 days of enrollment 
per OAR 581‐021‐0255 to make all parties aware of the transfer. 
Documentation obtained directly from the family does not relieve 
the school of this responsibility. After receiving documentation from 
another school that a student has enrolled, drop that student from 
your roll. 

✓ Design attendance policies to account for students who do not 
attend in‐person due to student or family health and safety concerns. 

✓ When a student has a pre‐excused absence or COVID‐19 absence, the 
school district must reach out to offer support at least weekly until 
the student has resumed their education. 

✓ When a student is absent beyond 10 days and meets the criteria for 
continued enrollment due to the temporary suspension of the 10 day 
drop rule, continue to count them as absent for those days and 
include those days in your Cumulative ADM reporting. 

 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 174 of 228



 

Page 15 of 25 

 

 

2b. ATTENDANCE 
(Note: Section 2b does not apply to private schools.) 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

☐ Grades K‐5 (self‐contained): Attendance must be taken at least once 
per day for all students enrolled in school, regardless of the 
instructional model (On‐Site, Hybrid, Comprehensive Distance 
Learning, online schools).  

 
 
 
 

Attendance procedures will ask students to stay home from school if 

someone in their house is exhibiting COVID‐19 symptoms. 
● Students will be asked to follow OHA & ODE quarantine guidelines.  
  
School office will maintain documentation for students with respiratory 
illness. 
 
On‐site attendance shall be used as a primary attendance indicator.  
Students not regularly in attendance during days scheduled to be on‐site 
may be considered present through at least one other method of two‐way 
communication, including: 
● Participation in Google Classroom ‐student must log into GC; 
● E‐mail or Phone communication. 

Two‐way communication involves some type of student response; not 

simply logging on and off with no interaction. 

Families will be provided descriptions of student attendance and 
participation expectations through handbooks, newsletters, & student 
registration process. 

✓ Grades 6‐12 (individual subject): Attendance must be taken at least 
once for each scheduled class that day for all students enrolled in 
school, regardless of the instructional model (On‐Site, Hybrid, 
Comprehensive Distance Learning, online schools). 

✓ Alternative Programs: Some students are reported in ADM as 
enrolled in a non‐standard program (such as tutorial time), with 
hours of instruction rather than days present and days absent. 
Attendance must be taken at least once for each scheduled 
interaction with each student, so that local systems can track the 
student’s attendance and engagement. Reported hours of 
instruction continue to be those hours in which the student was 
present.  

✓ Online schools that previously followed a two check‐in per week 
attendance process must follow the Comprehensive Distance 
Learning requirements for checking and reporting attendance. 

✓ Provide families with clear and concise descriptions of student 
attendance and participation expectations as well as family 
involvement expectations that take into consideration the home 
environment, caregiver’s work schedule, and mental/physical 
health. 

 
2c. TECHNOLOGY 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Update procedures for district‐owned or school‐owned devices to 
match cleaning requirements (see section 2d of the Ready Schools, 
Safe Learners guidance). 

● Technology department will clean and sanitize each device brought 
in for updates, repair, return, inventory, or redistribution.  

● School devices will be cleaned and sanitized between each use. 

 ✓ Procedures for return, inventory, updating, and redistributing 
district‐owned devices must meet physical distancing requirements. 

✓  If providing learning outside and allowing students to engage with 
devices during the learning experiences, provide safe charging 
stations. 

 
2d. SCHOOL SPECIFIC FUNCTIONS/FACILITY FEATURES 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Handwashing: All people on campus shall be advised and encouraged 
to frequently wash their hands or use hand sanitizer. 
 
 

● Handwashing: Provide age‐appropriate hand‐washing instruction, 
define appropriate times for hand‐washing, and provide hand 
sanitizer when hand‐washing is not available. 

● Equipment: All classroom equipment and supplies will be cleaned 
and sanitized before use by another student or cohort. 

● Events: Field trips will be designed virtually or following the hybrid 
cohorting rules.  All assemblies, athletic events, practices, special 
performances, school‐wide parent meetings, and other large 
gatherings will be cancelled or held in a virtual format.   

● Transitions/Hallways: Hallway traffic direction will be marked to 
show travel flow. Passing periods will be staggered to promote 
physical distancing. 

● Personal Property:  Students will not use lockers to store personal 
property. All personal property brought to school will be carried by 
the student throughout the school day in their backpack/bag. 

✓ Equipment: Develop and use sanitizing protocols for all equipment 
used by more than one individual or purchase equipment for 
individual use.  

✓ Events: Cancel, modify, or postpone field trips, assemblies, athletic 
events, practices, special performances, school‐wide parent meetings 
and other large gatherings to meet requirements for physical 
distancing.  

✓ Transitions/Hallways: Limit transitions to the extent possible. Create 
hallway procedures to promote physical distancing and minimize 
gatherings. 

✓ Personal Property: Establish policies for identifying personal property 
being brought to school (e.g., refillable water bottles, school supplies, 
headphones/earbuds, cell phones, books, instruments, etc.). 

Commented [3]: Can those students do the work 
online if they stay home in this instance? What about 
staff? Can they teach virtually that day with an adult 
supervising their classroom (similar to LIPI in the 
morning time?) 

Commented [4R3]: Lori- does having the vaccine 
change the outcome for staff? 

Commented [5R3]: @lori.haslam@philomath.k12.or.u
s 

Commented [6]: Leadership Conversation 

Commented [7]: Tech Crew - How to safely clean 
between use? 

Commented [8]: Who will be responsible for cleaning 
these? 

Commented [9R8]: *Doesn't belong in this section, but 
what is our availability for devices? Will student 
bring their own? Will school provide them? How will 
they be cleaned (safely)? 

Commented [10R8]: 3 computer labs + 3 Chromebook 
labs 

Packet page 175 of 228



 

Page 16 of 25 

 

 

 
2e. ARRIVAL AND DISMISSAL 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Physical distancing, stable cohorts, square footage, and cleaning 
requirements must be maintained during arrival and dismissal 
procedures. 

Students will have designated drop‐off and pick‐up locations based on 
cohort and grade level. 
 
Staff will complete information, not allowing a shared pen/ paper. 
 
Hand sanitizer will be available at entrance to use during arrival and 
dismissal. 
 
Hand washing stations or hand sanitizing dispensers will be placed near 
all entry doors and high‐traffic areas. 
 
Families will be informed of the need to keep drop‐off/ pick‐up 
interactions as brief as possible. 
 
Students identified as potentially symptomatic will be directed to the 
school office to follow isolation protocols. 
 
Students entering school late and/or leaving school early, entry will only 
be allowed through the school office. 
 
Late arrivals will remain  in the secure entry vestibule until screening is 
complete. 

✓ Create schedule(s) and communicate staggered arrival and/or 
dismissal times.  

✓ Assign students or cohorts to an entrance; assign staff member(s) to 
conduct visual screenings (see section 1f of the Ready Schools, Safe 
Learners guidance). 

✓ Ensure accurate sign‐in/sign‐out protocols to help facilitate contact 
tracing by the LPHA. Sign‐in procedures are not a replacement for 
entrance and screening requirements. Students entering school after 
arrival times must be screened for the primary symptoms of concern. 
● Eliminate shared pen and paper sign‐in/sign‐out sheets. 
● Ensure hand sanitizer is available if signing children in or out 

on an electronic device. 

✓ Ensure alcohol‐based hand sanitizer (with 60‐95% alcohol) dispensers 
are easily accessible near all entry doors and other high‐traffic areas. 
Establish and clearly communicate procedures for keeping caregiver 
drop‐off/pick‐up as brief as possible. 

 
2f. CLASSROOMS/REPURPOSED LEARNING SPACES 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Seating: Rearrange student desks and other seat spaces so that staff 
and students’ physical bodies are six feet apart to the maximum 
extent possible while also maintaining 35 square feet per person; 
assign seating so students are in the same seat at all times. 

● Seating: Classroom desks and tables will be arranged allowing 
students to maintain 35 sq. feet of space and maintain 6’ of 
distance. Students will have assigned seats. 

● Materials: Each classroom will limit sharing of community supplies 
when possible (e.g., scissors, pencils, etc.). If needed to share, these 
items will be cleaned between each use. Hand sanitizer and tissues 
will be available for use by students and staff. 

● Handwashing: All students will be regularly reminded to wash their 
hands. Hand washing opportunities will be provided throughout the 
school day. Signage at each sink/hand washing station will remind 
students and staff of effective handwashing practices. 

● Environment: Ventilation is being addressed in every building. 
Supplemental ventilation tools outdoor spaces will be used when 
appropriate. 

✓ Materials: Avoid sharing of community supplies when possible (e.g., 
scissors, pencils, etc.). Clean these items frequently. Provide hand 
sanitizer and tissues for use by students and staff. 

✓ Handwashing: Remind students (with signage and regular verbal 
reminders from staff) of the utmost importance of hand hygiene and 
respiratory etiquette. Respiratory etiquette means covering coughs 
and sneezes with an elbow or a tissue. Tissues shall be disposed of in 
a garbage can, then hands washed or sanitized immediately. 
● Wash hands with soap and water for 20 seconds or use an 

alcohol‐based hand sanitizer with 60‐95% alcohol. 

 
2g. PLAYGROUNDS, FIELDS, RECESS, BREAKS, AND RESTROOMS 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Keep school playgrounds closed to the general public until park 
playground equipment and benches reopen in the community (see 
Oregon Health Authority’s Specific Guidance for Outdoor Recreation 
Organizations). 

Playgrounds shall remain closed to the public. 
 
Student break activities will be supervised in a manner conducive to 
appropriate social distancing. 
 
Students will take breaks only with the assigned cohort. 
 
Students will be reminded of hand‐cleansing requirements before and 
after breaks. 
 
 
 

✓ After using the restroom students must wash hands with soap and 
water for 20 seconds. Soap must be made available to students and 
staff.  For learning outside if portable bathrooms are used, set up 
portable hand washing stations and create a regular cleaning 
schedule. 

✓ Before and after using playground equipment, students must wash 
hands with soap and water for 20 seconds or use an alcohol‐based 
hand sanitizer with 60‐95% alcohol. 

Packet page 176 of 228



 

Page 17 of 25 

 

 

✓ Designate playground and shared equipment solely for the use of one 
cohort at a time. Outdoor playground structures require normal 
routine cleaning and do not require disinfection. Shared equipment 
(balls, jump ropes, etc.) should be cleaned and disinfected at least 
daily in accordance with CDC guidance. 

Supervising staff will clean shared equipment between cohorts. 

✓ Cleaning requirements must be maintained (see section 2j of the 
Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance). 

✓ Maintain physical distancing requirements, stable cohorts, and 
square footage requirements. 

✓ Provide signage and restrict access to outdoor equipment (including 
sports equipment, etc.). 

✓ Design recess activities that allow for physical distancing and 
maintenance of stable cohorts. 

✓ Clean all outdoor equipment at least daily or between use as much as 
possible in accordance with CDC guidance. 

✓ Limit the number of employees gathering in shared spaces. Restrict 
use of shared spaces such as conference rooms, break rooms, and 
elevators by limiting occupancy or staggering use, maintaining six 
feet of distance between adults. Establish a minimum of 35 square 
feet per person when determining room capacity. Calculate only with 
usable space, understanding that tables and room set‐up will require 
use of all space in the calculation. Note: The largest area of risk is 
adults eating together in break rooms without face coverings. 

 
2h. MEAL SERVICE/NUTRITION 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓  Include meal services/nutrition staff in planning for school reentry.  Planning with Corvallis School District Food Service. 
 
Staff will wear face coverings while serving meals. 
 
Students will pick up food in the cafeteria, utilizing appropriate physical 
distance and cohort requirements during meals. 
 
Hand sanitization will take place before and after meals. 
 
Students will not share utensils or other items during meals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The surface where a student eats will be cleaned prior to meals being 
consumed.  
 
Meals will be available for students each school day. 
 
Staff will observe social distancing guidelines during lunch. Staff room 
will not be open as an eating space. Staff can eat where they see fit ‐
classrooms, outside, at home, etc. 

● Refrigerator and microwave use will be permitted as long as 
staff following hygiene and social distancing guidelines.  

● Dishes/silverware will not be shared.  

✓ Prohibit self‐service buffet‐style meals.  

✓ Prohibit sharing of food and drinks among students and/or staff. 

✓ At designated meal or snack times, students may remove their face 
coverings to eat or drink but must maintain six feet of physical 
distance from others, and must put face coverings back on after 
finishing the meal or snack. 

✓ Staff serving meals and students interacting with staff at mealtimes 
must wear face coverings (see section 1h of the Ready Schools, Safe 
Learners guidance). Staff must maintain 6 feet of physical distance to 
the greatest extent possible. If students are eating in a classroom, 
staff may supervise from the doorway of the classroom if feasible.  

✓ Students and staff must wash hands with soap and water for 20 
seconds or use an alcohol‐based hand sanitizer with 60‐95% alcohol 
before meals and shall be encouraged to do so after. 

✓ Appropriate daily cleaning of meal items (e.g., plates, utensils, 
transport items). 

✓ Cleaning and sanitizing of meal touch‐points and meal counting 
system between stable cohorts. 

✓ Adequate cleaning and disinfection of tables between meal periods. 

✓ Since staff must remove their face coverings during eating and 
drinking, limit the number of employees gathering in shared spaces. 
Restrict use of shared spaces such as conference rooms and break 
rooms by limiting occupancy or staggering use. Consider staggering 
times for staff breaks, to prevent congregation in shared spaces. 
Always maintain at least six feet of physical distancing and establish a 
minimum of 35 square feet per person when determining room 
capacity. Calculate only with usable classroom space, understanding 
that desks and room set‐up will require use of all space in the 
calculation. Wear face coverings except when eating or drinking and 
minimize time in spaces where face coverings are not consistently 
worn.  

 

Packet page 177 of 228



 

Page 18 of 25 

 

 

2i. TRANSPORTATION 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓  Include transportation departments (and associated contracted 
providers, if used) in planning for return to service. 

Planning with Mid‐Columbia Bus Company. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Each driver will: 
● Visually screen students for symptoms of illness; 
● Maintain attendance logs for contact tracing; and 
● Wear face coverings. 

Each bus will have: 
● Three feet of physical distance between passengers and 
● Six feet of physical distance between driver and passengers, unless 

additional student support is required. 

 
Bus cleaned and sanitized between routes. 
 
 
 
 
 
Students needing additional support to access school transportation will 
not be denied access. 
 
Bus routes may be adjusted to support cohorting of students. 

✓ Buses are cleaned frequently. Conduct targeted cleanings between 
routes, with a focus on disinfecting frequently touched surfaces of 
the bus (see section 2j of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners 
guidance). 

✓ Staff must use hand sanitizer (containing between 60‐95% alcohol) in 
between helping each child and when getting on and off the vehicle. 
Gloves are not recommended; hand sanitizer is strongly preferred. If 
hand sanitizer is not available, disposable gloves can be used and 
must be changed to a new pair before helping each child. 

✓ Develop protocol for loading/unloading that includes visual screening 
for students exhibiting symptoms and logs for contact‐tracing. This 
must be done at the time of arrival and departure. 
● If a student displays COVID‐19 symptoms, provide a face 

covering (unless they are already wearing one) and keep six 
feet away from others. Continue transporting the student. 
o The symptomatic student shall be seated in the first 

row of the bus during transportation, and multiple 
windows must be opened to allow for fresh air 
circulation, if feasible. 

o The symptomatic student shall leave the bus first. 
After all students exit the bus, the seat and 
surrounding surfaces must be cleaned and disinfected. 

● If arriving at school, notify staff to begin isolation measures.  
o If transporting for dismissal and the student displays 

an onset of symptoms, notify the school. 

✓ Consult with parents/guardians of students who may require 
additional support (e.g., students who experience a disability and 
require specialized transportation as a related service) to 
appropriately provide service. 

✓ Drivers must wear masks or face coverings while driving, unless the 
mask or face covering interferes with the driver’s vision (e.g., fogging 
of eyeglasses). Drivers must wear face coverings when not actively 
driving and operating the bus, including while students are entering 
or exiting the vehicle. A face shield may be an acceptable alternative, 
only as stated in Section 1h of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners 
guidance. 

✓  Inform parents/guardians of practical changes to transportation 
service (i.e., physical distancing at bus stops and while 
loading/unloading, potential for increased route time due to 
additional precautions, sanitizing practices, and face coverings). 

✓ Face coverings for all students, applying the guidance in section 1h of 
the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance to transportation 
settings. This prevents eating while on the bus. 

✓ Take all possible actions to maximize ventilation: Dress warmly, keep 
vents and windows open to the greatest extent possible. 

 
   

Commented [11]: SH to talk to Denise @ MidCo 

Packet page 178 of 228



 

Page 19 of 25 

 

 

2j. CLEANING, DISINFECTION, AND VENTILATION 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Clean, sanitize, and disinfect frequently touched surfaces (e.g. door 
handles, sink handles, drinking fountains, transport vehicles) and 
shared objects (e.g., toys, games, art supplies) between uses multiple 
times per day. Maintain clean and disinfected (CDC guidance) 
environments, including classrooms, cafeteria settings and 
restrooms. Provide time and supplies for the cleaning and 
disinfecting of high‐touch surfaces between multiple student uses, 
even in the same cohort.  

● All frequently touched surfaces (e.g., playground equipment, door 
handles, sink handles, drinking fountains, transport vehicles) and 
shared objects (e.g., toys, games, art supplies) will be cleaned 
multiple times per day. 

o Custodial staff will clean frequently touched surfaces 
within the school building (i.e. restrooms, door 
handles). 

o Transportation Co. will be responsible for cleaning 
transport vehicles. 

o In non‐traditional classroom spaces, the teacher will be 
responsible for cleaning shared objects (i.e. woodshop, 
p.e., art, etc.) 

o Classroom teacher responsible for the cleaning of 
student work surfaces between classes. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
● Ventilation systems will be checked and maintained at‐least monthly 

by maintenance staff. 
  
● When appropriate, doors will be opened to encourage ventilation 

and air circulation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

✓ Outdoor learning spaces must have at least 75% of the square 
footage of its sides open for airflow. 

✓ Outdoor playground structures require normal routine cleaning and 
do not require disinfection. Shared equipment should be cleaned and 
disinfected at least daily in accordance with CDC guidance. 

✓ Apply disinfectants safely and correctly following labeling direction as 
specified by the manufacturer. Keep these products away from 
students. 

✓ To reduce the risk of asthma, choose disinfectant products on the 
EPA List N with asthma‐safer ingredients (e.g. hydrogen peroxide, 
citric acid, or lactic acid) and avoid products that mix these with 
asthma‐causing ingredients like peroxyacetic acid, sodium 
hypochlorite (bleach), or quaternary ammonium compounds. 

✓ Schools with HVAC systems must evaluate the system to minimize 
indoor air recirculation (thus maximizing fresh outdoor air) to the 
extent possible. Schools that do not have mechanical ventilation 
systems shall, to the extent possible, increase natural ventilation by 
opening windows and interior doors before students arrive and after 
students leave, and while students are present. Do not prop open 
doors that can pose a safety or security risk to students and staff 
(e.g., exterior doors and fire doors that must remain closed.) 

✓ Schools with HVAC systems should ensure all filters are maintained 
and replaced as necessary to ensure proper functioning of the 
system.  

✓ All intake ports that provide outside air to the HVAC system should 
be cleaned, maintained, and cleared of any debris that may affect the 
function and performance of the ventilation system. 

✓ Consider running ventilation systems continuously and changing the 
filters more frequently. Do not use fans if they pose a safety or health 
risk, such as increasing exposure to pollen/allergies or exacerbating 
asthma symptoms. Consider using window fans or box fans 
positioned in open windows to blow fresh outdoor air into the 
classroom via one window, and indoor air out of the classroom via 
another window. Fans must not be used in rooms with closed 
windows and doors, as this does not allow for fresh air to circulate. 

✓ Consider the need for increased ventilation in areas where students 
with special health care needs receive medication or treatments. 

✓ Facilities must be cleaned and disinfected at least daily to prevent 
transmission of the virus from surfaces (see CDC’s guidance on 
disinfecting public spaces). 

✓ Consider modification or enhancement of building ventilation where 
feasible (see CDC’s guidance on ventilation and filtration and 
American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air‐Conditioning 
Engineers’ guidance). 

 
   

Packet page 179 of 228



 

Page 20 of 25 

 

 

2k. HEALTH SERVICES 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ OAR 581‐022‐2220 Health Services, requires districts to “maintain a 
prevention‐oriented health services program for all students” 
including space to isolate sick students and services for students with 
special health care needs. While OAR 581‐022‐2220 does not apply to 
private schools, private schools must provide a space to isolate sick 
students and provide services for students with special health care 
needs. 

PSD District Nurse continue to develop, implement, and support 
preventive health measures. 

SD remains in constant communication with the Benton County Health 
Department. 

• PMS will provide age appropriate hand hygiene and respiratory 
etiquette education to endorse prevention. This includes website, 
newsletter and signage in the school setting for health promotion.  

• Schools will practice appropriate communicable disease isolation 
and exclusion measures.  

• Staff will participate in required health services related training to 
maintain health services practices in the school setting.  

• COVID‐19 specific infection control practices for staff and students 
will be communicated.  

• Review of 504 and IEP accommodations and IHP’s will be advised to 
address vulnerable populations. 

• For sudden student illness (throwing up, seizure, choking, etc…), 
provide for immediate student safety first.  Contact school office for 
assistance as might be needed. 

 

✓ Licensed, experienced health staff should be included on teams to 
determine district health service priorities. Collaborate with health 
professionals such as school nurses; SBHC staff; mental and 
behavioral health providers; dental providers; physical, occupational, 
speech, and respiratory therapists; and School Based Health Centers 
(SBHC). 

 
2l. BOARDING SCHOOLS AND RESIDENTIAL PROGRAMS ONLY 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

☐ Provide specific plan details and adjustments in Operational 
Blueprints that address staff and student safety, which includes how 
you will approach: 
● Contact tracing 
● The intersection of cohort designs in residential settings (by 

wing or common restrooms) with cohort designs in the 
instructional settings. The same cohorting parameter limiting 
total cohort size to 100 people applies.   

● Quarantine of exposed staff or students 
● Isolation of infected staff or students 
● Communication and designation of where the “household” or 

“family unit” applies to your residents and staff 

N/A 

☐ Review and take into consideration CDC guidance for shared or 
congregate housing: 
● Not allow more than two students to share a residential dorm 

room unless alternative housing arrangements are impossible 
● Ensure at least 64 square feet of room space per resident 
● Reduce overall residential density to ensure sufficient space 

for the isolation of sick or potentially infected individuals, as 
necessary; 

● Configure common spaces to maximize physical distancing; 
● Provide enhanced cleaning;  
● Establish plans for the containment and isolation of on‐

campus cases, including consideration of PPE, food delivery, 
and bathroom needs. 

Exception 
K‐12 boarding schools that do not meet the Advisory Metrics (Section 0 
of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance) may operate, in 
consultation with their Local Public Health Authority, provided that: 

☐ They have a current and complete RSSL Blueprint and are complying 
with Sections 1‐3 of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance and 
any other applicable sections, including Section 2L of the Ready 
Schools, Safe Learners guidance. 

Packet page 180 of 228



 

Page 21 of 25 

 

 

☐ The school maintains a fully‐closed residential campus (no non‐
essential visitors allowed), and normal day school operations are only 
offered remotely through distance learning. 

☐ There have been no confirmed cases of COVID‐19 among school staff 
or students in the past 14 days. 

☐ Less than 10% of staff, employees, or contracts (in total) are traveling 
to or from campus. Staff in this designation will: 
● Limit travel to essential functions. 
● Carefully monitor their own health daily and avoid coming to 

campus at any potential symptom of COVID‐19. 

☐ Any boarding students newly arriving to campus will either: 
● Complete a quarantine at home for 14 days* prior to traveling 

to the school, OR 
● Quarantine on campus for 14 days.* 

 
* A 14‐day quarantine is the safest option to prevent the spread of 
COVID‐19 to others. However, in either option above, for boarding 
students who have not developed any symptoms, schools may 
consider ending quarantine after 10 days without any testing, or after 
7 days with a negative result on a COVID‐19 viral test collected within 
48 hours before ending quarantine, unless otherwise directed by the 
local public health authority (LPHA). 

☐ Student transportation off‐campus is limited to medical care. 

 
2m. SCHOOL EMERGENCY PROCEDURES AND DRILLS 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓  In accordance with ORS 336.071 and OAR 581‐022‐2225 all schools 
(including those operating a Comprehensive Distance Learning 
model) are required to instruct students on emergency procedures. 
Schools that operate an On‐Site or Hybrid model need to instruct and 
practice drills on emergency procedures so that students and staff 
can respond to emergencies.  
● At least 30 minutes in each school month must be used to 

instruct students on the emergency procedures for fires, 
earthquakes (including tsunami drills in appropriate zones), 
and safety threats. 

● Fire drills must be conducted monthly.   
● Earthquake drills (including tsunami drills and instruction for 

schools in a tsunami hazard zone) must be conducted two 
times a year. 

● Safety threats including procedures related to lockdown, 
lockout, shelter in place and evacuation and other appropriate 
actions to take when there is a threat to safety must be 
conducted two times a year. 

● Walk‐through drills with students to maintain safety and 
appropriate social distancing. 

● Alert students that a ‘real’ alarm situation means that social 
distance rules may need to be broken. 

● In situations of imminent threat to health and safety, ensure 
students are stable and breathing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

When evacuating to outside, students will line up in assigned locations, 
forming socially distanced lines. 

✓ Drills can and should be carried out as close as possible to the 
procedures that would be used in an actual emergency. For example, 
a fire drill must be carried out with the same alerts and same routes 
as normal.  If appropriate and practicable, COVID‐19 physical 
distancing measures can be implemented, but only if they do not 
compromise the drill.  

✓ When or if physical distancing must be compromised, drills must be 
completed in less than 15 minutes.  

✓ Drills shall not be practiced unless they can be practiced correctly. 

✓ Train staff on safety drills prior to students arriving on the first day on 
campus in hybrid or face‐to‐face engagement.  

✓  If on a hybrid schedule, conduct multiple drills each month to ensure 
that all cohorts of students have opportunities to participate in drills 
(i.e., schedule on different cohort days throughout the year). 

Packet page 181 of 228



 

Page 22 of 25 

 

 

✓ Students must wash hands with soap and water for 20 seconds or use 
an alcohol‐based hand sanitizer with 60‐95% alcohol after a drill is 
complete. 

  

 

 

 
2n. SUPPORTING STUDENTS WHO ARE DYSREGULATED, ESCALATED, AND/OR EXHIBITING SELF‐REGULATORY CHALLENGES 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Utilize the components of Collaborative Problem Solving or a similar 
framework to continually provide instruction and skill‐
building/training related to the student’s demonstrated lagging skills. 

 
Philomath Middle School follows the tenets of PBIS supporting students. 
 
Staff working with students with behavior plans will receive instruction 
on strategies.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Call administrator or counselor for support. 

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

✓ Take proactive/preventative steps to reduce antecedent events and 
triggers within the school environment. 

✓ Be proactive in planning for known behavioral escalations (e.g., self‐
harm, spitting, scratching, biting, eloping, failure to maintain physical 
distance). Adjust antecedents where possible to minimize student 
and staff dysregulation. Recognize that there could be new and 
different antecedents and setting events with the additional 
requirements and expectations for the 2020‐21 school year. 

✓ Establish a proactive plan for daily routines designed to build self‐
regulation skills; self‐regulation skill‐building sessions can be short (5‐
10 minutes), and should take place at times when the student is 
regulated and/or is not demonstrating challenging behaviors. 

✓ Ensure all staff are trained to support de‐escalation, provide lagging 
skill instruction, and implement alternatives to restraint and 
seclusion. 

✓ Ensure that staff are trained in effective, evidence‐based methods for 
developing and maintaining their own level of self‐regulation and 
resilience to enable them to remain calm and able to support 
struggling students as well as colleagues. 

✓ Plan for the impact of behavior mitigation strategies on public health 
and safety requirements: 
● Student elopes from area 

o If staff need to intervene for student safety, staff should: 
● Use empathetic and calming verbal interactions (i.e. 

“This seems hard right now. Help me understand… 
How can I help?”) to attempt to re‐regulate the 
student without physical intervention. 

● Use the least restrictive interventions possible to 
maintain physical safety for the student and staff. 

● Wash hands after a close interaction. 
● Note the interaction on the appropriate contact log.  

o *If unexpected interaction with other stable cohorts 
occurs, those contacts must be noted in the appropriate 
contact logs. 

● Student engages in behavior that requires them to be isolated 
from peers and results in a room clear. 
o If students leave the classroom: 

● Preplan for a clean and safe alternative space that 
maintains physical safety for the student and staff 

● Ensure physical distancing and separation occur, to the 
maximum extent possible. 

● Use the least restrictive interventions possible to 
maintain physical safety for the student and staff. 

● Wash hands after a close interaction. 
● Note the interaction on the appropriate contact log. 

o *If unexpected interaction with other stable cohorts 
occurs, those contacts must be noted in the appropriate 
contact logs. 

Packet page 182 of 228



 

Page 23 of 25 

 

● Student engages in physically aggressive behaviors that preclude 
the possibility of maintaining physical distance and/or require 
physical de‐escalation or intervention techniques other than 
restraint or seclusion (e.g., hitting, biting, spitting, kicking, self‐
injurious behavior). 
o If staff need to intervene for student safety, staff should: 

● Maintain student dignity throughout and following the 
incident. 

● Use empathetic and calming verbal interactions (i.e. 
“This seems hard right now. Help me understand… 
How can I help?”) to attempt to re‐regulate the 
student without physical intervention. 

● Use the least restrictive interventions possible to 
maintain physical safety for the student and staff 

● Wash hands after a close interaction. 
● Note the interaction on the appropriate contact log. 

*If unexpected interaction with other stable cohorts occurs, those 
contacts must be noted in the appropriate contact logs. 

 

Practice, much like a drill, how to exit class quickly if needed (room clear) 
and to remain socially distanced. 

PMS: Clear to Library. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

✓ Ensure that spaces that are unexpectedly used to deescalate 
behaviors are appropriately cleaned and sanitized after use before 
the introduction of other stable cohorts to that space. 

 
2o. PROTECTIVE PHYSICAL INTERVENTION 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Reusable Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) must be cleaned and 
disinfected following the manufacturer’s recommendation, after 
every episode of physical intervention (see section 2j. Cleaning, 
Disinfection, and Ventilation in the Ready Schools, Safe Learners 
guidance). Single‐use disposable PPE must not be re‐used. 

PMS Custodial Staff will be responsible for cleaning reusable PPE  

 
 

 

  3. Response to Outbreak 

   
3a. PREVENTION AND PLANNING 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Review the “Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools” toolkit.   ● Coordinate communication and action with the Benton County 
Health Department. 

● PSD District Nurse, is the contact person identified for any school 
concerns. 

● If the region impacted is in Benton County Health Authority, will 
provide school centered communication and will potentially host 
conference calls. 

● Establish PSD Response Team for making any Immediate, necessary 
adjustments should infection rates increase.  Actions may include: 

o Temporarily dismiss students attending school childcare 
and K‐12 schools; 

o Modify, postpone, or cancel large school events; 
o Establish timely communication with staff and families. 

● When novel viruses are identified in the school setting, and the 
incidence is low, the local health department will provide a direct 
report to the district nurse on the diagnosed case. 

● If school closure is advised by the local public health department, 
consultation should occur between legal, union and district 
administration to ensure processes are consistent with legal 
preparedness processes. 

✓ Coordinate with Local Public Health Authority (LPHA) to establish 
communication channels related to current transmission level. 

 
 

Packet page 183 of 228



 

Page 24 of 25 

 

3b. RESPONSE 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Review and utilize the “Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools” 
toolkit.  

See Communicable Disease Management Plan. 

● Identify baseline absentee rates to determine if the rates have 
increased by 15%.  

● Temporarily dismiss students attending childcare facilities and k12 
schools.  

● Modify, postpone, or cancel large school events as coordinated with 
BC Public Health. 

● Work with BC Public Health to establish timely communication with 
staff and families.  

● When novel viruses are identified in the school setting, and the 
incidence is low, the LPHA will provide a direct report to the district 
nurse on the diagnosed case. 

✓ Ensure continuous services and implement Comprehensive Distance 
Learning. 

✓ Continue to provide meals for students. 

 
3c. RECOVERY AND REENTRY 

OHA/ODE Requirements  Hybrid/Onsite Plan 

✓ Review and utilize the “Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools” 
toolkit.  

Comprehensive Distance Learning (CDL) will remain in place during any 
time of school closure due to COVID‐19, unless staffing levels are 
insufficient to support this model. 

Ongoing consultation with the Benton County Health Department 
regarding re‐opening considerations. 

If school closure is advised by Benton County Public Health, consultation 
will take place with legal counsel, union leadership, and PSD 
administration to ensure processes are consistent with legal 
preparedness protocols. 

Teachers will plan for Comprehensive Distance Learning (CDL) to support 
all learners in times of need for this instructional model. 

Follow guidance for cleaning to allow for re‐opening. 

✓ Clean, sanitize, and disinfect surfaces (e.g. door handles, sink 
handles, drinking fountains, transport vehicles) and follow CDC 
guidance for classrooms, cafeteria settings, restrooms, and 
playgrounds. 

✓ When bringing students back into On‐Site or Hybrid instruction, 
consider smaller groups, cohorts, and rotating schedules to allow for 
a safe return to schools.   

 
 

 

ASSURANCES 
This section must be completed by any public school that is providing instruction through On‐Site or Hybrid Instructional Models.  

Schools providing Comprehensive Distance Learning Instructional Models do not need to complete this section unless the school is implementing 
the Limited In‐Person Instruction provision under the Comprehensive Distance Learning guidance. 

This section does not apply to private schools. 
 

☐  We affirm that, in addition to meeting the requirements as outlined above, our school plan has met the collective 
requirements from ODE/OHA guidance related to the 2020‐21 school year, including but not limited to 
requirements from: 
● Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance, 
● The Comprehensive Distance Learning guidance, 
● The Ensuring Equity and Access: Aligning Federal and State Requirements guidance, and 
● Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools 

Packet page 184 of 228



 

Page 25 of 25 

 

☐  We affirm that we cannot meet all of the collective requirements from ODE/OHA guidance related to the 2020‐21 
school year from: 
● Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 of the Ready Schools, Safe Learners guidance, 
● The Comprehensive Distance Learning guidance, 
● The Ensuring Equity and Access: Aligning Federal and State Requirements guidance, and 
● Planning for COVID‐19 Scenarios in Schools 

We will continue to work towards meeting them and have noted and addressed which requirement(s) we are 
unable to meet in the table titled “Assurance Compliance and Timeline” below. 

 
 

 
  4. Equity 

 

 
  5. Instruction 

 

 
  6. Family, Community, Engagement 

 

 
  7. Mental, Social, and Emotional Health 

 

 
  8. Staffing and Personnel 

Assurance Compliance and Timeline 
If a district/school cannot meet the requirements from the sections above, provide a plan and timeline to meet the requirement. 

List Requirement(s) Not Met  Provide a Plan and Timeline to Meet Requirements 
Include how/why the school is currently unable to meet them 

   

 

Packet page 185 of 228



Page 1 of 5 

Exposure Risk Assessment Form 
Assessment Completion Details 

Philomath High School Business/Employer Name   

Completed by (name): Joey DiGiovannangelo   Date: 1/29/2021   

Job title: Facilities Director   

Contact information: joey.digiovannangelo@philomath.k12.or.us   

Employee job classifications evaluated in this assessment: 

Administrative, licensed, classified, unrepresented/ supervisory 

 
Questions and Answers 

Can employees telework or otherwise work remotely? How are employees encouraged 
or empowered to use those distance work options to reduce COVID-19 transmission at 
the workplace? 

Yes, employees have been provided the opportunity to work remotely since March 2020. Employees 

have been provided, laptops or other electronic devices to complete their work. Google phone 

numbers have been issued to staff that may be using their own personal phone for contacting students 

or families.   

 

 

What are the anticipated working distances between employees? How might those 
physical working distances change during non-routine work activities? 

Working distance between employees in a school setting is typically greater than six feet at most times. 

Instances where staff are required to work closely to each other (less than six feet apart) will be limited 

in duration, typically less than five minutes.  If non‐routine work activities impact the social distancing, 

we make sure staff are utilizing all available PPE (screening, face mask, gloves, hand washing/sanitizing) 

and limit the time in the non‐routine work activities. 

 

Packet page 186 of 228



Exposure Risk Assessment Form 

Page 2 of 5 

What is the anticipated working distance between employees and other individuals? 
How might those working distances change during non-routine work activities? 

Working distance in the school will be greater than six feet classrooms have been modified to allow 

proper distance between staff and students. 

 

At times, staff may interact closer than six feet with others. Things like speech, reading, sped etc. we 

will use plexi glass dividers and masks, some instances face shields to create a safe environment for 

staff and students.   

Employees or students may cross through another person’s social space while moving about the 

classroom, but those times will be brief.  Students and staff will be utilizing all available PPE (screening, 

face mask, gloves, hand washing/sanitizing) when together. 

 

How have the workplace or employee job duties, or both, been modified to provide at 
least 6-feet of physical distancing between all individuals? 

Desks have been separated/distanced  

plexi glass dividers provided as needed 

Reduced number of students attending on any given day 

Lunch tables have been spread apart, places will be clearly marked for students to maintain six feet of 

separation.  

 

 

How are employees and other individuals at the workplace notified where and when 
masks, face coverings, or face shields are required? How is this policy enforced and 
clearly communicated to employees and other individuals? 

Masks are required at all school district buildings, at all times.  The school’s Blueprint and the Parent‐

Student COVID‐19 Handbook which is provided to staff contain information on Face Mask 

requirements.  We have a protocol, as required in the RSSL, to develop a plan for students and staff 

who cannot wear a face mask due to a disability.  A team will meet to determine an acceptable plan for 

each individual.  Students who don’t wear a face mask from a values based position will be provided an 

alternative to in‐person learning, either in CDL or the online Philomath Academy.  Staff who don’t 

comply with the face mask requirements from a values based position will not be allowed to work in 

the building and will need to address this issue via the CBA or other agreements with the District. 

 

Signs are clearly posted at entry doors and various areas of the school. 

 

Packet page 187 of 228



Exposure Risk Assessment Form 

Page 3 of 5 

How have employees been informed about the workplace policy and procedures related 
to reporting COVID-19 signs and symptoms? How might employees who are identified 
for quarantining or isolation as a result of medical removal under this rule be provided 
with an opportunity to work at home, if such work is available and they are well enough 
to do so? 

Employees have all been provided the district communicable disease management plan which outlines 

signs and symptoms of COVID 19 and protocols for reporting.  In addition, the staff are provided with 

COVID‐19 Protocols and the School’s Blueprint for Reentry 

 

Employee who are required to quarantine due to positive test results or exposure will be provided an 

opportunity and resources to work remotely, if they are well enough to perform their duties. 

 

How have engineering controls such as ventilation (whether portable air filtration units 
equipped with HEPA filters, airborne infection isolation rooms, local exhaust ventilation, 
or general building HVAC systems) and physical barriers been used to minimize 
employee exposure to COVID-19? 

Philomath High School‐ All HVAC units pull in outside air based on various factors, occupancy, co2 

levels, temperature, minimum requirement of outside air etc. The units also recirculate indoor air using 

an economizer to increase energy efficiency. All rooms/ spaces in the main building have occupancy 

sensors, when rooms are unoccupied the temperature setting relax five degrees in each direction from 

the desired set point, this is also for energy efficiency. 

*Forestry and Metal Shop at PHS, currently only use recirculated air, only minimal outside air*  

Provide air purifiers and/or fans and open windows for cross ventilation in room/ building without Air 

handlers that provide outside air. (Forestry, Man Tech shop)**Will work with impacted staff to create 

solutions to circulate air** 

Provide increased outside air distribution, close all economizers used to recirculate indoor air, use only 

100% outside air to the maximum extent possible while still allowing temperature comfort. 

Open windows where possible, and where feasible to allow comfort inside  

Increase HVAC run time, at least two hours before the start of school and four hours after school is out. 

The schedule is now set to start at 4:00am and shutdown at 8:00pm. Some areas may have extended 

schedules if regular gym use returns. 

 

Replace HVAC filters with MERV 8 filters in all occupied buildings every three months, at a minimum. 

 

 

 

Packet page 188 of 228



Exposure Risk Assessment Form 

Page 4 of 5 

How have administrative controls (such as foot-traffic control) been used to minimize 
employee exposure to COVID-19? 

Floors clearly marked with tape, paint, signs etc. as appropriate to create distance and traffic flow. 

 

  

 

What is the procedure or policy for employees to report workplace hazards related to 
COVID-19? How are these hazard reporting procedures or policies communicated to 
employees? 

Report any workplace hazards to building Administrator, who will take steps to notify District nurse. 

Staff who believe the Philomath School District or Philomath Elementary School are not in compliance 

with Ready Schools Safe Learners guidelines or identify a potential hazard they may: 

1. Contact the District Office or the school office about the concern. 

2. File a complaint with OSHA at this link:  OSHA complaint 

3. File a named or confidential complaint with OSHA by calling 1 833 604‐0884 

All complaints will be confidential and any issues will be reviewed on a daily and weekly basis by the 

building point person and other applicable staff. 

 

 

How are sanitation measures related to COVID-19 implemented in the workplace? How 
have these sanitation practices been explained to employees and other individuals at 
the workplace? 

School buildings will be disinfected with electrostatic sprayers on all surfaces, daily. 

Sanitizing touch surfaces between cohorts and transition times 

Restrooms cleaned and sanitized twice daily 

Atmosphere disinfectant spray bottle have been provided in classrooms for extra sanitizing. 

Custodial staff has been trained on proper operation of the sanitizing sprayers, and have instructed 

other staff about classroom spray bottles.  Office and custodial staff will monitor the school’s PPE stock 

and ensure the necessary materials are available to staff.  This is reviewed with staff during the staff 

Protocols training.   

 

Packet page 189 of 228



Exposure Risk Assessment Form 

Page 5 of 5 

How have the industry-specific or activity-specific COVID-19 requirements in Appendix 
A of this rule and applicable guidance from the Oregon Health Authority been 
implemented for workers? How are periodic updates to such guidance documents 
incorporated into the workplace on an on-going basis? 

The administration of the building and District Facilities Director have reviewed all state guidance 

provided by the Oregon Department of Education and the Oregon Health Authority to ensure all 

applicable expectations are in place.  The administration regularly monitors for any updated guidance 

and will set up time to inform and train staff as needed. 

 

 

In settings where the workers of multiple employers work in the same space or share 
equipment or common areas, how are the physical distancing; mask, face covering, or 
face shield requirements; and sanitation measures required under this rule 
communicated to and coordinated between all employers and their affected employees?  

Protocols are provided for workers who work in more than one building and/or share work space with 

others. These workers are trained on all PPE requirements and procedures.  Hand sanitizer stations are 

available in the workrooms, Clorox wipes near copy machine, gloves, masks, and face shields provided. 

 

How can the employer implement appropriate controls that provide layered protection 
from COVID-19 hazards and that minimize, to the degree possible, reliance on individual 
employee training and behavior for their efficacy?  

The Philomath School District will establish and communicate clear and compliant protocols and 

practices which provide layered protection to employees who enter this school or any other facility in 

the District.  These layers include: 

Entry screening for all who enter the school. Restrict who has access to the building. 

Enforce face coverings 

Provide all required PPE 

Provide hand sanitizing stations/ hand washing stations 

Establish social distancing in all settings 

Provide signage throughout the buildings 

 

 

Packet page 190 of 228



Page 1 of 5 

Exposure Risk Assessment Form 
Assessment Completion Details 

Philomath Middle School Business/Employer Name   

Completed by (name): Joey DiGiovannangelo   Date: 1/29/2021   

Job title: Facilities Director   

Contact information: joey.digiovannangelo@philomath.k12.or.us   

Employee job classifications evaluated in this assessment: 

Administrative, licensed, classified, unrepresented/ supervisory 

 
Questions and Answers 

Can employees telework or otherwise work remotely? How are employees encouraged 
or empowered to use those distance work options to reduce COVID-19 transmission at 
the workplace? 

Employees have been provided the opportunity to work remotely since March 2020. Employees have 

been provided laptops or other electronic devices to complete their work. Google phone numbers have 

been issued to staff for contacting students and families.   

 

 

What are the anticipated working distances between employees? How might those 
physical working distances change during non-routine work activities? 

Working distance between employees in a school setting is typically greater than six feet. Instances 

where staff are required to work closely to each other (less than six feet apart) will be limited. When 

distanced work is not possible other safety and mitigating factors will be employed such as; face shield, 

tri‐fold barriers, safety eye glasses, hand washing, sanitizing, and limited timing.  

 

Packet page 191 of 228



Exposure Risk Assessment Form 

Page 2 of 5 

What is the anticipated working distance between employees and other individuals? 
How might those working distances change during non-routine work activities? 

Working distance in the school will be greater than six feet.  Classrooms have been modified to allow 

proper distance between staff and students. 

 

At times, staff may interact closer than six feet with others (speech language pathologist, reading 

specialist, medical care, Special Education small groups).  Plexiglass dividers masks, and in some 

instances face shields will be used to create a safe environment for staff and students.   

 

Employees or students may cross through another person’s social space while moving about the 

classroom. These times will be brief periods of dynamic movement.  Students and staff will be utilizing 

all available PPE (screening, face mask, gloves, hand washing/sanitizing) when together. 

 

How have the workplace or employee job duties, or both, been modified to provide at 
least 6-feet of physical distancing between all individuals? 

Desks have been separated/distanced  

Plexiglass dividers provided as needed 

Reduced number of students in a classroom  

Seating in the lunch room will be clearly marked for students to maintain six feet of separation.  

Desks dividers will also be  provided when necessary. 

 

How are employees and other individuals at the workplace notified where and when 
masks, face coverings, or face shields are required? How is this policy enforced and 
clearly communicated to employees and other individuals? 

Masks are required at all school district buildings.  The school district’s Communicable Disease 

Management Plan, the school’s blueprint for re‐entry and the Parent‐Student COVID‐19 Handbook, 

explain the details of  face mask requirements. As required in the RSSL, students and staff who cannot 

wear a face mask due to a disability will have a specific plan and mitigating factors employed for their 

and others safety.  A team will meet to determine an acceptable plan for each individual.  Students 

who chose to not wear a face mask from a values based position will be provided an alternative to in‐

person learning, either Comprehensive Distance Learning or the online Philomath Academy.  Staff who 

don’t comply with the face mask requirements from a values based position will not be allowed to 

work in the school building and will need to address this issue via the collective bargaining agreement  

or other agreements with the District. 

 

Signs are clearly posted at entry doors and various areas of the school. 

 

Packet page 192 of 228



Exposure Risk Assessment Form 

Page 3 of 5 

How have employees been informed about the workplace policy and procedures related 
to reporting COVID-19 signs and symptoms? How might employees who are identified 
for quarantining or isolation as a result of medical removal under this rule be provided 
with an opportunity to work at home, if such work is available and they are well enough 
to do so? 

Employees have all been provided and trained on the school district’s communicable disease 

management plan and Oregon Department of Education blueprint for re‐entry which outlines signs and 

symptoms of COVID 19 and protocols for reporting.   

 

If applicable and appropriate employees who are required to quarantine due to positive test results or 

exposure to COVID 19 will be provided an opportunity and resources to work remotely, if they are well 

enough to perform their duties. 

 

How have engineering controls such as ventilation (whether portable air filtration units 
equipped with HEPA filters, airborne infection isolation rooms, local exhaust ventilation, 
or general building HVAC systems) and physical barriers been used to minimize 
employee exposure to COVID-19? 

All HVAC units pull in outside air based on various factors, occupancy, co2 levels, temperature, 

minimum requirement of outside air etc. The units are also capable of recirculating  indoor air using an 

economizer to increase energy efficiency. 

At this time they are set to provide increased outside air distribution. Economizers are closed to 

recirculate indoor air.  Currently the system is pulling 100% outside air to the maximum extent possible 

while still allowing temperature comfort. 

 

Open windows where possible, and where feasible to allow comfort inside  

 

Increase HVAC run time, at least two hours before the start of school and four hours after school is out. 

The schedule is now set to start at 4:00am and shutdown at 8:00pm. Some areas may have extended 

schedules if regular gym use returns. 

 

Replace HVAC filters with MERV 8 filters in all occupied buildings every three months, at a minimum. 

 

 

 

Packet page 193 of 228



Exposure Risk Assessment Form 

Page 4 of 5 

How have administrative controls (such as foot-traffic control) been used to minimize 
employee exposure to COVID-19? 

Floors have been clearly marked with tape. Signs are posted on doors and walls.  Staintions are used  in 

hallways, as appropriate to create distance and traffic flow. 

 

 

What is the procedure or policy for employees to report workplace hazards related to 
COVID-19? How are these hazard reporting procedures or policies communicated to 
employees? 

Report any workplace hazards to the building Administrators, who will take steps to notify the school 

district nurse. 

Staff who believe the Philomath School District or Philomath Middle School are not in compliance with 

Ready Schools Safe Learners guidelines or identify a potential hazard they may: 

1. Contact the District Office or the school administration about the concern. 

2. File a complaint with OSHA at this link:  OSHA complaint 

3. File a named or confidential complaint with OSHA by calling 1 833 604‐0884 

All complaints will be confidential and any issues will be reviewed on a daily and weekly basis by the 

building point person and other applicable staff. 

 

 

How are sanitation measures related to COVID-19 implemented in the workplace? How 
have these sanitation practices been explained to employees and other individuals at 
the workplace? 

School buildings will be disinfected with electrostatic sprayers on all surfaces, daily. 

Between student cohorts touch surfaces will be disinfected. 

Restrooms will be cleaned and sanitized twice daily. 

Atmosphere disinfectant spray bottles have been provided in classrooms for extra sanitizing. 

Custodial staff has been trained on proper operation of the sanitizing sprayers, and have instructed 

other staff about classroom spray bottles.  Office and custodial staff will monitor the school’s PPE stock 

and ensure the necessary materials are available to staff. Procedures are reviewed and explained 

during the staff protocols training.   

 

Packet page 194 of 228



Exposure Risk Assessment Form 

Page 5 of 5 

How have the industry-specific or activity-specific COVID-19 requirements in Appendix 
A of this rule and applicable guidance from the Oregon Health Authority been 
implemented for workers? How are periodic updates to such guidance documents 
incorporated into the workplace on an on-going basis? 

The school administrators and the District Facilities Director have reviewed all state guidance provided 

by the Oregon Department of Education and the Oregon Health Authority to ensure all applicable 

expectations are in place.  The school administration regularly monitors the ODE guidance for any 

updates and will establish time to  inform and train staff as needed. 

 

 

In settings where the workers of multiple employers work in the same space or share 
equipment or common areas, how are the physical distancing; mask, face covering, or 
face shield requirements; and sanitation measures required under this rule 
communicated to and coordinated between all employers and their affected employees?  

Protocols are provided for workers who work in more than one building and/or share work space with 

others. These workers are trained on all PPE requirements and procedures.  Hand sanitizer stations are 

available in the workrooms, Clorox wipes are near the copy machine, gloves, masks, and face shields 

are provided. 

 

How can the employer implement appropriate controls that provide layered protection 
from COVID-19 hazards and that minimize, to the degree possible, reliance on individual 
employee training and behavior for their efficacy?  

The Philomath School District will establish and communicate clear and compliant protocols and train 

practices which provide layered protection to employees who enter this school or any other facility in 

the District.  These layers include: 

Entry screening for all who enter the school. Restrict who has access to the building, 

Enforce the use of face masks, 

Provide all required PPE, 

Provide hand sanitizing stations/ hand washing stations, 

Establish social distancing in all settings, and 

Provide signage throughout the buildings. 

 

 

Packet page 195 of 228



 

 

Communicable Disease 

Management Plan 
 

Philomath School District 17J 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Packet page 196 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

1 

 
The  purpose  of  this  plan  is  to  document  the  district’s  efforts  to  protect  students,  staff,  and 

community members from communicable disease in the school setting. It’s intended to be utilized 

in conjunction with the district’s Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan.  

The success of this plan is contingent upon a Whole Child, Whole School, and Whole Community. 

The  district  is  grateful  for  guidance  and  support  from  the  Centers  for  Disease  Control  and 

Prevention  (CDC),  Department  of  Education  (DOE),  Oregon  Health  Authority  (OHA),  Oregon 

Occupational  Health  and  Safety  Administration  (OSHA),  Benton  County  Health  Department, 

Community health care providers, and district employed school nurses in its implementation. 

Communicable diseases  can be  transmitted  from person  to person by  various  routes. A basic 

understanding of how these diseases are transmitted and common prevention measures can help 

decrease the spread of  infections. Early  identification of signs and symptoms of communicable 

disease is of paramount importance to maintain the health of the school population and decrease 

school absenteeism.  

In the school environment, communicable diseases can easily be transmitted from one individual 

to  another.  This  can  occur  between  students,  school  staff,  and  visitors.  Effective  prevention 

measures include education, avoidance of risk factors, sanitation, vaccination, early recognition 

of symptoms, health assessment, prompt diagnosis and appropriate isolation or treatment.  

The purpose of this communicable disease control plan  is to eliminate or minimize exposure to 

communicable diseases  in the school setting. Effective prevention measures  include education, 

avoidance  of  risk  factors,  sanitation,  vaccination,  early  recognition  of  symptoms,  health 

assessment, prompt diagnosis and appropriate isolation or treatment.  

Oregon public health law mandates that persons who work in or attend school who are diagnosed 

with certain diseases or conditions be excluded from school until no longer contagious. However, 

diagnosis often presumes a physician  visit and  specific  testing, and  schools must often make 

decisions regarding exclusion based on non‐diagnostic but readily identifiable signs or symptoms, 

until documented test results can be obtained and local health department guidelines are given. 

 

Regulations: 
Oregon laws outline responsibilities for communicable disease control in a school setting. 

● ORS 333‐019‐0010  (excerpted) 
o 2) To protect the public health, an individual who attends or works at a school or child care 

facility, or who works at a health care facility or food service facility may not attend or work 

at  a  school  or  facility while  in  a  communicable  stage  of  a  restrictable  disease,  unless 

otherwise authorized to do so under these rules.  
o 3) A susceptible child or employee in a school or children's facility who has been exposed to 

a restrictable disease that is also a reportable disease for which an immunization is required 

under OAR 333‐050‐0050 must be excluded by the school administrator, unless the local 

Packet page 197 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

2 

health officer determines, in accordance with section (4) of this rule, that exclusion is not 

necessary to protect the public's health. 
 

● OAR 581‐022‐2220  (excerpted) 
o 1) The school district shall maintain a prevention‐oriented health services program for 

all students which provides: (b) Communicable disease control, as provided in Oregon 

Revised Statutes; and  

o (g) Compliance with Oregon‐OSHA Bloodborne Pathogens standard (Div. 2/Z 1910.1030) 

for all persons who are assigned to job tasks that may put them at risk for exposure to blood 

or other potentially infectious materials (OPIM) (ORS 191.103)  
o 2) School districts shall adopt policies and procedures which consider admission, placement 

and  supervision  of  students with  communicable  diseases,  including  but  not  limited  to 

Hepatitis B (HBV), Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV), and Acquired Immune Deficiency 

Syndrome (AIDS).  
 

 

 

School District policy outlines action plan for communicable disease control in a school setting. 

● GBEB    Communicable Diseases – Staff 

● GBEB‐AR  Communicable Diseases – Staff 

● JHCC    Communicable Diseases – Students 

● JHCC‐AR  Communicable Diseases – Students 

 

 

Introduction 
Seasonal Respiratory Illness and Seasonal Influenza 
 

Seasonal Respiratory Illness: 

There are several viruses that routinely circulate in the community to cause upper viral respiratory 

illnesses. These viruses include rhinoviruses, coronaviruses, adenoviruses, enteroviruses, respiratory 

syncytial virus, human metapneumovirus, and parainfluenza. The “common cold” is caused by 

rhinoviruses, adenoviruses, and coronaviruses. The symptoms of these seasonal illnesses may vary in 

severity but include cough, low‐grade fever, sore throat (SDDH, 2019; Weatherspoon, 2019). 

 

Seasonal Influenza: 

Influenza (flu) is a contagious respiratory illness caused by influenza viruses. There are two main types of 

influenza (flu) virus: Types A and B. The influenza A and B viruses that routinely spread in people (human 

influenza viruses) are responsible for seasonal flu epidemics each year. Influenza can cause mild to 

severe illness. Serious outcomes of flu infection can result in hospitalization or death. Some people, such 

as older people, very young children, and people with underlying health conditions or weak immune 

systems, are at high risk of severe flu complications. Routine symptoms associated with flu include fever, 

cough, sore throat, runny nose, muscle aches, headaches, fatigue, and sometimes vomiting (CDC, 2020).  

 

Novel, Variant and Pandemic Viruses: 

Packet page 198 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

3 

Novel viruses refer to those not previously identified. A novel virus may be a new strain or a strain that 

has not previously infected human hosts. When a virus that has historically infected animals begins to 

infect humans, this is referred to as a variant virus. Pandemic refers to the global circulation of a novel 

or variant strain of respiratory viruses. The most common viruses associated with novel and pandemic 

outbreaks are influenza A and human coronavirus. A flu pandemic occurs when a new virus that is 

different from seasonal viruses emerges and spreads quickly between people, causing illness worldwide. 

Most people will lack immunity to these viruses. Pandemic flu can be more severe, causing more deaths 

than seasonal flu. Because it is a new virus, a vaccine may not be available right away. A pandemic 

could, therefore, overwhelm normal operations in educational settings (CDC, 2016). 
 

Seasonal Flu vs. Pandemic Flu 
Influenza is one of the world’s greatest infectious disease challenges. 
But did you know that seasonal flu and pandemic flu are not the same? 

What is Seasonal Flu? 
Influenza (flu) is a contagious respiratory illness 
caused by flu A and B viruses that infect the human 
respiratory tract.  Annual flu epidemics occur among 
people worldwide. 

What is Pandemic Flu? 
A flu pandemic is a global outbreak of a new flu A virus 
in people is very different from current and recently 
circulating seasonal flu A viruses. 

How often do seasonal flu epidemics occur? 
Epidemics of seasonal flu happen every year.  Fall and 
winter is the time for flu in the United States. 

How often do flu pandemics occur? 
Flu pandemics happen rarely.  Four flu pandemics 
have happened in the past 100 years. 

How do seasonal flu viruses spread? 
Flu viruses are thought to spread mainly from person 
to person through droplets made when someone with 
flu coughs, sneezes, or talks near a person (within 6 
feet). 

How do pandemic flu viruses spread? 
Pandemic flu viruses spread in the same way as 
seasonal flu, but a pandemic virus will likely infect 
more people because few people have immunity to 
the pandemic flu virus. 

Is there a vaccine for seasonal flu? 
Seasonal flu vaccines are made each year to vaccinate 
people against seasonal flu.  Everyone six months and 
older should get a flu vaccine every year.  For most 
people, only one dose of vaccine is needed. 

Is there a vaccine for pandemic flu? 
Although the U.S. government maintains a limited 
stockpile of some pre‐pandemic flu vaccines, vaccines 
may not be widely available in the early stages of a 
pandemic.  Two doses of a pandemic flu vaccine will 
likely be needed. 

Are there medications to treat seasonal flu? 
Prescription medications called antiviral drugs can 
treat seasonal flu.  During a severe flu season, there 
can be spot shortages of these drugs. 

Are there medications to treat pandemic 
flu? 
Flu antiviral medications may be used to treat 
pandemic flu if the virus is susceptible to these drugs.  
While a limited amount of flu antiviral drugs are 
stockpiled for use during a pandemic, supplies might 
not be enough to meet demand during a pandemic. 

Who is at risk for complications from 
seasonal flu? 
Young children, people 65 years and older, pregnant 
women, and people with certain long‐term medical 
conditions are more likely to have serious flu 
complications. 

Who is at risk for complications from 
pandemic flu? 
Because this is a new virus not previously circulating in 
humans, it’s not possible to predict who would be 
most at risk of severe complications in a future 
pandemic.  In some past pandemics, healthy young 
adults were at high risk for developing severe flu 
complications. 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. May 7, 2019. 

Purpose: 

Packet page 199 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

4 

The purpose of this document is to provide a guidance process to non‐pharmaceutical 

interventions (NPIs) and their use during a novel viral respiratory pandemic. NPIs are actions, 

apart from getting vaccinated and taking antiviral medications, if applicable, that people and 

communities can take to help slow the spread of respiratory illnesses such as pandemic flu or 

novel coronaviruses. NPI’s, specifically in regards to pandemic planning, are control measures 

that are incrementally implemented based on the level of threat to a community. This 

document should be used as a contingency plan that is modified with a response planning team 

based on the current level of pandemic threat. 
 

Control Measures: 
While prophylactic vaccine and antiviral medication are appropriate interventions in some viral 

respiratory conditions, specifically seasonal influenza. These are not always accessible for novel 

strains. Non‐pharmaceutical interventions (NPI’s) are essential actions that can aid in the 

reduction of disease transmission. It is important to note that disease that is widely spread in 

the community has many options for transmission beyond the school setting, and the school 

district can only account for NPI’s in the school setting and at school‐sponsored events (CDC, 

2017). 
 

Everyday Measures: 
Control measures to limit the spread of communicable diseases should be an active part of the 

school comprehensive and preventative health services plan. Routine control measures include: 

● Hand hygiene (washing your hands for 20 seconds with soap and water with appropriate 

friction). 

● Respiratory etiquette (cover your coughs and sneezes and throw the tissue in the 

garbage each use). 

● Routine sanitizing of shared areas and flat surfaces. 

● Stay home when you are sick and until 24 four hours fever free, without using fever‐

reducing medication. 

Packet page 200 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

5 

Packet page 201 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

6 

 
Symptoms chart image from https://www.beaumont.org/health‐wellness/blogs/is‐it‐allergies‐or‐covid‐19 

Hand washing image from https://info.debgroup.com/blog/what‐is‐the‐correct‐hand‐washing‐technique 
 

Control Measures for Novel or Variant Viruses: 
Control measures associated with novel or variant viruses are based on the severity of the 

specific virus. Some novel viruses are so mild they may go undetected, while others may 

present with more transmissibility or severity. Since new viruses have no historical context, 

public health guidance evolves as increased numbers of cases are identified, and patterns and 

risks are identified, and thus the guidance is unique to each specific event, respectively. 
 

That being said, historical pandemic responses have provided a baseline set of evidence‐based 

guidelines to create a framework for a response plan for such events in the school setting.  

Control measures are incremental based on the current situation. The current situation will be 

defined by the public health entities based on the severity, the incidence and the proximity to 

the school setting lending to level based responses. 
 

When cases of novel viruses are identified globally: 

When the novel disease is identified, it is the due diligence of school health services personnel 

and school administration to pay close attention to trends. When a novel strain is identified, 

routine control and exclusion measures should continue. Other situations that may arise, 

including foreign travel by students or staff, which may result in extended absenteeism. In cases 

where student or staff travel is restricted secondary to pandemic events, it is the staff and 

Packet page 202 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

7 

parent’s responsibility to communicate this restriction to the school district. Routine infection 

control and communication should continue. 
 

Routine Practices: 
Personal NPI’s  Community NPI’s  Environmental NPI’s  Communication 

● Routine hand 
hygiene 

● Respiratory etiquette 
● Stay home when ill 

● Routine illness 
exclusion 
(Appendix A) 

● Routine sanitizing  ● Routine seasonal 
illness prevention 
and exclusion 
communication. 

NPI = Non‐Pharmaceutical Intervention 

 

When Cases of Novel Viruses are Identified Regionally or Nationally: 

When the novel disease is identified in the U.S., it is important to identify the geographical 

location and the specific public health messaging and direction. The Centers for Disease Control 

and Prevention (CDC) will have current guidance. When novel viruses emerge in the state, the 

Oregon Health Authority (OHA) will provide direct guidance. OHA will have an alert for 

pandemic‐specific content that can be subscribed to for updates. Both District nurses are 

subscribed to this alert to keep the team updated. If the region impacted is in Benton County, 

the Local Health Department (LHD) will provide school‐centered communication, in 

collaboration with PSD Nurse, and will potentially host conference calls. 
 

Level One Actions: Prevention Focused – Virus Detected in Region 

Personal NPI’s  Community NPI’s  Environmental NPI’s  Communication 
● Increase routine 

hand hygiene. 
● Use alcohol‐based 

hand sanitizer when 
hand washing is not 
an option. 

● Cover coughs/ 
sneezes, throw away 
tissues at each use, 
wash hands. 

● Stay home when ill 
for at least 72 hours 
after fever free w/o 
use of fever‐reducing 
medication. 

● Identify baseline 
absentee rates to 
determine if rates 
have increased by 
20% or more. 

● Increase 
communication and 
education on 
respiratory etiquette 
and hand hygiene. 

● Teachers provide 
age‐appropriate 
education. 

● Communicable 
disease surveillance 
to monitor/ report 
illness. 

● Increase space 
between students in 
classroom. 

● Instruct students in 
smaller cohorts, as 
feasible. 

● Increase sanitizing of 
flat and shared 
surfaces. 

● Devise prevention 
and post‐exposure 
sanitizing strategies 
based on current 
recommendations. 

● Isolate students who 
become ill at school 
until parents can pick 
up. 

● Discourage the use of 
shared items/ 
utensils in the 
classroom. 

● Provide 
communications to 
families based on the 
current situation, 
general information, 
and public health 
guidance. 

● Provide 
communication to 
staff of the current 
situation. 

● Provide 
communication to 
immune‐
compromised student 
families to defer to 
personal providers in 
regards to attendance. 

Note: For school year 2020‐2021, actions will also comply with guidance from ODE, OHA, and the State of Oregon. 
 

Packet page 203 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

8 

Level Two Actions: Intervention Focused (includes Level 1 Actions) 
(When cases identified in communities). 

Personal NPI’s  Community NPI’s  Environmental 
NPI’s 

Communication 

● Refer to public 
health‐specific 
guidance. 

● Be prepared to allow 
staff and students to 
stay home if 
someone in their 
house is sick. 

● Refer to public 
health‐specific 
guidance. 

● Increase space 
between people at 
school as much as 
possible (at least 3’). 

● Temporarily dismiss 
students attending 
childcare facilities 
and K‐12 schools. 
(Staff report to work; 
students do not come 
to school). 

● Refer to public 
health‐specific 
guidance. 

● Modify, postpone, 
or cancel large 
school events, as 
coordinated with 
local health 
department (LHD). 

● Work with LHD to 
establish timely 
communication with 
staff and families. 

● Provide 
communication to staff 
about the use of sick 
time and a reminder to 
stay home when sick. 

● Advise parents to 
report actual 
symptoms when calling 
students in sick as part 
of communicable 
disease surveillance. 

Note: For school year 2020‐2021, actions will also comply with guidance from ODE, OHA, and the State of Oregon. 

 

Level Three Actions: Response Focused (includes Level 1 and 2 Actions) 

(When cases identified in schools). 

Personal NPI’s  Community NPI’s  Environmental NPI’s  Communication 
● Follow public health 

direction. 
● Follow exclusion 

guidance designated 
by the local Public 
Health authority, 
which may include 
student dismissal. 

● Follow local Public 
Health direction on 
environmental 
cleaning, which may 
include school 
closure and canceling 
major events. 

● Coordinate 
communication with 
the local Public Health 
authority. 

● Identify potentially 
immediately‐impacted 
student populations. 

Note: For school year 2020‐2021, actions will also comply with guidance from ODE, OHA, and the State of Oregon. 

 

Level Four Actions: Post Event 

Personal NPI’s  Community NPI’s  Environmental NPI’s  Communication 
● Routine hand hygiene 

and respiratory 
etiquette when local 
Public Health 
authority deems 
process may return to 
baseline. 

● Stay home when ill 
and until 72 hours 
fever free w/o use of 
fever‐reducing 
medications. 

● Routine illness 
exclusion when local 
Public Health 
authority deems 
processes may return 
to baseline. 

● Routine sanitizing 
when local Public 
Health authority 
deems processes 
may return to 
baseline. 

● Routine seasonal 
illness prevention 
and exclusion 
communication. 

● Participate in post‐
event evaluation to 
determine what 
worked/ did not 
work in response. 

● Determine plans 
needed to make up 
lost academic time. 

Note: For school year 2020‐2021, actions will also comply with guidance from ODE, OHA, and the State of Oregon. 

 

 

Packet page 204 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

9 

Special Considerations: 
● Employee Sick Leave: 

Philomath School District administration should work together to determine the need to 

temporarily revise or flex sick leave to accommodate any public health guidance in regards 

to lost work, such as maximum incubation period exclusion (usually 10‐14 days).  Prolonged 

exclusion may occur with individuals who are contacts to identified cases, who are immune‐

compromised, or who are identified as potential cases. 
 

● School Closures: 

If school closure is advised by the local Public Health Department, consultation should occur 

between legal, union, and district administration to ensure processes are uniformly 

understood, agreed to, and administered. 
 

● Immuno‐Compromised Students: 

Students with immune‐compromising health conditions and treatments may require 

exclusion from school outside of public health guidance.  These students should provide 

documentation from their personal health provider. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Packet page 205 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

10 

Communicable Disease Management Plan: COVID‐19 Specific 

Plan Component  Required  Recommendations/ Considerations 

Protocol to notify the local Public Health 
authority of: 
1. Any confirmed COVID 19‐cases among 

students or staff. 
2. Any cluster illnesses among students 

or staff (2 or more). 

● Contact Tina Hoch, (541‐740‐0245) or 
Lori Haslam (541 609‐6246), PSD 
District Nurses 

● Nurse Tina or Lori will: 
o Contact LPHA: 

Benton County (541‐766‐6835) 
Polk County (503‐623‐8175‐  
KVCS Only) 

o Contact Office of the Superintendent 
(541‐929‐3169) 

● Information to be provided to parents 
regarding need to notify the school 
immediately upon identification of 
COVID‐19 in a student. 

● If anyone who has entered the school 
is diagnosed with COVID‐19, contact 
Tina Hoch or Lori Haslam, PSD District 
Nurses. 

● Nurse Tina or Lori will: 
o Contact LPHA: 

Benton County (541‐766‐6835) 
Polk County (503‐623‐8175‐  
KVCS Only) 

o Contact Office of the Superintendent 
(541‐929‐3169) 

Protocol for screening students and staff 
upon entry to school each day. 

● Daily Contact Tracing logs will be 
maintained for each school. 

● Data collected at entry screen will 
include the following: 

o Student Name 
o Arrival Time to School 
o Parent/Guardian Contact 
o Interactions Beyond Cohort 
o Symptoms and/or Exposures Noted 

● Designated staff will screen for 
primary symptoms of concern. 

o New loss of taste or smell 
o Cough 
o Fever or Chills 
o Shortness of Breath or Difficulty 

Breathing 

● Screening protocol must recognize 
that students and staff who have 
conditions that cause chronic 
symptoms (e.g., asthma, allergies, 
etc.) should not be automatically 
excluded from school. 

● Cough is an exception: Staff or 
students with a chronic or baseline 
cough that has worsened or is not 
well‐controlled with medication 
should be excluded from school.  

● Do not exclude staff or students  from 
school with a chronic cough that are 
under the care of a provider and have 
provided documentation that the 
condition is non‐infectious, or other 

Packet page 206 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

11 

● Any student or staff with any of the 
above symptoms will be sent home or 
isolated until able to go home. 

symptoms that are chronic or 
baseline symptoms (e.g., asthma, 
allergies, etc.)  

Plan Component  Required  Recommendations/ Considerations 

Protocol for screening students and staff 
upon entry to school each day. 
(Continued) 

● COVID‐19 symptoms may also include 
the following, however these are less 
specific and not recommended as sole 
criteria for exclusion from school: 

o Headache 
o Muscle or body aches 
o Nausea 
o Fatigue 
o Congestion/ Runny Nose 

Note: Diarrhea and vomiting are allowable 
conditions for restriction from school, 
independent of COVID‐19. 

 

Communication protocol for COVID‐19 
cases. 

● Contact Tina Hoch (541‐740‐0245) or 
Lori Haslam (541 609‐6246),  PSD 
District Nurses 

● Nurse Tina or Lori will: 
o Contact LPHA: 

Benton County (541‐766‐6835) 
Polk County (503‐623‐8175‐  
KVCS Only) 

o Contact Office of the Superintendent 
(541‐929‐3169) 

● District administrative team will be 
responsible for communication with 
parents, families, and staff. 

● Parents of all students who were 
exposed to a person diagnosed with 
COVID‐19, and all exposed adults, 
should be notified within 24 hours 
and advised to quarantine at home 
for the LPHA recommended number 
of days following exposure and to 
seek testing should symptoms 
develop, or as directed by public 
health. 

● Consult with LPHA officials on what 
constitutes “exposure”. 

Packet page 207 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

12 

 

Plan Component  Required  Recommendations/ Considerations 

Daily logs for each stable group or each 
individual student to support contact 
tracing of cases if necessary. 

 

● Daily Contact Tracing logs will be 
maintained for each school. 

● Data will include the following: 
o Student Name 
o Arrival & Dismissal Time to/from 

School 
o Parent/Guardian Contact 
o Interactions Beyond Cohort 
o Symptoms and/or Exposures Noted 

● At the end of each day, logs will be 
turned in to school office. 

● Logs will be maintained for a 
minimum of four weeks after 
completion of the term. 

● Staff training will be provided related 
to importance of and requirement for 
daily logs. 

 

Record of anyone entering the facility.  ● Office staff in each school will be 
responsible for maintaining a daily log 
of visitors outside existing cohorts. 

● District Office staff will be responsible 
for maintaining a daily log of visitors 
outside the existing office cohort. 

● Daily log will consist of the following: 
o Name 
o Contact Information 
o Date of Visit 
o Time of Entry and Exit 

● Forward logs to PSD District Nurse. 

 

Packet page 208 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

13 

Plan Component  Required  Recommendations/ Considerations 

Protocol to restrict any potentially sick 
persons from physical contact with 
others. (Isolation Measures) 

 

● An adequate supply of face coverings 
are available in each school. 

● Each school will have a designated 
space to isolate students or staff who 
develop COVID‐19 symptoms. 

● Isolate students or staff members 
who report or develop symptoms, 
with staff supervision and symptom 
monitoring, until they are able to go 
home.  (Monitoring to be completed 
by PSD District Nurse or designee). 

● While waiting to go home, people 
displaying symptoms should wear a 
face covering, as should supervising 
staff.  If people are nauseous, 
struggling to breathe, or in distress, 
they should not wear any face 
covering.  

● A different, dedicated space will be 
available at each school for students 
to receive non‐COVID‐19 health 
services. 

● Query all staff and families regarding 
recent travel out‐of‐state.  If so, 
quarantine at home for at least 
fourteen (14) days from the date of 
return home. 

● Anyone developing cough, fever, 
chills, shortness of breath, difficulty 
breathing, or sore throat while at 
school must be: 

o Immediately provided a face 
covering to wear; 

o Immediately isolated from others; 
and 

o Sent home as soon as possible. 

● Anyone with these symptoms must 
remain home for at least ten (10) days 
after illness onset and 24 hours after 
fever is gone, without use of fever‐
reducing medicine, and other 
symptoms are improving.  
Alternatively, an individual may 
return to school after receiving two 
(2) negative COVID‐19 molecular tests 
(PCR) at least 24 hours apart. 

● Involve PSD School Nurse in the 
development of protocols and 
assessment of symptoms. 

 

Plan Component  Required  Recommendations/ Considerations 

Packet page 209 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

14 

Environmental Management: 
 

Ensure hand hygiene on entry to school 
every day. 

● Wash with soap and water for 20 
seconds OR 

● Use an alcohol‐based hand sanitizer with 
60‐95% alcohol. 

 
Hand washing is required before every 
meal and following restroom usage. 

● Staff members will have documented 
plans for ensuring student and staff: 

o Hand hygiene upon entry to school; 
o Hand washing prior to meals; and 
o Hand washing following restroom 

use. 

 

Environmental Management: 
 

Appropriate cleaning and contingency 
plans for routine infection prevention, 
and for closing cohort, schools, or 
districts based on identified COVID‐19 
cases and in compliance with public 
health and CDC guidelines. 

● Protocols will be provided for: 
o Cleaning and disinfection for routine 

infection prevention; 
o Cleaning and classroom closure in 

case of a COVID‐19 case in a cohort; 
and 

o Cleaning following school‐wide 
exposure. 

● Specific location for supplies and 
materials will be designated in each 
school.  Maintenance Director and 
School Custodial staff will be 
responsible. 

● Routine cleaning and disinfecting will 
follow current CDC Guidelines for 
Cleaning and Disinfecting. 

o Cleaning classrooms between 
groups; 

o Cleaning playground equipment 
between groups; 

o Cleaning restrooms; 
o Etc… 

   

Packet page 210 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

15 

Plan Component  Required  Recommendations/ Considerations 

Physical Distancing and Protection: 
 

Maintain six feet of physical distance 
between people. 

● A minimum of 35 square feet per 
person is available in classrooms, 
cafeteria, gyms, and other building 
locations.  

● Any breach to required distance will 
be mitigated through additional 
protections. 

● Protocol for minimizing interactions 
between cohorts and minimizing 
changes in stable cohorts while 
balancing educational needs for 
individual curricula. 

● Ensure that school schedules address 
physical distancing requirements. 

● Establish clear and stable cohorts of 
students. 

● Restrict interaction between student 
cohorts. 

Physical Distancing and Protection: 
 

Face coverings for staff and students. 

● Each school will provide regular 
communication to staff, parents, 
families, and students on appropriate 
use of face coverings. 

● All communications must include 
information about exclusionary 
situations when a mask or face 
covering should not be worn. 

● Face coverings must never be worn by 
children when sleeping. 

● Approved masks will be available for 
staff, students, and guests entering 
each school if needed. 

● At this time, all students and staff in 
K‐12 public facilities must wear a face 
covering. 

● If face coverings are to work, they 
should be washed daily. 

 

 

Packet page 211 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

16 

Appendix A 
Symptom Recognition 

 

 
chart taken from https://www.beaumont.org/health‐wellness/blogs/is‐it‐allergies‐or‐covid‐19 

 

 

 

Packet page 212 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

17 

Appendix B 
Stay‐At‐Home Guidance 

 

School and Illness: Should Your Child Stay Home? 
 

The following guidelines will help you decide whether your child is too ill to go to school. 
 

 Your child is too ill to go to school if he or she has any of these signs:  
● Seems very tired and needs bed rest (this is common with flu symptoms)  
● Has vomiting or diarrhea (Do NOT send until student is FREE OF symptoms for 24 hours without the use of medicine) 
● Becomes short of breath or is wheezing 
● Has a cough that disrupts normal activity, unless documented asthma, allergies, or other reason under the care of a 

provider. 
● Has distracting pain from earache, headache, sore throat or recent injury  
● Has yellow or green drainage from eye(s)  
● Break out in a rash; not all rashes require that a child stay home from school. Check with your child’s doctor. Impetigo 

would require staying home until treated with an antibiotic for 24 hours.  
● Live lice visible in hair. Treat the student for live lice. Student may return the day after treatment. 
 

Fever: Your child should not go to school if they have a temperature at or above 100.4* F. Student may 

return to school after they are feeling better (a temp. below 100.4*F without a fever reducer in their 

system). 
 

Contagious Disease: Your child should stay home from school if he/she has a contagious disease. A 

contagious disease is one that can be spread by close contact with a person or object. Examples are 

chickenpox, flu, vomiting, diarrhea, colds, strep throat and "pinkeye." A disease may be contagious 

before the child shows signs of illness. It is very hard to prevent the spread of some germs, especially in 

a school classroom. Good hand washing will help prevent the spread of germs in most settings. 
 

If your child has chickenpox or strep throat, please ask your doctor when he/she may return to school. In 

general, children who have active chickenpox should not return to school until all the lesions are dried 

and crusted. Children with strep throat should be on antibiotics for 24 hours and feeling well enough to 

concentrate. 
 

During cold and flu season, please pay extra attention to signs and symptoms. We want all individuals to 

stay as healthy as possible! Good hand washing is incredibly important! Please wash hands often and 

wear a face mask in public. 
 

We know it may be hard to get a doctor’s appointment right away. Here are some helpful tips when 

caring for your child while at home: 
● Have them drink plenty of liquid 
● Keep the sick child/children isolated as much as possible 
● Keep them as comfortable and resting as much as possible 
● Use over the counter medication when necessary  
● Make sure the sick child/children and caregiver are washing their hands frequently 
● If your child has COVID‐19 symptoms contact your health care provider and the school 

 

Respectfully,  

Tina Hoch, RN    Lori Haslam, RN 

Philomath School District Nurse 

541‐740‐0245   

Packet page 213 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

18 

Appendix C 

 
 

 

Packet page 214 of 228



Philomath School District 
08/06/2020 Initial Approval 
02/16/2021 Updated Draft 

19 

Appendix D 

Staff Training Sign‐Off 

 

Training Protocols  Person(s) Responsible 

Personal Protective Equipment  PSD Maintenance and School Custodians 

Healthy Hygiene Practices  PSD Nurse and School Administrators 

Physical Distancing  School Administrators and Custodians 

Cleaning and Sanitizing Protocols  PSD Maintenance and School Custodians 

Entry Screening  PSD Nurse and School Administrators 

In‐Person Contact  District and School Administrators 

Contact Tracing  PSD Nurse and School Administrators 

Exclusions  PSD Nurse 

In‐Person Reporting  PSD Nurse and School Administrators 

 

I have read and understand the Philomath School District Communicable Disease Management 

Plan and related materials and have received the necessary instruction to follow the plan. 

 

 

Employee Name:                        

 

Employee Signature:                   Date:      

 

Supervisor Signature:                  Date:      

Packet page 215 of 228



The following Memorandum of Understanding is hereby appended to the CDL MOU between 
PEA and PSD for the Hybrid instructional learning model. 

I. Workplace Safety In order to provide for educator health and safety needs, the policies and 
practices outlined in the district safety plan will be followed in all district facilities.  Members will have 
access to the following: 

1. Information about when and where students will be in the building during the workday and 
during off hours 

2. Documentation of cleaning work done in areas being occupied during the work day 
3. Documentation of contact tracing procedures used (Note: In CD Mgmt. Plan and Operational 

Blueprints) 
4. A Google Form for reporting concerns and documenting failures to follow established safety 

procedures.  Administrators and members of the Operational Blueprint Team will have 
access to completed forms.  Form is located at 
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSc‐

L8eFSTe9GaUVCTwvht0ofS21ibWVp33os3c6Fn6zWg5PDw/viewform?gxids=7628 
5. To the degree allowed by FERPA and HIPPA, information about students and staff who have 

tested positive for COVID-19 or who have been directly exposed to persons who have tested 
positive 

6. Safety plan details related to: 
a. Classroom entry screening (Note: Operational Blueprint) 
b. Isolation of ill students (Note: Operational Blueprint) 

7. Masks, sanitizing wipes, and hand sanitizer will be available at entries to the 
schools.  Members will request and receive a supply of masks, sanitizing wipes, 
and/or hand sanitizer from their school office for personal instructional area(s). 

8. To allow students to rotate efficiently between classes, members agree to 
implement cleaning as trained by Philomath School District Facilities Department. 

9. PSD will provide all required PPE for members (Face masks, face shields, 
gloves). 

10. Once the operational blueprint is completed by district there will be specific 
training for staff from each building on procedures outlined in the blueprint 
document. Staff will be given time to ask questions and get those answers before 
in-person instruction. This training will take place within a week of the beginning 
of in-person instruction.   

II. Workload When a school or grade level returns to hybrid or full participation learning 
models, teacher workload will not be increased. 

1. When students at any grade level move to the Hybrid or In-Person 
Learning model while others remain in CDL, licensed staff members may 

Packet page 216 of 228



be asked to report to their respective school(s). Exceptions to coming to 
the school facility if not actively engaged with students on-site include the 
following:  

a. Staff member is immune compromised, with physician note 
provided; 

b. Staff member lives with/ is primary caregiver for an immune-
compromised individual, with formal notification from member; 

c. Child-care for staff member is unavailable, with formal notification 
from member; and/or 

d. District technology resources will not support consistent 
connectivity for online learning for those members continuing in 
CDL. 

 
Reasons for expectation that teachers report to buildings when not 
engaged in direct instruction will be limited to: 

● Professional learning; 
● Staff/ team meetings; and/or 
● Opportunities to test school and district systems/protocols. 

2. No teacher will be required to teach in-person lessons while managing 
students who opt to remain in CDL. On student non-in-person days, 
teacher responsibility is to provide some kind of independent applied 
learning practice, not regular CDL.   Platform is negotiable between 
employee and admin, as to whether they use electronic platforms or send 
home paper/pencil materials. 

 
3. Teachers in the hybrid model will be responsible for providing in-class 

instruction only, and some form of applied learning for days when students 
are not physically in class.  Teachers in CDL will be responsible for all 
instruction for students assigned to their class for that day.  Adjustments 
may be made at the school level with agreement between teacher and 
administration to address the unique needs of different classes, grade 
levels, and schools. 
 

4. Mondays will remain as designated for professional learning and planning, 

Packet page 217 of 228



with 30-60 minutes allotted for online student contact and support, until all 
students return to Full In-Person Learning. 

 
5. In order to provide greater flexibility for school schedules, Monday 

preparation time will be allowable for meeting limited preparation time 
requirements.  

6. Teachers will have at least 16 hours without student contact to prepare for 
entry into a hybrid learning model.  This will be accomplished through the 
suspension of CDL teaching for two days prior to starting hybrid learning.   

7. Schedules for each building will be developed with staff input, reviewed 
and confirmed for contract compliance by both parties before being put 
into action.   All adopted schedules will be attached as appendices to this 
agreement 

8. Workload expectations and duties for staff will be consistent with 
established norms described in the original contract 

III.  Leave.  

Should a member be asked to quarantine due to exposure to COVID-19 without 
becoming symptomatic and be asked to change their location of work to allow for 
safe quarantine, the member will continue working temporarily from the quarantine 
location. As the member is still working with students, there will be no expectation of 
any leave-taking. If the member chooses not to alter his/her work location during this 
time, they will be responsible for utilizing, as appropriate, federal, state, and/or local 
leave.  

Should a member be diagnosed with COVID-19 or become ill, they will use and 
exhaust any applicable federal- or state-sponsored leave programs prior to using 
personal sick leave.  Members who exhaust available leaves will be eligible to utilize 
the sick leave bank to cover remaining sick leave.   

In the event that any or all schools return to in-person instruction, it is agreed PSD 
will give priority for continuing CDL or Philomath Academy assignments to 
bargaining unit members with documented "high risk" medical conditions, family 
member obligations, or child care needs who meet the qualifications for the online 
teaching assignment(s). Bargaining unit members assigned to continued CDL or 
Philomath Academy will remain in that assignment as long as the need exists during 
the 2020-21 school year. Further, PSD shall make a good faith effort to return such 
members to their previously held assignment once the COVID pandemic is over, or 
at a time mutually agreed upon between an individual member and PSD.  

PSD and PEA recognize that a return to in-person instruction may raise issues not 

Packet page 218 of 228



addressed in this agreement.  PEA and PSD leadership will meet biweekly to 
address emergent concerns.   

IV. Setting Precedent 

Nothing in this MOU should be construed as waiving or eliminating any other provisions  
of the parties' collective bargaining agreement. That agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect. This memorandum establishes no contractual precedent, and will expire June 30, 
2021. 

 
 

Packet page 219 of 228



                        Philomath School District 17J 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 

 
Updated: 3/11/21 12:34 PM 

 
A. List of Bills: 

1.    February 2021 
 

B. Minutes: 
1. Regular Session – February 16, 2021 
 

C. Resolution: 
1. None at this time 

 
D. Leave of Absence: 

1. None at this time 
 

E. Surplus Property: 
1. None at this time 

 
 

 

March 15, 2021 

Packet page 220 of 228



Check Number Date Payee Amount StatusVoucher Type Clear Date Void DateCleared?
154 02/01/2021 CORVALLIS SCHOOL DISTRICT

509J
$95.70 Printed1245 Expense

155 02/19/2021 GRASS ROOTS BOOKSTORE $99.95 Printed1261 Expense
193 02/23/2021 SKAAR, BRIAN $29.99 Printed1266 Expense
997 02/01/2021 MARRS, SARA $100.00 Printed1246 Expense
998 02/01/2021 NELSON, SARAH $100.00 Printed1246 Expense
999 02/11/2021 HAVEN BARRETT

CHOREOGRAPHY
$900.00 Printed1255 Expense

1000 02/11/2021 HERFF JONES INC $7,050.00 Printed1255 Expense
1001 02/16/2021 OE CHEER $1,600.00 Printed1256 Expense
1002 02/24/2021 KOHLER, KATHY $59.96 Printed1273 Expense
20053 02/16/2021 BENTON ELECTRIC INC $2,760.00 Printed1258 Expense
20054 02/16/2021 CARTERS FIRE SPRINKLER MAINT.

& PIPING,
$1,005.00 Printed1258 Expense

20055 02/16/2021 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. $13,138.23 Printed1258 Expense
20056 02/16/2021 CENTURYLINK $70.83 Printed1258 Expense
20057 02/16/2021 CINTAS CORP $1,540.95 Printed1258 Expense
20058 02/16/2021 COLLABORATIVE EMPLOYMENT

INNOVATIONS
$730.67 Printed1258 Expense

20059 02/16/2021 CONSUMERS POWER INC $973.04 Printed1258 Expense
20060 02/16/2021 CORVALLIS HEATING, LLC $2,680.00 Printed1258 Expense
20061 02/16/2021 CTX $671.00 Printed1258 Expense
20062 02/16/2021 DENNIS GIBSON CONSTRUCTION,

INC
$2,179.61 Printed1258 Expense

20063 02/16/2021 DEPARTMENT OF ADMINSTRATIVE
SERVICES

$233.00 Printed1258 Expense
20064 02/16/2021 DHS/OHA RECEIPTING UNIT $602.75 Printed1258 Expense

Benton County School District 17J
Reprint Check Listing
Fiscal Year:   2020-2021

02/01/2021From Date: 02/28/2021To Date:
From Check: To Check:
From Voucher: To Voucher:

Bank Account:
Criteria:

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:45:21 PM rptGLCheckListingReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 1

Packet page 221 of 228



Check Number Date Payee Amount StatusVoucher Type Clear Date Void DateCleared?
20065 02/16/2021 DIAL-A-BUS $2,082.24 Printed1258 Expense
20066 02/16/2021 DOBBS GLOBAL $2,775.00 Printed1258 Expense
20067 02/16/2021 EDNETICS, INC. $2,150.00 Printed1258 Expense
20068 02/16/2021 FERRELLGAS $85.00 Printed1258 Expense
20069 02/16/2021 FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS,

INC.
$3,537.01 Printed1258 Expense

20070 02/16/2021 HOME DEPOT, THE $164.76 Printed1258 Expense
20071 02/16/2021 LINN-BENTON COMMUNITY

COLLEGE
$664.51 Printed1258 Expense

20072 02/16/2021 MARYS PEAK TRUE VALUE $693.07 Printed1258 Expense
20073 02/16/2021 OETC $1,822.70 Printed1258 Expense
20074 02/16/2021 OFFICE DEPOT $909.69 Printed1258 Expense
20075 02/16/2021 PLATT ELECTRIC SUPPLY INC $709.38 Printed1258 Expense
20076 02/16/2021 ROBERT LLOYD SHEET METAL,

INC.
$829.70 Printed1258 Expense

20077 02/16/2021 SCHAEFERS RECREATION $64.72 Printed1258 Expense
20078 02/16/2021 SMEED COMMUNICATION

SERVICES
$420.00 Printed1258 Expense

20079 02/16/2021 SMITH GLASS SERVICE INC $487.00 Printed1258 Expense
20080 02/16/2021 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE $1,512.29 Printed1258 Expense
20081 02/16/2021 STRENGTHENING RURAL FAMILIES $10,285.00 Printed1258 Expense
20082 02/26/2021 AFLAC $45.50 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20083 02/26/2021 AMERICAN FIDELITY - INS $3,876.57 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20084 02/26/2021 AMERICAN FIDELITY ASSURANCE

CO - 403b
$3,752.73 Printed1268 Payroll Ded

20085 02/26/2021 AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL
SERVICES, INC.

$290.00 Printed1268 Payroll Ded

Benton County School District 17J
Reprint Check Listing
Fiscal Year:   2020-2021

02/01/2021From Date: 02/28/2021To Date:
From Check: To Check:
From Voucher: To Voucher:

Bank Account:
Criteria:

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:45:21 PM rptGLCheckListingReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 2

Packet page 222 of 228



Check Number Date Payee Amount StatusVoucher Type Clear Date Void DateCleared?
20086 02/26/2021 DOJ - Child Support $534.00 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20087 02/26/2021 GORDON, AYLWORTH & TAMI, P.C. $554.44 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20088 02/26/2021 Invesco Investment Services, Inc. $3,663.84 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20089 02/26/2021 NEWPORT TRUST COMPANY $4,810.02 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20090 02/26/2021 OSEA $2,054.43 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20091 02/26/2021 PenServ Plan Services, Inc/ Foresters $1,580.00 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20092 02/26/2021 PHILOMATH EDUCATION ASSOC $623.00 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20093 02/26/2021 Pioneer Credit Recovery Inc $226.24 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20094 02/26/2021 TEXAS LIFE $914.05 Printed1268 Payroll Ded
20095 02/26/2021 VOYA RETIREMENT INSURANCE

AND ANNUITY CO
$3,478.37 Printed1268 Payroll Ded

20096 02/26/2021 AT&T MOBILITY $239.18 Printed1274 Expense
20097 02/26/2021 BEARCOM $1,224.50 Printed1274 Expense
20098 02/26/2021 BEST POTS $381.00 Printed1274 Expense
20099 02/26/2021 CORVALLIS POWER EQUIPMENT $71.50 Printed1274 Expense
20100 02/26/2021 CTX $279.25 Printed1274 Expense
20101 02/26/2021 EARTH2O $145.16 Printed1274 Expense
20102 02/26/2021 EDNETICS, INC. $7,648.71 Printed1274 Expense
20103 02/26/2021 GARRETT HEMANN ROBERTSON $2,115.00 Printed1274 Expense
20104 02/26/2021 GRASS ROOTS BOOKSTORE $1,280.00 Printed1274 Expense
20105 02/26/2021 MID COLUMBIA BUS COMPANY,

INC.
$40,477.06 Printed1274 Expense

20106 02/26/2021 NORTHSIDE ELECTRIC $1,563.91 Printed1274 Expense
20107 02/26/2021 NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS CO. $3,797.18 Printed1274 Expense
20108 02/26/2021 PACIFIC POWER $15,672.17 Printed1274 Expense

Benton County School District 17J
Reprint Check Listing
Fiscal Year:   2020-2021

02/01/2021From Date: 02/28/2021To Date:
From Check: To Check:
From Voucher: To Voucher:

Bank Account:
Criteria:

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:45:21 PM rptGLCheckListingReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 3

Packet page 223 of 228



Check Number Date Payee Amount StatusVoucher Type Clear Date Void DateCleared?
20109 02/26/2021 SMITH GLASS SERVICE INC $2,025.00 Printed1274 Expense
20110 02/26/2021 STATE OF OREGON EMPLOYMENT

TAX UNIT 2
$6,227.07 Printed1274 Expense

20111 02/26/2021 US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE $1,797.53 Printed1274 Expense
20112 02/26/2021 WALTER E. NELSON OF EUGENE $441.58 Printed1274 Expense
20113 02/26/2021 WILLAMETTE SAW SERVICE $1,233.00 Printed1274 Expense
45764 02/26/2021 BUSHNELL, DIANA B $969.78 Printed12 Payroll
45765 02/26/2021 FEIGE, CHARLOTTE A $464.27 Printed12 Payroll
45766 02/26/2021 KILDEA, KAYLEY R $646.71 Printed12 Payroll
45767 02/26/2021 ROGERS, LOREN R $321.88 Printed12 Payroll
45768 02/26/2021 STARLEY, LONDON J $431.88 Printed12 Payroll
45769 02/26/2021 STUEVE, SHANE R $1,031.33 Printed12 Payroll
45770 02/26/2021 BRUNTON, NOHEMI M $6.69 Printed12 Payroll
45771 02/26/2021 BURNETT, NICHOLAS R $76.39 Printed12 Payroll
45772 02/26/2021 HAMMONDS, NICOLE I $46.69 Printed12 Payroll
45773 02/26/2021 HUANG, XIUPING  $46.69 Printed12 Payroll
45774 02/26/2021 NELSON, SARAH L $16.04 Printed12 Payroll
45775 02/26/2021 SHREEVE, CATHERINE A $46.69 Printed12 Payroll
45776 02/26/2021 SCHWINABART, DARLA J $1,785.53 Printed12 Payroll
45777 02/26/2021 GRUVER, SHELLY A $4,604.80 Printed12 Payroll
45778 02/26/2021 KILDEA, KATRINA M $26.68 Printed12 Payroll
45779 02/26/2021 SKAAR, LINDA M $3,667.49 Printed12 Payroll

$193,024.28Total Amount:
End of Report

Benton County School District 17J
Reprint Check Listing
Fiscal Year:   2020-2021

02/01/2021From Date: 02/28/2021To Date:
From Check: To Check:
From Voucher: To Voucher:

Bank Account:
Criteria:

Printed: 03/01/2021 2:45:21 PM rptGLCheckListingReport: 2020.4.14 Page: 4

Packet page 224 of 228



 
Philomath School District 17J 

 Regular Session Board Minutes – February 16, 2021 
Page 1 of 4 

 

REGULAR SESSION 

Meeting Minutes 
PHILOMATH SCHOOL DISTRICT 17J 

District Office 
1620 Applegate Street, Philomath 

2/16/2021 07:00 PM 

 

A. EXECUTIVE SESSION ~ 6:00 p.m. 
1. The board met under ORS 192.660 (2) (d) 

B. REGULAR SESSION ~ 7:00 p.m. 
1. The meeting was called to order by board chair, Shelley Niemann, on February 16, 2021, at 7:06 p.m. The 

meeting was held virtually via ZOOM with streaming on Facebook Live.  In attendance: Directors, Greg 

Gerding, Shelley Niemann, Anton Grube, Karen Skinkis, and Jim Kildea; Superintendent, Susan Halliday; 

Director of Finance, Bill Mancuso; Secretary, Lillian Edmonds; Administrators, Mike Bussard, Steve Bell, 

Krista McGuyer, Chad Matthews, Bryan Traylor, Abby Couture, Tony Matta; Systems Administrator, Jennifer 

Kessel; PEA President, David Dunham; OSEA president, Ryan Kildea; ASB president Lily Schell; and Philomath 

News reporter, Brad Fuqua. Public Comment guests: Donna Carter and Charlene Opheim. The pledge of 

Allegiance was led by Shelley Niemann. 

2. Superintendent Halliday read a statement to clarify and address the issues that arose during the January 25, 

2021 school board meeting. The decision to delay the reopening of schools was made with guidance from 

legal counsel and the school board.  The presented action of an Unfair Labor Practice Claim made by the PEA 

leadership is not a lawsuit, it is a legal claim that would be heard first by an administrative law judge, then 

by a three‐member Employment Relations Board.  It involves a hearing that leads to a judgement or order. 

There has been a great deal of collaborative work completed or nearly completed and this has greatly 

increased the breadth of staff knowledge and input. Work will continue on Blueprints for middle and high 

school.  

C. REPORTS & CORRESPONDENCE ~ 
1. Student Government Report: Lily Schell, ASB president:  ASB is working on the Freshman Connections. 

Data has been compiled and they are making connections with freshmen.  Candy‐grams will be delivered to 

people’s houses for those that have signed up.  They are working with Principal Bussard to produce a back to 

school safety video for returning to school.  The Polar Plunge will be February 20th.  To donate you can do it 

through the PHS front office or to Special Olympics of Benton County. 

2. Public Comments: 
i. Letters to the board:  Director Niemann read the submitted letters. 

1. Roxanne Smith, resident of Corvallis, children attend Philomath schools:  Submitted a letter 

to make an appeal for kids to return to school. Student mental health should be prioritized 

over resistance of teachers to return to school.   

2. Joey McGlinchy, resident of Philomath: Submitted a letter to encourage the reopening of 

schools as soon as possible.  The decision to not have in‐person education is based on what? 

Data shows that the risk is low and remote learning is leading to greater achievement gaps. 

He asked the school board to move forward with opening schools immediately. 

Packet page 225 of 228



 
Philomath School District 17J 

 Regular Session Board Minutes – February 16, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 

 

ii. Donna Carter, PHS teacher read a collaborative letter from teachers to address/clarify information 

that occurred at the January 25, 2021 school board meeting.  

1. The union did not sue the district 

2. Unfair labor practice claims don’t close schools 

3. The teachers are not roadblocks to learning 

4. The district’s claims of being ready were false 

Next Steps 

1. Rebuild trust in our working relationship with the superintendent 

2. Complete the Blueprints, MOU and school schedules before students are returned to the 

classroom 

3. Everyone involved should stop hurling insults and looking for a scapegoat. 

iii. Charlene Opheim, CPS kindergarten teacher spoke from the perspective of a teacher, parent and 

community member.  She read a love letter to recognize the contributions of everyone in the school 

and community that play a role in making Philomath great. 

3. Association Reports 
i. OSEA – Ryan Kildea, president: Thanked all classified staff for their contributions to students, 

teachers and families. Classified staff have been involved in Blueprint discussions and safety 

procedures. Most members have received their first dose of the COVID vaccine. Looking forward to 

welcoming students back in our buildings. 

ii. PEA – David Dunham, co‐president: Read a statement on behalf of PEA. At the January 25th board 

meeting teachers were publicly criticized by members of the school board.  

1. The union did not sue the district, nor did they threaten to sue. 

2. Required revised safety blueprints were incomplete on January 25th 

3. K‐3 Teachers were ready and willing to welcome students on January 26th 

4.  Neither teachers nor the union blocked the district from opening school on January 26th. 

5. Since the January 25th meeting, union leaders have made themselves available to work on 

contractual concerns, schedules and blueprints. 

4. Superintendent Report: 
i. Statewide graduation rates: Class of 2020 had the highest graduation rate ever recorded in Oregon. 

ii. COVID‐19 testing: Lori Haslam, district nurse is looking at implementation considerations. Outdoor 

contact sports require on‐site responsive testing for symptomatic individuals and those with known 

exposures. Testing requires active consent of parent/guardian. 

iii. Technology Update:  Bill Mancuso and Susan Halliday will have oversight of the department.  

Jennifer Kessel is the Systems Administrator, Mark Neville is the Network administrator, Gary Yoder 

and Steven Voong are technicians.  Looking to hire a Library/Media Specialist. Technology Plan 

updates will be shared at the May School Board meeting.  The board asked that this plan be moved 

up to the April meeting. 

iv. Nursing Updates:  Lori Haslam was hired as the half time District Nurse.  Tina Hoch will return to the 

district as the full time District Nurse. 

v. Calendar Committee: a committee will be working on the 2021‐2022 and 2022‐2023 calendar 

proposals. Final calendars will be presented by the April board meeting. 

vi. Student Success Act: The district received the executed grant agreement today.  

vii. Association Connections: Joint conversations, Blueprint team meetings, PEA and OSEA meetings 

have all been taking place. 

Packet page 226 of 228



 
Philomath School District 17J 

 Regular Session Board Minutes – February 16, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 

 

viii. Legislative Watch: HB 2001 – Relating to procedures for the reduction of educator staff, SB 238 – 

Relating to law enforcement agency personnel in schools, and SB 334 – Relating to training for 

persons in leadership positions of public education providers. 

ix. Racism in Mathematics: ODE recently encouraged teachers to register for training that encourages 

ethnomathematics and argues that White supremacy manifests itself in the focus on finding the 

right answer. Susan will continue to gather information on this. 

5. Director of Finance Report 
i. Enrollment figures have dropped by 10 from last month’s numbers. Director Gerding noted that we 

are down 100 students from last year and this would be about $9000/student. Director Grube asked 

about the trajectory of expenditures versus budget.  Bill said that it is on track and will even out as 

we go through the year.  

D. STRATEGY AND DISCUSSION ~ 
1. Ready Schools, Safe Learners ‐ Action Required 

i. Metrics still put us in the orange category.  

ii. Superintendent Halliday recommends that the BES, CPS, PES Operational Blueprints and the PEA 

MOU be considered for approval by the board. The yellow highlighted areas are still under 

consideration.  Director Kildea made a motion that the board approve the Operational Blueprints as 

presented in the packet for PES, BES and CPS. Second: Director Gerding. Motion passed 5‐0. Director 

Kildea made a motion that the board approve the MOU as outlined in the board packet with PEA, 

with the exception of the two highlighted sections with the understanding that those are to be 

agreed to between the superintendent and PEA.  Second: Director Skinkis.  Motion passed 5‐0 

iii. There may be a need to hold a special board session to consider the approval of middle and high 

school blueprints and  the communicable disease management plan. 

iv. School re‐opening dates: K‐3 would start on February 23rd, 4‐5 grades start on March 2nd or 4th. PMS 

and PHS dates are to be determined.  

v. The board would like to see an assurance for families that these dates are solid. Communication 

could happen as early as tomorrow to families. The board is in support of these start dates. If 

possible have the Blueprints for PMS and PHS done by March 2nd. 

2. District Calendar Discussion ‐ 2021/2022 

i. Some items to consider are: Do we start before or after Labor Day? Where do the quarters and 

trimesters fall? The committee will be looking at the 2021‐22 and 2022‐23 school year calendars.  

The early release day would work better if it is moved back to Friday. Calendar committee will bring 

proposals to the board in March with a final decision at the April meeting.   

3. Return to In‐Person Board Meetings 
i. The board would like to move back to in‐person meetings.  They would want to be in a venue that 

would allow a small number of public to attend.  Live streaming would still be done.  Currently the 

county only allows public boards to have up to six people meet. Technical challenges are an issue. 

Superintendent Halliday and the technology department will look into options. 

E. ACTION ITEMS ~ 
1. Superintendent Search Status 

i. At last month’s meeting, there was a motion passed to suspend the superintendent search. Director 

Kildea noted that we have a solid superintendent in place and we have challenging things to work 

through.  Director Kildea made a motion that the board hire Susan Halliday to fill the 

superintendent’s vacancy as of July 1, 2021, pending successful contract negotiations.  Second: 

Director Gerding.  Motion passed: 5‐0. Superintendent Halliday consented to filling the position. 

Packet page 227 of 228



 
Philomath School District 17J 

 Regular Session Board Minutes – February 16, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 

 

2. PEA MOU  ‐ Hybrid Instructional Learning Model – Covered in RSSL section. 

3. Licensed Contract Renewals 
i. The list and summation of Licensed Renewals was presented to the board. Three positions are 

temporary positions and will not be renewed. Director Grube moved to approve the Licensed 

Renewal list and the Licensed Renewal Summation as presented in the packet.   Second: Director 

Skinkis.  Motion passed: 5‐0 

4. Policies (Second Reading) ‐ Action Required 
i. Director Kildea made a motion that we approve all of the second reading policies in the board 

packet.  Second: Director Grube. Motion passed: 5‐0 

5. Consent Agenda 
i. Director Kildea moved to approve the consent agenda as outlined in the board packet.  Second:  

Director Gerding.  Motion Passed 5‐0 

F. MEETING CLOSURE ~ 
1. Board Reports & Thanks 

  Jim thanked all teachers and staff for finishing the Blueprints.  Thanks to all teachers for the gradation success. 

Thanks to Lori Haslam, Susan and administrators for all of their hard work to pull together Hybrid learning plans.  Anton 

echoed Jim’s thoughts and the hard work over many months. Eager to see the district be successful in bringing back 

students. Shelley thanked Susan, staff, and PEA for working hard to have things in place.  Thanks to parents for patience 

as we worked through things 

2. Next Meeting Agenda Items 
i. Kings Valley Charter Report 

ii. Facilities Report March or April 

iii. Technology Report  March or April 

iv. PEA negotiations timetable 

v. Reminder to public that there are 3 board positions open for election 

vi. Blueprints for PHS and PMS.   

vii. Update on Hybrid Learning and how things are going 

3. Board Requests  Adjournment 

1. The meeting was adjourned at 925 p.m. 

 

     

Board Chair 

 

           

Superintendent 

 

           

Date 

Packet page 228 of 228


	Cover Page (p. 1)
	Agenda (p. 2)
	Personnel Updates (p. 4)
	Finance Director Board Report (p. 5)
	Financials  (p. 6)
	Enrollment (p. 9)
	Fund 284 PES (p. 11)
	Fund 285 PMS (p. 13)
	Fund 286 PHS (p. 15)
	Classified Appreciation Proclamation (p. 19)
	KVCS Annual Report (p. 20)
	Calendar Options 2021-2022  (p. 122)
	Policy KG-AR Revised (p. 128)
	PHS Blueprints (p. 133)
	PA Blueprint (p. 158)
	PMS Blueprint (p. 161)
	PHS Exposure Risk Assessment  (p. 186)
	PMS Exposure Risk Assessment (p. 191)
	Communicable Disease Management Plan (p. 196)
	PEA MOU (p. 216)
	Consent Agenda - 3/15/21 (p. 220)
	Check listing - February 2021 (p. 221)
	Minutes - Regular Session 2/16/2021 (p. 225)

